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COMPANY PROFILE
CPSI is a leading provider of healthcare solutions and services foff r community hospitals, their clinics and other healthcare
systems. Founded in 1979, CPSI is the parent of six companies – Evident, LLC, American HealthTeTT ch, Inc., TruBridge, LLC,
iNetXperts, Corp. d/b/a Get Real Health, TruCode LLC, and Healthcare ResourceGroup, Inc. Our combined companies
are foff cused on helping improve the health of the communities we serve, connecting communities foff r a better patient
care experience, and improving the financial operations of our customers. Evident provides comprehensive acute care
electronic health record (EHR) solutions foff r community hospitals and their affff iliated clinics. American HealthTeTT ch is one
of the nation’s largest providers of post-acute care EHR solutions and services foff r post-acute care facilities. TruBridge
foff cuses on providing business, consulting andmanaged IT services, along with its complete Change to “revenue cycle
management (RCM) solution, foff r all care settings. Get Real Health foff cuses on solutions aimed at improving patient
engagement foff r individuals and healthcare providers. TruCode providesmedical coding softf ware that enables complete
and accurate code assignment foff r optimal reimbursement. HRG provides specialized RCM solutions foff r facilities of all
sizes. Formore infoff rmation, visit www.cpsi.com.

ANNUAL MEETING
The annual meeting of stockholders will be held Thursday, May 11, 2023, at 8:00 a.m. Central Time in a virtual foff rmat only
via the internet at www.proxydocs.com/CPSI.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Year EndedDecember 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2022 2021

Sales revenues:
RCM $ 179,870 $ 131,242
EHR 139,823 143, 109
Patient engagement 6,955 6,278
ToTT tal sales revenues 326,648 280,629

ToTT tal cost of sales 172, 213 139,747
Gross profit 154,435 140,882

ToTT tal operating expenses 131,652 116,175
Operating income 22,783 24,707

ToTT tal other expense (4,702) (1,631)
Income befoff re taxes 18,081 23,076

Provision foff r income taxes 2,214 4,646
Net income 15,867 18,430

Net income per common share—basic and diluted $1.08 $1.26
Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 14,356 14,290
Diluted 14,356 14,318
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TOOURSHAREHOLDERS:

I amextremely proud to address our shareholders foff r the first time asPresident andChief ExecutiveOfficer ofCPSI. I
amevenmoreproud to shareour continuedprogress in 2022, aswemoved foff rwardonour journeyof transfoff rmation
and affirmed our position as a leader in shaping the future of community healthcare.

CPSI enjn oys a rich history spanning over foff ur decades, with a large, loyal customer base, and a comprehensive suite
of solutions. As a market leader, we have witnessed enormous changes in healthcare infoff rmation technology and
its applications throughout the years. We are building upon our well-established foff undation to drive collaboration,
innovation and growth and respond to both the opportunities and challenges of a dynamic healthcare market. Our
mission to connect providers, patients and communities has been a driving foff rce behind everything we do. We are
proud of our legacy as a trusted partner to the customers we serve, creating thriving communities wherever we go.
ToTT day, we are uniquely qualified to meet the needs of those who rely on us with innovative solutions that support
both the clinical and financial side of healthcare delivery.
In 2022, we continued our transfoff rmation to move beyond community hospital infoff rmation system technology
and our core electronic health record (EHR) business and pursue a more comprehensive go-to-market strategy.
Throughout the year, we demonstrated solid execution on the key aspects of our growth strategy - to build on
the momentum of TruBridge’s revenue cycle management (RCM) business and mine the significant cross-selling
potential of TruBridge solutions; create greater operational efficiencies through automation and offsff horing to drive
scale and margin expansion while delivering more value to our customers; and look beyond our core offeffff rings and
exploit tangible upside growth opportunities through digital innovation.

Our financial results foff r the year reflect impressive progress in the execution of our strategy. We achieved solid top
line growth in 2022 with revenues up 16.4 percent over 2021, led by organic TruBridge growth. These results are
consistent with our pivot towards a greater foff cus on RCM and patient engagement technology and services. ToTT
provide greater transparency in our business, we have changed the presentation of our revenue streams to better
reflect the three business units within CPSI: TruBridge’s RCM business, our EHR business and our nascent patient
engagementbusiness. For theyear, TruBridge represented55percentof total revenue, ourEHRbusinessaccounted
foff r43percent, andpatientengagementwas twopercentof total revenue. Notably, 98percentofTruBridge’s revenue
is recurring, demonstrating progress toward our goal of growing recurring revenue in order to create greater visibility
and predictability in our business model. And, foff r our EHR business, we have continued to shiftff all EHR bookings
from the traditional license model to a Softff ware as a Service (SaaS) model, increasing the dominance of recurring
revenues within our top-linemix.

ToTT tal bookings foff r 2022 were $89.4 million, up 27.3 percent over last year, with 54 percent coming from TruBridge.
We have also started providing total net patient revenue under contract as a benchmark foff rmeasuring our progress,
as this reflects our foff cus on improving the financial strength of our hospital customers with RCM solutions. At the
end of 2022, we had $3.0 billion in net patient revenue under contract foff r our full-service RCM solution compared to
$2.2 billion at the end of 2021.

We have continued to protect the financial health of our balance sheet and pursue a disciplined capital allocation
strategy. In 2022, we announced an amendment to our credit facilities, expanding our revolver capacity from



$110 million to $160 million and gaining additional flexibility to make internal investments in our business, pursue
acquisitions that complement our strategic growth objb ectives, andmake value-based share repurchases. In August,
we announced that our Board of Directors extended the expiration date of our existing $30million stock repurchase
program to September 4, 2024. Under this program, the Company had repurchased 408,153 shares of common
stock as of December 31, 2022, with an aggregate value of $12.1 million, and $17.9 million remains authorized foff r
future repurchases.

As we continued to pursue our strategic initiatives, during the second half of 2022, we expanded our leadership
team across our business units to reflect our larger organizational transfoff rmation. Leading the EHR business
unit of CPSI as the General Manager is David Harse, whose long-standing experience in the EHR market offeffff rs
industry expertise and proven execution in leading transfoff rmational business growth. Pat Murphy brings 12 years of
experience with TruBridge to his role as the new General Manager of our RCM business unit, leading our effoffff rts to
exploit the significant addressable market potential. Leading the patient engagement business unit as the General
Manager isChristinaHendricks, drivingCPSI’s strategy, execution, andcustomer satisfaction initiatives in thepatient
engagement market. The three newly appointed business unit leaders report to 32-year CPSI veteran David Dye,
who transitioned from Chief Growth Officer to Chief Operating Officer of CPSI in October 2022. At the executive
level, Dawn Severance was named the Company’s new Chief Sales Officer, with responsibility foff r the sales function
across all business units aswe continue building upon the foff undation of sales excellence across the organization.We
are foff rtunate to have these exceptional leaders as we foff ster a more holistic view across business units, facilitating
collaboration and innovation and advancing operational excellence.

Retention and satisfaction of our EHR customer base is critical to our success and an integral part of our growth
strategy. We believe it is essential that our customers have a reliable understanding of our solutions, as well as the
peoplebehind thesolutions, toensureour roleasa trustedbusinesspartner.A toppriority foff r2022was tostrengthen
our relationships with our customers, which is especially important aswe foff cus on cross–selling opportunities within
our existing customer base. Through regional customer events and individual site visits, our senior management
team and client-facing executives made invaluable connections as we were able to share our vision with our
customers and, in turn, hear direct feff edback. For 2022, our customer retention rate was 95 percent, consistent with
recent years, and we remain foff cused on further improvement through a high-touch strategy foff r our clients.

TruBridge continued to gain momentum in 2022 and was the key driver of our growth with an impressive 37 percent
annual increase in revenue. These results include the contributions from Healthcare Resource Group, Inc. (HRG),
acquired in March 2022, and TruCode, acquired in May 2021, both of which have strengthened our value proposition
in RCM.We are pleased with the efficient integration of HRG and its incremental sales perfoff rmance as we were able
to leverage our combined scale and extend our geographic reach. TruCode’smedical coding solutions complement
our existing suite of TruBridge services and solutions.Weare excited about theorganic growth trendswithTruBridge
and our ability to accelerate that growth with the rightmix of M&A execution.

Demand foff r the TruBridge HFMA Peer-Reviewed® suite of RCM offeffff rings is greater than ever in the post-COVID
environment, as providers are looking foff r ways to improve efficiencies and offeffff r the most effeffff ctive delivery of
healthcare services. As a trusted business partner, customers benefit from our commitment to streamlining
workflowswith industry-leadingproductsandservices thatsupportmoreefficientcaredelivery, assessandaugment
staffing needs, prepare foff r value-based reimbursement and improve the patient experience. It is clear that RCM is
the key to our future growth as providers will increasingly look to trusted partners like CPSI to simplifyff their revenue
cycle needs.

Cross-selling RCM and other TruBridge offeffff rings into our EHR customer base is a primary foff cus of our growth
strategy. In 2022, wemade the investment necessary to improveour client executive to customer ratio to less than a
third of what it has been. This investment will further ensure customer satisfaction and help unlock the tremendous
growth prospects foff r TruBridge with an estimated $400 million cross-sell opportunity. In addition to the growing
demand within our traditional EHR customer base, we continue to pursue TruBridge sales outside our network foff r
hospitals using another EHR, expanding ourmarket reach to hospitals of 400 beds or under. There are an estimated
4,500 hospitals thatmeet this criteria, representing a total addressablemarket of roughly $12 billion.



While the Evident brand represents the preeminent EHR solution of choice in our market of rural and critical access
hospitals, our bookings reflect a mature market with a relatively high rate of penetration. However, we have a rich
tradition in serving this market in community health care, and we continue to focus on adoption and utilization of
our products that add value for our long-term customers. By moving the EHR business into the public cloud, we are
better positioned to take advantage of new technologies as they become available andmeet the changing needs of
our customers on anexpedited basis.Weare proud to be a trusted partner to an expansive client base usingour EHR,
which we view as a solid foundation to cross-sell additional value-added RCM services and higher-margin products.

We also made progress in 2022 in driving greater operational efficiencies and margin expansion across CPSI. We
believe our efforts to unlock value through automation and the acceleration of our offff ffshore initiative are integral toff
meetingourobjectives.At theendof theyear,wehad100offshoreemployees inplacewithambitiousgoals toexpandffff
to400offshoreemployeesby theendof2023. Webelieve this shift offff ffersmore scalability andoperating leverage forffff
CPSI, while affirming our commitment to provide quality service and outstanding support to our customers across
our businesses.

Our focus on digital innovation has created another growth opportunity centered around our patient engagement
products and services.While still in theearly stages,we are encouraged that our customer satisfaction and retention
rates remain high, and we have expanded our worldwide user base. We continued to gain traction following the
launch of our patient engagement platform in a large U.S.-based healthcare system earlier this year, deeper growth
in the Canadian market and our implementation in the Middle East. Operationally, the investments we have made
are beginning to reap rewards with growing interest in our unique digital front door offering that unites data acrossffff
multiple EHRs, alongwith a suite of supporting analytics that support value-based care, improve outcomes, activate
patients, and increasepatient loyalty and satisfaction. Bygivingproviders andpatients the information and tools they
need to work together to advance patient care, we help our customers achieve a wide range of clinical and business
objectives.

Weareproudoftheprogresswemadeoverthepastyearaswestayedtruetoourmissiontobuildthrivingcommunities
wherever we go. We have the critical solutions our customers need to support both the financial and clinical side of
healthcare delivery, and we will continue to work hard to earn their trust every day. Through vision, innovation and
collaboration, we have created a strong foundation with the right strategy to leverage ourmarket success and seize
the opportunities ahead of us. As we look to 2023, we will continue to pursue our primary growth objectives - build
on the momentum of TruBridge and our RCM solutions, achieve additional margin optimization, and focus on new
opportunities through digital innovation. We have added the right people to lead these key initiatives, and we are
profoundly grateful for theunwavering support of our exceptional teamofover 2,500CPSI employees.Wewould also
like to thank our Board of Directors and executive management team for their leadership and guidance throughout
this transformative journey. Finally, we thank our shareholders for the continued support your investment provides.

Sincerely,

Chris L. Fowler
President and Chief ExecutiveOfficer
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☒ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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OR
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defiff ned in RulRR e 405 of the Securities Act. Yes ¨ No x
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically everyrr Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to
RulRR e 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapta er) during the preceding 12 months (or forff such shorter period that the registrant was required to
submit such fiff les). Yes x No ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated fiff ler, an accelerated fiff ler, a non-accelerated fiff ler, a smaller reporting
company, or an emerging growth company. See the defiff nitions of "large accelerated fiff ler," accelerated fiff ler,” "smaller reporting company," and
"emerging growth company" in RulRR e 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):
Large accelerated fiff ler ¨ Accelerated fiff ler ý
Non-accelerated fiff ler ¨ Smaller reporting company ☐
Emerging Growth Company ☐
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period forff complying with any
new or revised fiff nancial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has fiff led a report on and attestation to its management's assessment of the effff eff ctiveness of its internal
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWAR RD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forff ward-looking statements within the meaning of the "safeff harborr " provisions of
the Private Securities Litigation Reforff m Act of 1995. These forff ward-looking statements can be identififf ed generally by the use
of forff ward-looking terminology and words such as "expects," "anticipates," "estimates," "believes," "predicts," "intends,"
"plans," "potential," "may," "continue," "should," "will" and words of comparabla e meaning. Without limiting the generality of
the preceding statement, all statements in this Annual Report relating to estimated and projected earnings, margins, costs,
expenditurt es, cash flff ows, growth rates and futff urt e fiff nancial results are forff ward-looking statements. We caution investors that
any such forff ward-looking statements are only predictions and are not guarantees of futff urt e perforff mance. Certain risks,
uncertainties and other faff ctors may cause actuat l results to diffff eff r materially frff om those projected in the forff ward-looking
statements. The folff lowing is a summaryrr of the principal risks that could adversely affff eff ct our business, fiff nancial condition,
results of operations and cash flff ows.

Risii ks Relatll ett d tott Our InII dustrtt yr
• a public health crisis, such as the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, and related economic disruptr ion;
• saturt ation of our target market and hospital consolidations;
• unfaff vorabla e economic or market conditions that may cause a decline in spending forff inforff mation technology and

services;
• signififf cant legislative and regulatoryrr uncertainty in the healthcare industry;rr
• exposure to liabia lity forff faff ilure to comply with regulatoryrr requirements;

Risii ks Relatll ett d tott Our Businii ess
• transition to a subscription-based recurring revenue model and modernization of our technology;
• competition with companies that have greater fiff nancial, technical and marketing resources than we have;
• potential futff urt e acquisitions that may be expensive, time consuming, and subject to other inherent risks;
• our abia lity to attract and retain qualififf ed personnel;
• disruptr ion frff om periodic restrucrr turt ing of our sales forff ce;
• our potential inabia lity to manage our growth in the new markets we may enter;
• exposure to numerous and oftff en conflff icting laws, regulations, policies, standards or other requirements through our

international business activities;
• potential litigation against us and investigations;
• our use of offff sff hore third-party resources;

Risii ks Relatll ett d tott Our PrPP oductstt and SeSS rvices
• potential faff ilure to develop new products or enhance current products that keep pace with market demands;
• exposure to claims if our products faff il to provide accurate and timely inforff mation forff clinical decision-making;
• exposure to claims forff breaches of security and virusr es in our systems;
• undetected errors or problems in new products or enhancements;
• our potential inabia lity to convince customers to migrate to current or futff urt e releases of our products;
• faff ilure to maintain our margins and service rates;
• increase in the percentage of total revenues represented by service revenues, which have lower gross margins;
• exposure to liabia lity in the event we provide inaccurate claims data to payors;
• exposure to liabia lity claims arising out of the licensing of our softff ware and provision of services;
• dependence on licenses of rights, products and services frff om third parties;
• a faff ilure to protect our intellectuat l property rights;
• exposure to signififf cant license feff es or damages forff intellectuat l property infrff ingement;
• service interruptr ions resulting frff om loss of power and/or telecommunications capaa bia lities;

Risii ks Relatll ett d tott Our InII debtett dness
• our potential inabia lity to secure additional fiff nancing on faff vorabla e terms to meet our futff urt e capia tal needs;
• substantial indebtedness that may adversely affff eff ct our business operations;
• our abia lity to incur substantially more debt;
• pressures on cash flff ow to service our outstanding debt;
• restrictive terms of our credit agreement on our current and futff urt e operations;

Risii ks Relatll ett d tott Our ComCC mon StSS octt k and Othtt er GeGG neral Risii ks
• changes in and interprr etations of fiff nancial accounting matters that govern the measurement of our perforff mance;
• the potential forff our goodwill or intangible assets to become impaired;
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• quarterly flff uctuat tions in our fiff nancial results due to various faff ctors;
• volatility in our stock price;
• faff ilure to maintain effff eff ctive internal control over fiff nancial reporting;
• lack of employment or non-competition agreements with most of our key personnel;
• inherent limitations in our internal control over fiff nancial reporting;
• vulnerabia lity to signififf cant damage frff om naturt al disasters;
• exposure to market risk related to interest rate changes; and
• potential material adverse effff eff cts due to macroeconomic conditions.

For more inforff mation abouta the risks described abovea and other risks affff eff cting us, see "Risk Factors" beginni gng on pagge 23 of
thihis Annuall Report. We allso cautiion iinvestors thhat thhe forff wardd-ll kiooki gng iinforff matiion ddescriibbedd hhereiin represents our outlook
only as of this date, and we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forff ward-looking statements to reflff ect events or
developments aftff er the date of this Annual Report.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

CPSI is a leading provider of healthcare solutions and services forff community hospitals, their clinics and other healthcare
systems. Founded in 1979, CPSI is the parent of six companies – Evident, LLC ("Evident"), American HealthTech, Inc.
("AHT"), TruBr ridge, LLC ("TruBr ridge"), iNetXperts, Corp.r d/b// a Get Real Health, TruCrr ode LLC ("TruCr ode"), and Healthcare
Resource Group, Inc. ("HRG"). Our combined companies are focff used on helping improve the health of the communities we
serve, connecting communities forff a better patient care experience, and improving the fiff nancial operations of our customers.
Evident provides comprehensive acute care electronic healthcare record ("EHR") solutions forff community hospitals and their
affff iff liated clinics. AHT is one of the nation’s largest providers of post-acute care EHR solutions and services forff post-acute care
faff cilities. TruBrr ridge focff uses on providing business, consulting and managed inforff mation technology (" IT") services, along
with its complete revenue cycle management ("RCM") solution, forff all care settings. Get Real Health focff uses on solutions
aimed at improving patient engagement forff individuals and healthcare providers. TruCr ode provides medical coding softff ware
that enabla es complete and accurate code assignment forff proper reimbursement. HRG provides specialized RCM solutions forff
faff cilities of all sizes.

Commencii gng wiithh thhe fourff thh quarter of 2022, thhe Compa yny operates iits bbusiiness iin thhree operatii gng seggments, whihichh are allso
our reportablbla e seggments: RCM, EHR, a dnd Patiient E gngaggement. Thhe ii dindi ividduall compa inies alliiggn wiithh thhe reportii gng seggments a dnd
contriibbute towardds thhe combibinedd focff us of iimpr iovi gng thhe hheallthh of thhe comm iunitiies we serve as f lolff llows:

• Thhe RCM reportii gng seggment iincll dudes TruBrr riidgedge, HRG, a dnd TruCr dode, a dnd focff uses on pr iovididi gng bbusiiness managgement,
cons lultii gng, a dnd managgedd IT serviices all gong wiithh iits com lplete RCM s lolutiion forff allll care settii gngs, reggardldless of thheiir
ppriimaryyrr hheallthhcare iinforff matiion s lolutiions pr iovidder.

• Thhe EHR seggment iincll dudes E ividdent a dnd AHT, a dnd pr ioviddes comprehhensiive acute a dnd post-acute care EHR s lolutiions
a dnd rellatedd ser ivices forff comm iunityy hhos ipitalls, thheiir physphysiiciian cllii inics, a dnd skikilllledd nursii gng a dnd assiistedd llii ivi gng faff ciilliitiies.

• Thhe Patiient E gngaggement seggment offff eff rs comprehhensiive patiient e gngaggement a dnd empowerment tech lhnol gyogy s lolutiions
thhroughough Get Reall Heallthh to iimprove patiient outcomes a dnd e gngaggement strategigies wiithh care pr iovidders.

Our companies currently support community hospitals and other healthcare systems with a geographia cally diverse patient mix
within the domestic community healthcare market. Our target market forff our RCM, EHR, and Patient Engagement solutions
includes community hospitals with feff wer than 400 acute care beds, and their clinics, as well as independent or small to medium
sized chains of skilled nursing faff cilities. Approximately 98% of our acute care hospital EHR customer base is comprised of
hospitals with feff wer than 100 beds. The target market forff our post-acute care solutions consists of appra oximately 15,500 skilled
nursing faff cilities that are either independently owned or part of a larger management group with multiple faff cilities. During
2022, we generated revenues of $326.6 million frff om the sale of our products and services.

See Note 18 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements included herein forff additional inforff mation on our three reportabla e
segments.

Industry Dynamics

The healthcare industryrr is the largest industryrr in the United States economy, comprising appra oximately 18.3% of the U.S. gross
domestic product in 2021 according to the Centers forff Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS"). CMS estimates that national
health spending is projected to grow at an average annual rate of 5.1% through 2030 and will reach $6.8 trillion in 2030.

Hospital expenditurt es grew by 4.4% to appra oximately $1.3 trillion in 2021, slower than the 6.2% growth rate in 2020.
According to the American Hospital Association’s AHAHH HosHH pis tal Statisii tics, 2021 EdiEE tion, there are appra oximately 4,700
community hospitals in the United States that are in our target market of hospitals with feff wer than 400 beds, with
appra oximately 2,900 of those having feff wer than 100 acute care beds. In addition, there is a market of small specialty hospitals
that focff us on discrete medical areas such as surgery,rr rehabia litation and long-term acute care.

The healthcare industryrr is constantly challenged by changing economic dynamics, increased regulation and pressure to improve
the quality of care. More recently, hospitals and health systems have continued to navigate fiff nancial and operational pressures
that were exacerbar ted by the COVID-19 pandemic, including the high costs associated with preparing forff a surge of COVID-19
patients and resource-intensive treatment, added expense due to supply chain and labora market disruptr ions, and loss of revenue
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due to lower patient volumes forff nonemergent care. These faff ctors create an environment of escalating costs of care which,
because of their heavy reliance on Medicare and Medicaid programs, our hospital clients have limited abia lity to recover through
reimbursement changes. However, we believe healthcare providers can successfulff ly address these issues with the help of our
advanced medical inforff mation systems, including our RCM solutions and our suite of complementaryrr services. Specififf c
examples of the challenges and opportunit ties faff cing healthcare providers include the folff lowing:

ChCC anginii g Economic DyD namics

The healthcare industryrr is heavily inflff uenced by legislative and regulatoryrr initiatives of the feff deral and state governments.
These initiatives have a particularly signififf cant impact on our customer base, as community hospitals generate a signififf cant
portion of their revenues frff om benefiff ciaries of the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Consequently, even small changes in
feff deral and state programs have a disproportionate effff eff ct on community hospitals as compared to larger faff cilities where greater
portions of their revenues are generated frff om benefiff ciaries of private insurance programs.

Medicare and Medicaid fundiff ng and reimbursements flff uctuat te annually and, with projected growth in healthcare costs, will
continue to be scrutrr inized as the feff deral and state governments attempt to control the costs and growth of the program. As the
feff deral government seeks to furff ther limit defiff cit spending in the futff urt e due to fiff scal restraints, it will likely continue to place
constraints on healthcare spending programs such as Medicare and Medicaid matching grants, which will place furff ther cost
pressures on hospitals and other healthcare providers. Further reductions in reimbursements frff om these programs could lead to
hospitals postponit ng expenditurt es on inforff mation technology and may motivate hospitals to revisit long-held cost strucr turt es,
which could positively impact demand forff RCM and other services.

While legislative and regulatoryrr initiatives are placing signififf cant pressure on the related reimbursements, community hospitals
are also faff ced with likely increased demand forff Medicare and Medicaid services. The challenges posed by this dual-threat are
complicated by the shiftff away frff om volume-based reimbursement towards value-based reimbursement, linking reimbursement
to quality measurements and outcomes. The increasing prevalence of high deductible health plans and value-based
reimbursement models is transforff ming domestic healthcare deliveryrr into a more patient-centric experience. This transforff mation
brings abouta new and increased data needs, resulting in additional regulatoryrr demands forff data that patients fiff nd usefulff in
decision-making. These new regulatoryrr demands increase regulatoryrr risks and compliance burdens forff CPSI and our clients,
but also pose opportunit ties forff CPSI to provide additional value-added products and services to our target market.

To compete in the continually changing healthcare environment, providers are increasingly using technology in order to help
maximize the effff iff ciency of their business practices, to assist in enhancing patient care, and to maintain the privacy and security
of patient inforff mation. Healthcare providers are placing increased demands on their inforff mation systems to accomplish these
tasks. We believe that inforff mation systems must faff cilitate management of patient inforff mation across administrative, fiff nancial
and clinical tasks and must also effff eff ctively interfaff ce with a variety of payor organizations within the increasingly complex
reimbursement environment.

ThTT e American Recoveryr and Reinii vestmtt ent Act of 2009

In 2009, the U.S. feff deral government enacted the American Recoveryrr and Reinvestment Act (the "ARRARR "), which included the
Health Inforff mation Technology forff Economic and Clinical Health Act ("HITECH"). HITECH authorized the EHR incentive
program, which provided signififf cant incentive fundiff ng to physicians and hospitals that have adopted and are appra opriately
using technology such as our EHR solutions. The end result of the ARRARR has been to accelerate the adoption of EHR
technology nationwide, signififf cantly increasing industry-rr wide penetration rates and our penetration rates within our existing
customer base forff our current menu of appla ications. As a result, the revenue opportunit ties forff new customer additions have
greatly diminished, as have our opportunit ties forff add-on sales to existing customers.

ConCC titt nii ued Push forff ImII prm oved PatPP itt ent CarCC e

With the increased pressure to improve the quality of healthcare and reduce costs, there is a general shiftff towards value-based
reimbursement, which increases the demand forff inforff mation technology solutions forff clinical decision support. This migration
toward clinical decision support solutions is furff ther supported by the ARRARR .

In the faff ce of decreasing revenue and increasing pressure to improve patient care, healthcare providers are in need of
management tools and related services that (1) increase effff iff ciency in the deliveryrr of healthcare services, (2) reduce medical
errors, (3) effff eff ctively track the cost of delivering services so that those costs can be properly managed and (4) increase the
speed and rate of reimbursement. A hospital’s faff ilure to adequately invest in a modern medical inforff mation system could result
in feff wer patient refeff rrals, cost ineffff iff ciencies, lower than expected reimbursement, increased malpractice risk and possible
regulatoryrr infrff actions. Additionally, we believe that the industryrr will continue to increase its utilization of third party services
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that contribute to the achievement of these and other objectives necessaryrr forff success in the current environment. We believe
these dynamics should allow forff futff urt e revenue growth forff both our inforff mation technology solutions and our complementaryrr
suite of services.

COCC VIVV DII -19 PanPP demic

Following heroic effff orff ts by healthcare providers on the frff ontlines and advances in technology and science bringing vaccines to
market in an unprecedented timefrff ame, the healthcare industryrr continues to deal with the lingering effff eff cts of the COVID-19
pandemic, including fiff nancial disruptr ions and critical labora shortages. Looking beyond 2022, we believe there will be continued
pressure on hospital staffff iff ng, creating greater demand forff automation and machine learning to allow staffff to focff us on patient
care. Payors are experiencing staffff iff ng issues, similar to hospitals, which is causing delays in authorizations, denials and
extended processing times forff appea als. As a result of these issues and pressures, we expect ongoing and continued growth in
demand forff our RCM and related services.

The pandemic has also heightened patient interest and demand forff digital engagement. While purchasing demand forff digital
patient engagement solutions in the United States has not yet fulff ly materialized, we believe healthcare leaders will embrace the
digital acceleration, identifyiff ng new channels to connect with patients and strengthen the patient experience over the next feff w
years. Our digital frff ont door technology helps create effff iff ciencies and patient engagement that lead to greater patient connections
and improved care. We also expect to see continued health care policy legislation focff used on patients, like pricing transparency
and the No Surprr ises Act, which is intended to address unexpected gapsa in insurance coverage that result in "surprrr ise medical
bills" when patients unknowingly obtain medical services (such as emergency services) frff om out-of-ff network providers.

Strategy

Our primaryrr objectives are to increase the market share of our RCM solutions and services, maintain a strong retention rate
within our EHR client base while pursuing competitive and vulnerabla e EHR replacement opportunit ties, and furff ther establa ish
our position as a leading provider of patient engagement solutions. These objectives are all in support of our corporrr ate strategy,
centered around the folff lowing components:

CorCC e Growthtt

Our core growth initiatives include cross-selling RCM solutions and services into our existing sizeabla e EHR client base and
expanding our RCM market share with sales to new community hospitals and larger health systems.

Over the course of our more than 40-year history,rr we have developed a signififf cant customer base of community hospitals and
skilled nursing faff cilities. This customer base is our most valuabla e asset, providing not only the critical mass necessaryrr to scale
our development, client support and service resources to meet the evolving needs of our customers, but also serving as feff rtile
ground forff our cross-selling effff orff ts forff additional value-added solutions and services. Chief among our cross-sell opportunit ties
is RCM, where we utilize our industry-rr leading RCM services and solutions to improve the fiff nancial health of our EHR clients
by improving cash flff ow metrics in the faff ce of the myriad cost and reimbursement challenges faff cing healthcare organizations.
Our operational expertise and technology tools provide proven results in improving claim acceptance rates, accelerating
payments frff om third party payors, and increasing private pay collections.

MarMM gir n OptO imizii ation

These effff orff ts support the core growth effff orff ts as we routinely seek, fiff nd and execute on initiatives that modernize our business,
increasing our effff iff ciency and resulting in cost savings that allow us to reinvest in additional growth opportunit ties.

Chief among our margin optimization initiatives are parallel workstreams dedicated to (1) standardizing and streamlining
existing workflff ows by leveraging automation to improve both the accuracy and effff iff ciency of our services, and (2)
systematically leveraging offff sff hore resources to mitigate the high costs and disruptr ion risks associated with single-source talent
markets. Talent availabia lity has proven to be a signififf cant challenge forff our mostly-domestic customer base, and our
nationwide reach does little to mitigate this nationwide dilemma. With talent scarcity a real risk and prospects forff growth that
require signififf cant scale, the successfulff execution of our growth prospects requires both broadening our talent pool beyond the
domestic market and ensuring talent resources are put to their highest and best use.
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Digii tal InnovII ation

In addition to our core growth and margin optimization initiatives is a focff us on identifyiff ng new innovation and larger adjacency
opportunit ties, driven by demand forff patient engagement, industryrr insights, reporting and analytics technology.

As today's patients and providers have a more collabora ative appra oach to healthcare, our patient engagement offff eff rings provide a
secure ecosystem that supports home care, clinicians, and the patients they serve by providing tools and analytics to provide a
complete view of patients' health and improve health outcomes. In addition to supporting improved care, our patient
engagement platforff m provides fiff nancial benefiff ts to providers and hospital systems through increased revenue opportunit ties and
digital transforff mation of workflff ows to fiff ll staffff iff ng gapsa . This platforff m gives healthcare providers the insights and tools they
need to provide effff iff cient, cost-effff eff ctive care as they collabora ate with today's growing population of engaged patients.

Underpir nning each of the three components to our strategy is a capia tal allocation strategy designed to affff orff d the flff exibility
necessaryrr to be adapta ive and opportunit stic with futff urt e investment decisions. Such flff exibility is necessaryrr if we are to continue
to bring timely products and services to a rapia dly changing healthcare landscapea . We serve the needs of multiple stakeholder
groups as customers benefiff t frff om the related products and services, our employees benefiff t frff om expanded opportunit ties forff
development, and our stockholders benefiff t frff om the increasing diversity in revenue sources.

Our Products and Services

RCMCC

We offff eff r RCM services through TruBr ridge, our wholly-owned subsidiary,rr which can be grouped into the folff lowing categories:

• Revenue Cycle Management Productsy g . Our RCM solutions empower providers and caregivers in hospitals,
healthcare systems and skilled nursing organizations to accelerate their revenue cycle through a suite of
comprehensive, web-based solutions designed to improve fiff nancial operations and staffff productivity and
increase reimbursement. Our RCM products include the folff lowing offff eff rings:

◦ Patient Liabia lity Estimatesy . Improve patient satisfaff ction, maximize point-of-ff service collections, and
equip staffff with the abia lity to provide transparent pricing with the Patient Liabia lity Estimate module.

◦ Eligibility Verififf cationg y . Reduce claim denials and carrier reje ections by perforff ming on-demand
eligibility look-ups, assuring the care provided is covered.

◦ Claim Scrubbir ng and Submissiong . A powerfulff claim management solution forff submitting, validating,
and processing a healthcare faff cility’s claims with ease and with a high quality of edits.

◦ Remittance Managementg . Remittance advice can be effff orff tlessly gathered and managed with the
Electronic Remittance Advice Retrieval and Remittance Management modules, simplifyiff ng workflff ow
and involvement.

◦ Denial/Audit Managementg . Equips healthcare faff cilities with the tools necessaryrr to combat denied and
audited claims, assisting organizations in recovering lost revenue.

◦ Contract Managementg . Allows healthcare faff cilities to take control over complex healthcare contracts
byby prospectiivellyy priicii gng everyyrr cllaiim s bubmiittedd to payyers, retrospectiivellyy priicii gng everyyrr remiittance to
ensure proper payyment was receiivedd, a dnd m dodellii gng proposedd contract terms ddurii gng payyer neggotiiatiions.

• Revenue Cyyclle Managgement Ser ivicesy g . Our RCM ser ivices span a hheallthhcare enterprrr iise’s revenue cyyclle a dnd
ppr iovidde clliients wiithh a str gong allternatiive to iin-hhouse operatiions. Thhese ser ivices lleveragge our ddeep ser ivice a dnd
tech lhnol gyogy experiience a dnd are ddesiiggnedd to allllow clliients to streamlliine thheiir addmii inistratiive staffff iiff gng whihille
iimpr iovi gng operatiionall effff iiff ciienciies. Our RCM ser ivices iincll dude thhe f lolff llowii gng ser ivice offff eff rii gngs: Accounts
Receiivablbla e Managgement, Priivate Payy Ser ivice, Medidicall C diodi gng, Revenue Cyyclle Cons lultii gng, a dnd othher
addidditiionall Insurance a dnd Patiient Biillllii gng Ser ivices.
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• Consulting and Business Management Servicesg g . Our consulting and business management services are
designed to help healthcare organizations by assessing their needs, setting goals, and creating an action plan
to achieve those goals, and, if needed, implementing the action plan. Many of our profeff ssional consultants
have decades of experience and all are skilled in adopting new technologies, redesigning processes, educating
staffff ,ff and providing interim or on-going management services. Our consulting and business management
services include the folff lowing service offff eff rings: Consulting, Business Intelligence, Staffff iff ng, and
Administrative.

• Managed IT Servicesg . Our managed IT services provide a range of services designed to meet the IT needs of
community healthcare enterprrr ises. The pace of technological change can be overwhelming. Our services
allow clients to affff orff dabla y maintain an advanced IT infrff astrucr turt e, meet regulatoryrr requirements, and reduce
risk. Our managed IT services include the folff lowing service offff eff rings: Cloud Services, Backup and
Recovery,rr Collabora ation and Connectivity, Security Services, Systems Management, and Help Desk.

• Encoder Solutions. TruCr ode by TruBr ridge develops, sells and supports encoder technology forff the hospital,
consulting and payer markets. TruCrr ode is known forff its knowledge-based coding methodology, which
presents coding guidance and refeff rences at the point of coding, helping to improve coding accuracy and
productivity.

EHEE RHH

Acute Care Softff ware Systems

Through our wholly-owned subsidiary,rr Evident, we offff eff r healthcare IT solutions designed to cater to the specififf c needs of
community hospital organizations under the softff ware solution platforff ms Thrive and Centriq.

Thrive

Within Thrive, we offff eff r a fulff l array of softff ware appla ications using one fulff ly integrated system designed to streamline the
flff ow of inforff mation to the primaryrr funcff tional areas of community hospitals. We intend to continue to enhance our existing
softff ware appla ications and develop new appla ications as required by evolving industryrr standards and the changing needs of
our clients. Pursuant to our client support agreements, we provide our clients with softff ware enhancements and upgrades
periodically on a when-and-if-ff availabla e basis. See "Acute Care Support and Maintenance Services." These enhancements
enabla e each client, regardless of its original installation date, to have the benefiff t of our most advanced products availabla e.
Our softff ware appla ications within Thrive:

• provide automated processes that improve clinical workflff ow and support clinical decision-making;

• allow healthcare providers to effff iff ciently input and easily access the most current patient medical data in order
to improve quality of care and patient safeff ty;

• integrate clinical, fiff nancial and patient inforff mation to promote effff iff cient use of time and resources, while
eliminating dependence on papea r medical records;

• provide tools that permit healthcare organizations to analyze past perforff mance, model new plans forff the futff urt e
and measure and monitor the effff eff ctiveness of those plans;

• provide forff rapia d and cost-effff eff ctive implementation, whether through the installation of an in-house system or
through our Softff ware as a Service ("SaaS") services; and

• increase the flff ow of inforff mation by replacing centralized data over which there is limited control with broad-
based, secure access by clinical and administrative personnel to data relevant to their funcff tional areas.

Our softff ware appla ications within Thrive are grouped forff support purposrr es according to the folff lowing general funcff tional
categories described below:

• Patient Managementg . Our patient management softff ware enabla es a hospital to identifyff a patient at any point in
the healthcare deliveryrr system and to collect and maintain patient inforff mation throughout the entire process of
patient care on an enterprr ise-wide basis. Thrive's single databaa se strucrr turt e permits authorized hospital
personnel to simultaneously access appra opriate portions of a patient’s record frff om any point on the system.
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Our patient management softff ware appla ications include: Regie sii trt ation, Patient Accounting, HeHH althtt InfII orff mation
ManageMM ment,t Patient IndeII xee ,x EntEE erprr isii e WiWW de Scheduling, ContCC rt act ManageMM ment,t and Qualitytt ImII prm ovement.

• Financial Accountingg. Our fiff nancial accounting softff ware provides a variety of business offff iff ce appla ications
designed to effff iff ciently track and coordinate inforff mation needed forff managerial decision-making. Our
fiff nancial accounting softff ware appla ications include: ExEE ecutive InfII orff mation Sysyy tem, General Ledger,r Accountstt
Payable, Payroll/ll P// ersrr onnel,l TiTT me and Attendance, Electrt onic Direct Depose itstt , HumHH an Resources, Budgeting,
FiFF xii ed Assetstt , and MatMM erialsll ManageMM ment.

• Clinical. Our clinical softff ware automates record keeping and reporting forff many clinical funcff tions including
labora atory,rr radiology, physical therapy,a respiratoryrr care and pharmacy. These products eliminate tedious
papea rwork, calculations and written documentation while allowing forff easy retrieval of patient data and
statistics. Our clinical softff ware appla ications include: Laboratoryr InfII orff mation Sysyy tems, Laboratoryr InsII trt ument
IntII erfr acff es, Radiology InfII orff mation Sysyy tems, ImII ageLee ink Picture Archiving and ComCC munication Sysyy tem
(P(( APP CS)CC , Physyy ical TheTT rapy and Respis ratoryr CarCC e, and Pharmacyc .

• Patient Care. Our patient care appla ications allow hospitals to create computerized "patient fiff les" in place of
the traditional papea r fiff le systems. This softff ware enabla es physicians, nurses and other hospital staffff to improve
the quality of patient care through increased access to patient inforff mation, assistance with projected care
requirements and feff edback regarding patient needs. Our softff ware also addresses current safeff ty initiatives in
the healthcare industryrr such as the transition frff om written prescriptions and physician orders to computerized
physician order entry.rr Our patient care softff ware appla ications include: Order EntEE rt yr /yy R// esultstt Repore ting, Point-
of-ff CarCC e Sysyy tem, Patient Acuitytt ,yy CharCC tLtt ink®, ComCC putm erizii ed Physyy ician Order EntEE rtt yr (C(( PCC OEOO )E , MeMM dication
VeVV rifi iff cation, Resident Assessment InsII trtt umentstt , ThrTT ive Provider EHEE RHH , Outrt each Client Access, Electrt onic
ForFF ms, Physyy ician Documentation, and EmEE erger ncyc Depare tmtt ent Sysyy tem.

• Enterprr ise Applicationsp pp . We provide softff ware appla ications that support the products described abovea and are
usefulff to all areas of the hospital. These appla ications include: ad hoc reporting, automatic batch and real-time
system backups, an integrated faff x system, archival data repository,rr document scanning and Microsoftff Offff iff ce
integration, and an Application Portal.

Centriqq

The Centriq platforff m was designed to be an intuit tive user interfaff ce that is easy forff clinicians to use and attractive to both
patients and clinicians. Additionally, as a web-based platforff m, users are abla e to connect to the system frff om any device that
is connected to the internet. Ease of use combined with Centriq’s abia lity to centralize data frff om various care areas provide
the end user with a powerfulff tool to view past and present patient inforff mation with ease. Each system or appla ication offff eff rs
a broad set of feff aturt es and funcff tionalities that can help clinics reduce costs, increase revenue, and improve administrative
and clinical staffff effff iff ciency, all while enhancing patient care and safeff ty. Key Centriq capaa bia lities include:

• Computerized Practitioner Order Entryrr ("CPOE")p y ( ). The cornerstone of inpatient EHR systems, CPOE
promotes user adoption by including medication interaction alerts, access to relevant labora atoryrr results,
duplicate order checking, customizabla e order sets and protocols, and order templates containing pre-populated
screens.

• Clinical Documentation. This system securely enabla es a patient’s caregivers to view the vital signs, intake-
outputt values, progress notes, and nursing tasks that are entered into the patient’s EHR.

• Emergency Departmentg y p . This system expedites and simplififf es registration, patient tracking, order
management, assessments, and other activities in a faff st-paced environment.

• Labora atoryrry. This system automates routine tasks such as laba order processing and tracking, enabla ing the
practitioner to focff us on the results and ultimately better patient care.

• Radiologygy. This appla ication delivers faff ster turt naround times and enhanced communications among caregivers
by automatically processing radiology orders, managing and tracking images, and generating reports.

• Pharmacyy. This appla ication helps pharmacies manage all aspects of medication verififf cation and dispensing,
including order coordination, interaction checks, administration, and charging.
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• Financial Accountingg. A hospital fiff nancial accounting management solution that helps community hospitals
gain better insight and perspective on their costs.

• Patient Managementg . An accounting system to better manage patient inforff mation and automate the hospital
billing process.

• Ambulatoryrr Softff ware Solutionsy . Enabla es clinicians to focff us on providing high-quality patient care by
streamlining the management of patient data.

Post-acute Care Softff ware Systems

CPSI entered into the post-acute care market with the acquisition of AHT in Januaryrr 2016. Our comprehensive, long-term care
management solutions include:

• Care Managementg . This integrated offff eff ring helps manage the deliveryrr of quality care, collects and reports on
resident inforff mation, and manages compliance risk. Core modules include:WorWW krr CeCC nter,r Clinical,l Smart
CharCC ting Order Adminisii trt ation (P(( oint of CarCC e)e , Qualitytt Assurance, TheTT rapy TrTT acking, Supplies TrTT acking,
and Disii ease State ManageMM ment.

• Financial and Enterprrr ise Managementp g . This comprehensive set of fiff nancial solutions enabla es customers to
improve cash flff ow and better manage costs. Core modules include: Accountstt Payable, General Ledger,r
Payroll,l FiFF nancial ManageMM ment,t TrTT ust FundsFF , and EntEE erprr isii e ManageMM ment.

Acute Care Support and Maintenance Services

Aftff er EHR installation, we provide softff ware appla ication support, hardware maintenance, continuing education and related
services pursuant to a support agreement using our collabora ative support model. The folff lowing describes services provided to
customers using Thrive and Centriq:

• Total System Supporty pp . We believe the quality of continuing customer support is one of the most critical
considerations in the selection of an inforff mation system provider. We provide hardware, technical and
softff ware support forff all aspects of our system, which gives us the flff exibility to take the necessaryrr course of
action to resolve any issue. Unlike our competitors who use third-party services forff hardware and softff ware
support, we provide a single, convenient and effff iff cient resource forff all of our customers’ system support needs.
In order to minimize the impact of a system problem, we train our customer service personnel to be
technically profiff cient, courteous and prompt. Because a properly funcff tioning inforff mation system is crucrr ial to
a hospital’s operations, our support teams are availabla e 24 hours per day to assist customers with any problem
that may arise. Customers can also use the Internet to directly access our support system.

• National Client Confeff rence. All of our customers have the opportunit ty to attend our annual National Client
Confeff rence. CPSI hosts this confeff rence to provide educational sessions, product demonstrations, and one-on-
one time with appla ication experts. The confeff rence also allows important time forff networking among
customers and CPSI staffff across all business platforff ms. As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, our National
Client Confeff rence was held virtuat lly in 2020 and 2021. In May 2022, the confeff rence returt ned to an in-person
event.

• Continuing Educationg . Effff eff ctive learning tools are a key faff ctor in successfulff EHR adoption and allowing
clients to get the most out of a softff ware investment. Thereforff e, ongoing learning and training is a cornerstone
to our “total solution” and a key competitive diffff eff rentiator. Our ongoing learning and training offff eff rings also
address some of the unique needs of community hospitals - limited resources and staffff with cross-department
responsibilities and budget and time constraints - all of which require a customized appra oach to learning and
training. To meet these needs, Evident offff eff rs customers with online content that can be accessed at any time,
scheduled online interactive classroom presentations, on-campus training at our faff cilities, educational
sessions during user group confeff rences, and scheduled regional training sessions.

• Softff ware Releases. We are committed to providing our customers with softff ware and technology solutions that
will continue to meet their inforff mation system needs. To accomplish this purposrr e, we continually work to
enhance and improve our appla ication programs. As part of this effff orff t, forff each customer covered under our
general support agreement, we provide softff ware updates as they become availabla e at no additional cost. We
design these enhancements to be seamlessly integrated into each customer’s existing system. The benefiff t of
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these enhancements is that each customer, regardless of its original installation date, uses the most advanced
softff ware availabla e. Through this process, we can keep our customers up-to-date with the latest operational
innovations in the healthcare industryrr as well as with changing governmental regulatoryrr requirements.
Another benefiff t of this "one system" concept is that our customer service teams can be more effff eff ctive in
responding to customer needs because they maintain a complete understanding of and faff miliarity with the one
system that all customers use.

Purchasing a new inforff mation technology system requires the expenditurt e of a substantial amount of capia tal
and other resources, and many customers are concerned that these systems will become obsolete as
technology changes. Our periodic product updates eliminate our customers’ concerns abouta system
obsolescence. We believe providing this benefiff t is a strong incentive forff potential customers to select our
products over the products of our competitors.

• Hardware Replacementp . As part of our general support agreements, we are also committed to promptly
replacing malfuncff tioning system hardware in order to minimize the effff eff ct of operational interruptr ions. By
offff eff ring replacements of all hardware used in our system, we believe we are better abla e to meet and address
all of the inforff mation technology needs of our customers.

• Cloud Electronic Health Record (Cloud EHR)( ). We offff eff r Cloud EHR services to customers via remote access
telecommunications. Cloud EHR is a "Softff ware as a Service" (or "SaaS") confiff guration and is a monthly
subscription to access and use appla ication softff ware maintained by CPSI in a cloud environment. Under this
confiff guration, a customer is abla e to obtain access to an advanced EHR without a signififf cant initial capia tal
outlay. We store and maintain all Cloud EHR customers’ critical patient and administrative data. These
customers access this inforff mation remotely through direct telecommunications connections.

• Forms and Suppliespp . In addition to our support services, we offff eff r our customers the standard and customized
forff ms that they need forff their patient and fiff nancial records, as well as the supplies necessaryrr to support the
operation of their server and peripheral equipment. Furnishing these forff ms and supplies helps us to achieve
our objective of being a one-source solution forff a hospital’s complete healthcare inforff mation system
requirements.

• Public Cloud Infrff astrucrr turt e – During 2021, we forff med a strategic partnership with Microsoftff forff Azure cloud
hosting and infrff astrucrr turt e services, with the end-goal of migrating all existing internal and client data to
Azure’s public cloud and utilizing the related infrff astrucr turt e solutions to enhance both internal and client-
faff cing processes and services. The eventuat l migration to Azure, which began during 2022, will benefiff t
customers by removing the burden of maintaining their own on-premise infrff astrucr turt e while the underlying
appla ications will operate with higher availabia lity and stabia lity, reducing unexpected downtime. This
modernized infrff astrucr turt e will open the door to futff urt e innovations and data access as well.

Post-acute Care Support and Maintenance Services

Our comprehensive and integrated solution set is backed by ongoing training and support to ensure that clients can maximize
their softff ware investment. This is demonstrated by:

• Experienced and Dedicated Support Representativesp pp p . Seasoned experts are assigned to each client site who
not only understand the challenges in the post-acute care industry,rr but know how to best address them. This
includes proactive education on the key regulatoryrr changes and requirements beforff e they impact business
operations.

• Client Portal and Trainingg. Instant, on-line access to the most up-to-date industryrr inforff mation impacting long-
term care, plus a vast array of product training opportunit ties.

• Client Enhancement Council. Access to a community of peers along with a robust set of resources and
knowledge to help clients get the most out of their investment.
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• Annual Client Symposiumy p . An opportunit ty forff clients to share best practices, gain industryrr insight on key
topics impacting post-acute care providers, network with peers, and learn more abouta current and futff urt e AHT
product and service offff eff rings.

PatPP itt ent EnEE gagement

Get Real Health offff eff rs a comprehensive digital frff ont door platforff m that both improves outcomes and promotes patient
engagement through the folff lowing tools:

• InstantPHR. Our interactive portal is designed to serve all patient populations and health organizations' needs.
Ideal forff chronic disease management, maintaining wellness goals, and meeting feff deral mandates, this
solution is flff exible enough to grow and change as industryrr trends dictate. InstantPHR can be integrated into
nearly any existing EHR system to improve care and outcomes forff individuals and profeff ssionals alike.

• CHBase™. This powerfulff tool funneff ls data frff om multiple sources into one platforff m. Patients have the abia lity
to contribute data frff om their faff vorite appsa and home health devices and combine it with clinical data frff om
providers. This combined data can then be pulled into patient-oriented health appla ications or population
health management and customer analytics. This process makes data comprehensive and relevant, thus
maximizing its value to the entire care circle. Additionally, innovators have the capaa bia lity to create, develop
and connect other systems and appla ications through the CHBase APIs.

For additional details on our products, service, and support offff eff rings, visit www.trubrr idge.com (TruBr ridge), www.evident.com
(Evident), www.healthtech.net (AHT), www.getrealhealth.com (Get Real Health), www.trucr ode.com (TruCrr ode), and
www.hrgpros.com (HRG).

For the results of operations by segment, refeff r to Note 18 of the consolidated fiff nancial statements included herein.

Softff ware Development

The healthcare inforff mation technology industryrr is characterized by rapia d technological change requiring us to continually make
investments to update, enhance and improve our products and services. Softff ware development costs are accounted forff in
accordance with ASC 350-40, IntII ernal-UsUU e Softff wtt are. We capia talize incurred labora costs forff softff ware development frff om the
time the preliminaryrr project phase is completed until the softff ware is availabla e forff general release. Research and development
costs and other computer softff ware maintenance costs related to softff ware development are expensed as incurred. We estimate
the usefulff lifeff of our capia talized softff ware and amortize its value on a straight-line basis over that estimated lifeff , which is
estimated to be fiff ve years. If the actuat l usefulff lifeff of the asset is determined to be shorter than our estimated usefulff lifeff , we will
amortize the remaining book value over the remaining usefulff lifeff , or the asset may be deemed to be impaired and, accordingly,
a write-down of the value of the asset may be recorded as a charge to earnings. Amortization begins when the related feff aturt es
are placed in service.

Total product development expenses included in our consolidated results of operations were appra oximately $30.9 million, $30.4
million and $33.5 million during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. We capia talized softff ware
development costs of appra oximately $19.1 million, $9.4 million and $3.3 million during the years ended December 31, 2022,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

See Note 5 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements included herein forff additional inforff mation on softff ware development costs.

Product Management

We utilize an Application Portfolff io Management (“APM”) frff amework to collect product metrics across all products and
business units to enhance our product strategy with richer data that highlights opportunit ties. APM anchors our investments
through identififf cation of the most pressing issues, creating alignment within the organization and investing to maximize impact.
Supplementing insights derived frff om APM, we continue to utilize our customer councils (Provider, Nursing, Chief Financial
Offff iff cer, and Client Advisory)rr to prioritize and validate our product strategy.
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Accessibility, scalabia lity and usabia lity serve as our critical product pillars, with recent investments in modern user experiences
and improved workflff ows having addressed all three. For example:

• Through data normalization effff orff ts and the creation of a unififf ed data model with our CHBase Unifyff product technology,
our abia lity to develop and deploy solutions on our cloud softff ware platforff m has accelerated. These foundaff tional instrumr ents
have accelerated the pace of innovation, which has also created additional marketplt ace opportunit ties forff our customers.

• By deploying solutions such as robotic process automation, we continuously strive to optimize user workflff ows forff our
clinical and fiff nancial solutions, increasing effff iff ciencies and delivering modern user experiences.

• By investing in new patient engagement and communication solutions, we have improved staffff ,ff provider and patient
interactions and increased patient participation in their healthcare experience.

System Implementation and Training

ConvCC ersrr ion Services. When a client purchases or leases one of our systems, we convert their existing data to the new system.
Our knowledge of hospital data processing, in conjunction with extensive in-house technical expertise, allows us to accomplish
this task in a cost effff eff ctive manner. When we install a new system, the data conversion has already occurred so that the system
is immediately operational. Our goal is forff each client to be productive on day one in order to eliminate time and money wasted
on the costly and ineffff iff cient task of maintaining the same data on parallel systems. Our services also relieve the hospital staffff of
the time-consuming burden of data conversion. The conversion process is the initial phase of our long-term partnership and
overall client experience.

TrTT aining. In order to integrate the new system and to ensure its success, we spend appra oximately sixteen weeks providing
individualized training remotely and on-site at the go-live. We provide hardware and softff ware appla ication training forff all
hospital users, including staffff members and healthcare providers, during all hospital shiftff s. We employ nurses, medical
technicians, and providers along with our technical training staffff in order to help us communicate more effff eff ctively with our
clients during the training process. This training phase is also part of the overall client experience that is provided to all of our
clients.

Clients, Sales and Marketing

TarTT ger t MarMM kerr tstt

The target market forff our RCM product and services extends beyond hospitals of less than 100 beds, where we have historically
focff used our EHR effff orff ts. We are acutely focff used on our vision of selling our RCM solution to both our existing customer base,
as well as to hospitals of 400 beds or under in the United States. There are appra oximately 4,700 of these hospitals with feff wer
than 400 beds. In addition, we market our RCM services to post-acute care faff cilities, of which there are appra oximately 15,500
in the United States.

Our strategy to grow our RCM business is centered around leveraging our establa ished sales relationships within our substantial
acute and post-acute EHR customer base in order to cross sell RCM services. In addition, we target hospitals that use
competitor EHRs and upmarket larger hospitals and health systems that manage their RCM operations in-house. The hospitals
are under increasing fiff nancial pressure caused by flff uctuat ting patient volumes, increasing self-ff pay accounts, and the lingering
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

A core initiative to our growth plan is to maintain a strong retention rate across our EHR base and pursue conservative growth
of new EHR clients, as they are critical to driving cross-sales of our RCM solutions. We target hospitals under 100 beds in the
United States that we believe are currently using a vendor that we have determined is vulnerabla e based on a variety of faff ctors.
Our goal in the ambulatoryrr market is to aggressively target physician practices in those communities where the local hospital is
a current CPSI client.

The target market forff our acute care EHR systems consists of community hospitals with feff wer than 200 acute care beds, with a
primaryrr focff us on hospitals with feff wer than 100 acute care beds. In the United States, there are appra oximately 3,800 community
hospitals with feff wer than 200 acute care beds, with appra oximately 2,900 having feff wer than 100 acute care beds. In addition, we
market our products to small specialty hospitals in the United States that focff us on discrete medical areas such as behavioral
health, surgery,rr rehabia litation and long-term acute care. Approximately 98% of our existing acute care clients are hospitals with
feff wer than 100 acute care beds.

The target market forff our post-acute care EHR solution consists of appra oximately 15,500 long-term care and skilled nursing
faff cilities in the United States. In addition, through a strategic relationship with Medtelligent, we are abla e to market an EHR forff
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assisted living faff cilities creating add-on sales opportunit ties in our direct client base and new sales opportunit ties across the
broader senior living market. Our goal in the post-acute care market is to continue to target both individual faff cilities as well as
larger multi-faff cility corporrr ate entities. In addition, we intend to extend our penetration into the post-acute care market by
offff eff ring an assisted living faff cility EHR solution that we believe will broaden the appea al of our solutions to those operators who
offff eff r multiple care settings in their organizations.

Our patient engagement effff orff ts continue to focff us on the international market through our substantial international partner
ecosystem while also initiating penetration of the domestic market. We target hospitals that use competitor EHRs, including
upmarket larger hospitals and health systems that support multiple EHRs and data sources around affff iff liated providers and
practices. The target market forff our domestic launch is acute care EHR systems of community hospitals that are part of a
hospital system. In the United States, there are appra oximately 3,400 community hospitals that faff ll into this category.rr Target
markets internationally and domestically also include government healthcare and health inforff mation exchanges focff used on
leveraging technology to drive effff iff cient care deliveryrr in addition to citizen portal initiatives.

The folff lowing tabla e presents our revenues generated frff om clients located within the U.S. ("Domestic") and all forff eign countries,
in total ("International").

Year ended December 31,
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021 2020

Sales revenues:
Domestic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 320,443 $ 274,521 $ 257,883
International(1)(( . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,108 6,605

$ 326,648 $ 280,629 $ 264,488
(1)(( IntII ernational sales revenues are related to thett CarCC ibbean nation of St. MaarMM ten, thett isii lands of TurTT krr skk and CaiCC cos,
Canada,CC EnglEE and, Austrtt alia, thett UniUU ted Arab EmEE irates and thett NeNN thett rlandsl .

SalSS ell s StSS aftt fff

We have dedicated sales organizations in all three business units: RCM, EHR, and patient engagement. Many of our sales
personnel are hired frff om within the Company and have previous experience in client support roles. We believe this experience
positions them to more effff eff ctively sell our products and services within our target markets. We have also added some talent
frff om outside the Company, creating a depth of experience we believe will enhance the effff eff ctiveness of the teams. Our sales
organizations are generally divided into fourff areas: sales management, new client sales, existing client sales and sales support
staffff .ff New client sales staffff are typically organized based on geographia c territories, though we also have sales personnel that
focff us on national accounts in our post-acute care EHR business due to the number of national chain operators in that market.
Our sales representatives who sell to existing clients have assigned clients within their territory,rr which is also geographia cally
based. Some sales representatives in our services areas are assigned specififf cally to cross-sell services into our acute care EHR
and post-acute care EHR client bases. A signififf cant portion of the compensation forff all sales personnel is commission based
except forff administrative support staffff .ff

MarMM kerr titt nii g StSS rtt atett gye

Our corporr ate marketing strategy positions CPSI as a healthcare solutions company serving community healthcare
organizations through our faff mily of healthcare inforff mation technology companies.

With regard to our RCM solutions, we will continue to leverage our proven track record of success in accounts receivabla e
management and private pay collections forff community healthcare providers. With the increasing complexity of reimbursement
requirements and a global shiftff in healthcare towards an increase in patient fiff nancial responsibility, the abia lity of our services
business to bring expertise and best practice operational effff iff ciencies to bear is a signififf cant competitive advantage. In consulting
services, the added complexity brought abouta by the transition to the ICD-10 code set, a standard transaction code set forff
diagnostic purposrr es under HIPAA, has created a signififf cant demand forff our coding services. Our strategy is to cross sell our
RCM solutions into our loyal EHR customer base as we prioritize strengthening our client relationships. At the same time, we
target the 400 bed and less hospital market outside of our EHR client network, which hospitals have a need to improve revenue
cycles and address staffff iff ng issues.

Our EHR softff ware and services address providers across the care continuum, with a primaryrr focff us on the community healthcare
market. We believe our abia lity to serve ambulatory,rr acute and post-acute care settings with our products is another strategic
advantage as new reimbursement models forff ce the coordination of care by healthcare providers. Our abia lity to connect patients
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to care providers within their community and across communities through our own products and interoperabia lity development,
including our membership in the CommonWell Health Alliance, sets us apaa rt frff om other competitors in our market. Our goal is
to position ourselves as partners to community healthcare providers as they move to a more proactive care model based on the
use of data analytics and patient engagement tools.

Our strategy to grow our patient engagement business is centered around leveraging our establa ished customer relationships
within our substantial partner ecosystem forff continued sales around licensing and profeff ssional services. In addition, we target
hospitals that use competitor EHRs, including upmarket larger hospitals and health systems that support multiple EHRs and
data sources around affff iff liated providers and practices. A core initiative to our growth plan is to maintain a strong retention rate
of this client base and pursue rapia d growth of new clients domestically.

Backlog

Backlkl gog consiists of revenues we reasonablbla yy expect to recogniognize over thhe next twellve monthhs dunder e ixistii gng contracts. Thhe
revenues to bbe recogniognizedd mayy rellate to a combibinatiion of one-tiime feff es forff syystem salles a dnd recurrii gng feff es forff support a dnd
maiintenance a dnd RCM ser ivices. As of Decembber 31, 2022, we hhadd a twellve-monthh bbacklkl gog of appra ioximatellyy $$6 miilllliion iin
connectiion wiithh non-recurrii gng syystem purchhases a dnd appra ioximatellyy $$322 miilllliion iin connectiion wiithh recurrii gng payyments dunder
support a dnd maiintenance a dnd RCM ser ivices. As of Decembber 31, 2021, we hhadd a twellve-monthh bbacklkl gog of appra ioximatellyy $$5
miilllliion iin connectiion wiithh non-recurrii gng syystem purchhases a dnd appra ioximatellyy $$281 miilllliion iin connectiion wiithh recurrii gng
ppayyments dunder support a dnd maiintenance a dnd RCM ser ivices.

Competition

The market forff our products and services is competitive, and we expect additional competition frff om establa ished and emerging
companies in the futff urt e. Our market is characterized by rapia dly changing technology, global shiftff s in the healthcare system,
evolving user needs and impactfulff regulatoryrr and reimbursement changes. We believe the principal competitive faff ctors that
hospitals, clinics and post-acute care providers consider when choosing between us and our competitors are:

• perceived level of product and system security;

• product feff aturt es, funcff tionality and perforff mance;

• range of services offff eff red;

• level of client service and satisfaff ction;

• ease of integration and speed of implementation;

• product price;

• cost of services offff eff red;

• results of services engagements;

• knowledge of the healthcare industry;rr

• training provided;

• sales and marketing effff orff ts; and

• company reputation.

We believe that we compete faff vorabla y with our competitors on these faff ctors. Our principal competitors forff RCM solutions
include RelayHealth Corp,r SSI Group, LLC, Quadax Inc., Change Healthcare Holdings, Inc., Availity, LLC, and Navicure, Inc.
Our principal competitors in the business management, consulting and managed IT services market are Resolution Health, Inc.,
The Outsource Group Inc., Patient Focus, Inc., Xtend Healthcare Inc., Ensemble Health Partners, and nThrive, Inc. These
companies all focff us on providing services to the healthcare market, and the services they offff eff r are comparabla e in socpe to the
competing services we offff eff r. Secondaryrr competitors in the RCM space include ARx LLC, Citadel Outsource Group LLC,
Patient Matters, LLC, KIWI-TEK, LLC, and Aviacode Inc. TruCr ode's primaryrr competitors include 3M, Nuance and Optumt .

Our principal competitors in the acute care EHR market are Cerner Corporrr ation, Medical Inforff mation Technology, Inc.
("Meditech"), and MEDHOST, Inc. These companies compete with us directly in our target market of small and midsize
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hospitals. They offff eff r comparabla e products and systems that address the needs of hospitals in the markets we serve. Our
secondaryrr competitors in the acute care EHR market include N. Harris Computer Corporrr ation and Epic Systems Corporr ation.
These companies are signififf cantly larger than we are, and they typically sell their products and services to larger hospitals
outside of our target market. However, they will sometimes compete with us directly or, more commonly, when a larger health
system who uses a system frff om one of these companies will offff eff r it to a smaller hospital as part of a merger or alliance.

We also faff ce competition frff om providers of practice management systems, general decision support and databaa se systems and
other segment-specififf c appla ications. Any of these companies as well as other technology or healthcare companies could decide
at any time to specififf cally target hospitals within our target market.

Our principal competitors in the post-acute care EHR market are PointClickCare Corporrr ation and MatrixCare, Inc. These
companies compete with us directly in our target market of long-term post-acute care faff cilities. They offff eff r comparabla e products
and systems that address the needs of long-term care providers.

Our principal competitors in the patient engagement market include Relay Health, Get Well Network/Healthloop, Apollo Care
Connect, Bridge Patient Portal, eClinicalWorks Patient Portal, Inflff uence Health, and InteliChart.

Health Inforff mation Security and Privacy Practices

HIPAA is a feff deral law governing the use, disclosure, transmission and storage of certain individually identififf abla e health
inforff mation, refeff rred to as "protected health inforff mation," and that was enacted forff the purposr e of,ff among other things,
protecting the privacy and security of protected health inforff mation. As directed by HIPAA, the Department of Health and
Human Services (the "DHHS") has promulgated standards and rulr es forff certain electronic health transactions, code sets, data
security, unique identififf cation numbers and privacy of protected health inforff mation. HIPAA and the standards promulgated by
DHHS appla y to certain health plans, healthcare clearinghouses and healthcare providers (refeff rred to as "covered entities"),
which includes our hospital and post-acute care clients. The Health Inforff mation Technology forff Economic and Clinical Health
Act (the "HITECH Act") and its implementing regulations published in Januaryrr 2013 signififf cantly expand HIPAA by extending
privacy and security standards to "business associates" of healthcare providers that are covered entities. Under the HITECH
Act, business associates are required to establa ish administrative, physical and technical safeff guards and are subject to direct
penalties forff violations. Certain of our services frff equently require us to act as a healthcare clearinghouse and/or a business
associate to the hospitals and post-acute care clients that we serve. As a result, we are covered by the patient privacy and
security standards of HIPAA and subject to oversight by DHHS. We believe that we have taken all necessaryrr steps to comply
with HIPAA, as it appla ies to us as a business associate, but it is important to note that DHHS could, at any time in the futff urt e,
adopt new rulr es or modifyff existing rulr es in a manner that could require us to change our systems or operations.

Protecting individually identififf abla e health inforff mation and other sensitive data is a critical and essential funcff tion of CPSI’s
operations and its softff ware solutions. A variety of industry-rr standard appra oaches that meet or exceed regulatoryrr requirements
such as HIPAA and HITECH are employed. In order to avoid unauthorized access forff the lifeff span of this data, diverse methods
of identififf cation, authentication, authorization and encryptrr ion are utilized at various points throughout the operating system,
appla ication softff ware and hardware. These methods and processes are shared amongst servers and other end-user devices and are
complemented by change management processes and tools, which allow the softff ware change control cycle to be a forff mal,
defiff ned process.

The collection, use, storage, disclosure, transfeff r, or other processing of any personal data regarding individuals in the European
Union, including personal health data, is subject to the European Union’s General Data Protection Directive (“GDPR”), which
became effff eff ctive on May 25, 2018. The GDPR is wide-ranging in scope and imposes numerous requirements on companies that
process personal data, including requirements relating to processing health and other sensitive data, obtaining consent of the
individuals to whom the personal data relates, providing inforff mation to individuals regarding data processing activities,
implementing safeff guards to protect the security and confiff dentiality of personal data, providing notififf cation of data breaches,
and taking certain measures when engaging third-party processors. The GDPR also imposes strict rulrr es on the transfeff r of
personal data to countries outside the European Union, including the United States, and permits data protection authorities to
impose large penalties forff violations of the GDPR, including potential fiff nes of up to €20 million or 4% of annual global
revenues, whichever is greater. The GDPR also confeff rs a private right of action on data subjects and consumer associations to
lodge complaints with supervisoryrr authorities, seek judicial remedies, and obtain compensation forff damages resulting frff om
violations of the GDPR.

Managing Cybersecurity Risks

Our business operations, including the provision of the products and services described abovea , involve the compilation and
transmission of confiff dential infoff rmation, including patient health inforff mation. We have included security feff aturt es in our
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systems that are intended to protect the privacy and integrity of this inforff mation, but our systems may be vulnerabla e to security
breaches, virusrr es, programming errors and other similar disruptr ive problems.

The Board of Directors is responsible forff exercising oversight of management’s identififf cation of,ff and planning forff , the material
risks faff cing the Company, and we believe our policies and procedures are adequate to ensure that relevant inforff mation abouta
cybersecurity risks and incidents is appra opriately reported and disclosed. In October 2017, the Board authorized the forff mation
of a Cybersecurity Committee, which is now known as the Governance, Risk & Compliance (“GRC”) Committee. The GRC
Committee is currently comprised of the Chief Technology and Innovation Offff iff cer, Chief Financial Offff iff cer, Chief
Transforff mation Offff iff cer, General Manager of TruBrr ridge, Corporr ate Security Offff iff cer, and General Counsel and Corporrr ate
Compliance Offff iff cer. The GRC Committee generally meets weekly, and has a forff mal meeting quarterly, to discuss the primaryrr
security and compliance-related risks currently faff cing the Company, including cybersecurity risks. The General Counsel and
Corporr ate Compliance Offff iff cer then provides updates to the Board at each regular quarterly meeting. In October 2020, the
Board created the Innovation and Technology Committee to aid the Board in its duties to assess and oversee the management of
risks in the areas of inforff mation technology, inforff mation and data security, cybersecurity, disaster recovery,rr data privacy and
business continuity. This committee oversees the GRC Committee’s activities relating to inforff mation technology and
cybersecurity matters, and seeks to enhance communication and coordination of effff orff ts between the Board and management in
these areas.

Additionally, we appoia nted a Security Operations Center ("SOC") Director to oversee a number of initiatives designed to
improve our cybersecurity protection, readiness and response. The Company partnered with a third party to provide Security as
a Service ("SECaaS") to assist our internal SOC in reducing the likelihood and impact of a cybersecurity attack. The SOC
oversees penetration testing, vulnerabia lity scanning, intrusr ion prevention, endpoint and insider threat detection, log
management and other cybersecurity-related projects. The Company consulted with third parties in 2017 and 2018 to conduct
an evaluation of our cybersecurity risks. The Company also consulted with third parties to achieve ISO 27001 certififf cation
related to inforff mation security management, which was achieved during 2020. Finally, all users employed by or contracted to
the Company are required to complete annual cybersecurity education and training, which includes identifyiff ng suspicious
emails, internet threats, telecommunication threats and ransomware.

Although a portion of our workforff ce has returt ned to in-offff iff ce environments folff lowing guidelines establa ished by the Centers forff
Disease Control and Prevention, the successfulff expansion of work-frff om-home arrangements during the COVID-19 pandemic,
in terms of employee productivity and satisfaff ction, has resulted in many of these arrangements becoming permanent. As such,
we anticipate that our go-forff ward workforff ce will be more heavily distributed to remote work environments, and we will
continue to focff us on not introducing vulnerabia lities into our technology systems..

Intellectual Property

We regard some aspects of our internal operations, softff ware and documentation as proprietary,rr and rely primarily on a
combination of contract and trade secret laws to protect our proprietaryrr inforff mation. We believe, because of the rapia d pace of
technological change in the computer softff ware industry,rr trade secret and copyright protection is less signififf cant than faff ctors
such as the knowledge, abia lity and experience of our employees, frff equent softff ware product enhancements and the timeliness
and quality of our support services. The source code forff our proprietaryrr softff ware is protected as a trade secret. We enter into
confiff dentiality or license agreements with our vendors, consultants and clients, and control access to and distribution of our
softff ware, documentation and other proprietaryrr inforff mation. We cannot guarantee that these protections will be adequate or that
our competitors will not independently develop technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to our technology.

We do not believe our softff ware products or other CPSI proprietaryrr rights infrff inge on the property rights of third parties.
However, we cannot guarantee that third parties will not assert infrff ingement claims against us with respect to current or futff urt e
softff ware products or that any such assertion may not require us to enter into royalty arrangements or result in costly litigation.

Material Government Regulations

Our business operations are subject to various feff deral, state and international laws, and our products and services are governed
by a number of rulr es and regulations. For example, we are affff eff cted by the folff lowing regulations:

• As discussed abovea , the HIPAA security and privacy standards affff eff ct our claims transmission services, since those
services must be strucrr turt ed and provided in a way that supports our clients’ HIPAA compliance obligations, and
GDPR is appla icabla e to certain of our activities conducted frff om an establa ishment in the EU and our operations that are
targeting clients and activities within the EU.
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• The United States Food and Drugr Administration (the “FDA”) has determined that certain of our solutions, such as our
ImageLink® and Blood Administration ® products, are medical devices that are actively regulated under the Federal
Food, Drugr and Cosmetic Act, as amended.

• The use of our solutions by physicians forff electronic prescribing and electronic routing of prescriptions via the
Surescripts network to pharmacies is governed by feff deral and state laws. States have diffff eff ring regulations that govern
the electronic transmission of certain prescriptions and prescription requirements.

Although there is no assurance that existing or futff urt e government laws, rulrr es and other regulations appla icabla e to our operations,
products or services will not have a material adverse effff eff ct on our capia tal expenditurt es, results of operations and competitive
position, we do not currently anticipate materially increased expenditurt es in response to government regulations or futff urt e
material impacts to our results or competitiveness. These regulations and related risks are described in more detail below under
“Risk Factors” beginning on page 23 of this Annual Report.

Human Capital

As of December 31, 2022, we had appra oximately 2,500 employees, the maja ority of which are remote, with the remaining
employees located at our offff iff ces in Alabaa ma, Mississippi, Pennsylvania, Washington, and Minnesota. None of our employees
are covered by a collective bargaining agreement or are represented by a labora union with respect to his or her employment with
us. We have not experienced any work stoppages and we consider our relations with our employees to be good.

We seek to be an employer of choice to attract and retain top talent in order to deliver a one-of-ff a-kind service and to fulff ly
leverage the strengths of our workforff ce to exceed customer expectations and meet our growth objectives. By improving
employee satisfaff ction, retention, and engagement, we also improve our abia lity to support our customers and protect the long-
term interests of our stockholders. To that end, we strive to fosff ter an engaged, diverse, inclusive, safeff , purposr e-driven culturt e
where employees have equitabla e opportunit ties forff success.

Diversrr itii ytt ,yy Equitii ytt and InII clusion

We are committed to creating a welcoming and inclusive environment, where everyonerr is inspired to be the best they can be
and feff els empowered to openly express opinions and ideas that help drive innovation, progress, and excellence. We eagerly
promote our relentless commitment to creating an inclusive and respectfulff culturt e across our faff mily of companies. We are
steadfaff st in our responsibility to embrace the diversity of all people and demonstrate our values – collabora ative, dependabla e,
proactive, empathetic and agile - with an unwavering focff us on those essential to the Company achieving sustainabla e and
meaningfulff growth. We have a long-standing commitment to equal employment opportunit ty ("EEO"), as evidenced by the
Company’s EEO policy.

As part of our commitment the Company launched our Inclusion, Diversity, Equity Alliance ("Team IDEA") in 2020, an
employee-led council with executive sponsorship that is focff used on strengthening company-wide engagement on diversity,
equity and inclusion, providing learning opportunit ties forff our employees, and helping to identifyff areas forff improvement and
monitor progress against these initiatives. In 2022, Team IDEA conducted over 20 employee engagement events and deployed
several Company policy updates that extend greater benefiff t with inclusiveness, care, and compassion at the forff efrff ont.

Now, more than ever, we are committed to listening with open hearts and leading with empathy — toward each other, toward
our customers and toward our healthcare communities. We continue to invite our leaders, board, clients, and community
leaders, along with our chief people offff iff cer, to advise us along this journey. In 2022, we launched an employee volunteer
program that construcrr ts a direct bridge between employees and the community and encourages employees to put their interests,
skill sets, and time to use in solving community challenges.

ComCC pem nsatitt on and Benefe iff tii stt

We compensate employees with competitive wages and benefiff t programs designed to meet employee needs. Our compensation
program is designed to recognize our employees' contributions to service excellence and business results. We use a combination
of fiff xed and variabla e pay including base salary,rr bonus, commissions and merit increases which varyrr across the Company. In
addition, as part of our incentive plan forff executives and certain employees, we provide stock-based compensation to attract,
retain and motivate our key leaders. For furff ther inforff mation concerning our equity incentive plans, see Note 9, Stock-kk based
ComCC pem nsation and Equitytt .
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As the success of our employees is fundaff mentally connected to the well being of our people, our healthcare and benefiff t
programs focff us on fourff key pillars: physical, emotional, fiff nancial, and social well-being. We offff eff r a wide array of benefiff ts
including comprehensive health and welfaff re insurances, a 401(K) plan with employer-match, generous time-offff ,ff paid parental
leave, identity theftff insurance, and fiff nancial support. We provide emotional well-being services through our medical carrier,
Neuro580, and associated Employee Assistance Program. In addition, our fiff nancial education tools offff eff r employees resources
to reach their personal fiff nancial goals.

We continue to partner with our employees to understand how we can better support their health and wellness while allowing
them to be their truer and authentic selves at work everyrr day.

Developmll ent

Our goal is to create opportunit ties forff employee growth, development, education and training, including opportunit ties to
cultivate talent and identifyff candidates forff new roles frff om within the Company. We strive to ensure that we have the right
leaders in place to drive our strategic initiatives not only today but also into the futff urt e. We are committed to a safeff workplace
and an ethical environment in which employees are respected in a culturt e of belonging and dignity and in which they can
continually develop their skills and expertise to advance their careers.

We also believe that ongoing perforff mance feff edback encourages greater engagement in our business and improved individual
perforff mance. Each year, our employees participate in our Perforff mance Development Program that summarizes key
accomplishments forff the preceding year, establa ishes new goals, and identififf es critical capaa bia lities forff development. We
encourage managers to solicit and share supportive 360-degree feff edback, align talent with enterprr ise opportunit ties, and infusff e a
mindset of continuous learning and deliberate practices needed to drive global success.

EmEE plm oyll ee Recruitii mtt ent

Our key talent philosophy is to develop talent frff om within and supplement with external hires. This appra oach has yielded a deep
understanding of our business, vision, products, services and clients among our employee base, while adding new employees
and ideas in support of our continuous improvement mindset. As a direct result of the operational COVID-19 pandemic
adjustments made to the organization during 2020, the opportunit ty became availabla e to offff eff r more remote positions, whereas
beforff e, they would have been conducted frff om within an offff iff ce space. Leveraging work collabora ation tools and other
technologies, the abia lity to hire remote employees has supported our effff orff ts to expand our internal talent and welcome
employees frff om diverse backgrounds and geographia es, creating deeper team collabora ation and a more engaging client
experience. Our recruirr tment team uses internal and external resources to recruir t diverse, highly skilled and talented workers,
and we encourage employee refeff rrals forff open positions.

ComCC municatitt on and EnEE gagement

Given the geographia c diversity of our workforff ce, we use multiple modalities in our communication effff orff ts. Our email and the
employee hotline have been bolstered by weekly all-employee communications. Additionally, leaders participate in monthly
business updates that faff cilitate awareness of current business initiatives, progress and results. These meetings encourage cross-
funcff tional collabora ation and help ensure that our teams are not working in silos. These effff orff ts have supported our abia lity to
deliver a more consistent message across all our constituet ncies and thereby improve employee engagement.

Executive Offff iff cers

The executive offff iff cers of CPSI serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Set forff th below is a list of the current executive
offff iff cers of CPSI and a brief explanation of each individual’s principal employment during the last fiff ve years.

Christopher L. Fowler – President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer. Christopher L. Fowler, age 47, was appoia nted as our
President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer, and a member of the Board of Directors on July 1, 2022. Mr. Fowler began his career
with CPSI in May 2000 as a Softff ware Support Representative and later as a manager of Financial Softff ware Services. From
August 2004 until March 2008, Mr. Fowler served as Assistant Director and Director of Business Management Services. Mr.
Fowler served as CPSI’s Vice President – Business Management Services frff om March 2008 until the forff mation of TruBrr ridge in
Januaryrr 2018, aftff er which time he served as its President. He then served as Chief Operating Offff iff cer of the Company frff om
November 2015 through June 2022.

David A. Dye – Chief Operating Offff iff cer. David A. Dye, age 53, was appoia nted as our Chief Operating Offff iff cer on October 10,
2022. Mr. Dye previously served as our Chief Growth Offff iff cer since November 2015 and Chief Financial Offff iff cer, Secretaryrr and
Treasurer frff om June 2010 until November 2015. Mr. Dye served as our President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer frff om July 1999
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to May 2006. He was fiff rst elected as a director in March 2002 and served as our Chairman of the Board frff om May 2006 until
April 2019. Mr. Dye began his career with CPSI in May 1990 as a Financial Softff ware Support Representative and served in
various capaa cities until July 1999. Mr. Dye served as a director of Bulow Biotech Prosthetics, LLC, a company headquartered
in Nashville, Tennessee that operates prosthetic clinics in the Southeastern United States, frff om July 2006 until October 2018.

Matt J. Chambless – Chief Financial Offff iff cer, Secretary and Treasurer. Matt J. Chambless, age 42, was appoia nted as our
Chief Financial Offff iff cer, Secretaryrr and Treasurer in November 2015, having previously served as our Director of Financial
Reporting frff om March 2012 until November 2015. Prior to joining CPSI, Mr. Chambless served as the Accounting Manager
forff Northside Hospital System frff om May 2011 until March 2012 and as an audit profeff ssional, including an Audit Manager, forff
Grant Thornton, LLP frff om August 2004 to May 2011.

Dawn M. Severance - Chief Sales Offff iff cer. Dawn M. Severance, age 53, was appoia nted as our Chief Sales Offff iff cer in
November 2022 aftff er serving as Senior Vice President of Sales forff TruBr ridge since Januaryrr 2021. Ms. Severance joined CPSI
as part of the Healthland acquisition in 2016 where she served as Vice President of Sales. Ms. Severance served as Regional
Vice President of Sales forff CPSI frff om 2016 to May 2019 and as Vice President of Sales forff TruBrr ridge frff om May 2019 to
Januaryrr 2021.

Kevin Plessner - General Counsel. Kevin Plessner, age 40, was appoia nted as our General Counsel in Januaryrr 2022. Mr.
Plessner joined CPSI as part of the Get Real Health acquisition in 2019. He served as General Counsel at Get Real Health frff om
2013 until the 2019 acquisition, at which point he became Corporr ate Counsel at CPSI.

Wes D. Cronkite - Chief Technology and Innovation Offff iff cer.Wes D. Cronkite, age 40, was appoia nted as our Chief
Innovation Offff iff cer in May 2021 and then was appoia nted Chief Technology and Innovation Offff iff cer in November 2022. Prior to
joining CPSI, Mr. Cronkite served as Senior Vice President of Innovation at BrightSpring Health frff om August 2018 until April
2021. He also held various healthcare technology leadership roles at nThrive (forff merly MedAssets) frff om March 2010 through
August 2019, including Senior Vice President of Internal Analytics, Vice President of Strategic Initiatives, and Vice President
of System Strategy and Operations.

Company Web Site

The Company maintains a web site at http:t //// www.cpsi.com. The Company makes availabla e on its web site, frff ee of charge, its
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those
reports, as soon as it is reasonabla y practicabla e aftff er such material is electronically fiff led with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Company is not including the inforff mation contained on or availabla e through its web site as a part of,ff or
incorporrr ating such inforff mation into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

TheTT se are not thett onlyll risii kskk and uncertainties thattt we facff e. Our business, fiff nancial condition, operating resultstt , and stock price
can be materiallyll and adversrr elyll affff eff cted by a number of fff acff torsrr , whethett r currentlyll knowkk n or unknowkk n, including, but not
limited to, thostt e described below. Any one or more of such facff torsrr couldl directlyll or indirectlyll cause our actual fiff nancial
condition and operating resultstt to varyr materiallyll frff om our past or anticipati ed futff ure fiff nancial condition or operating resultstt .

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INDUSTRYR

ThTT e widesprs ead outbrtt eak of an ilii lll nll ess or anyn othtt er communicablell disii ease,e or anyn othtt er publill c healtll htt crisii isii ,s such as thtt e
COCC VIVV DII -19 pandemic,c and thtt e governmentaltt and societaltt respons ses thtt ereto,tt couldll adversrr elyll affff eff ct our businii ess,s resultll stt of
operatitt ons,s and fiff nii ancial positii itt on.

Widespread outbrt eaks of disease or other public health crises, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, and responses thereto have in
the past and may in the futff urt e cause harm to us, our employees, customers, vendors, and fiff nancial institutt ions, which could
have a material adverse effff eff ct on our results of operations, fiff nancial condition, and cash flff ows. The impacts may include, but
would not be limited to:

• Disruptr ion to operations due to the unavailabia lity of employees due to illness, quarantines, risk of illness, travel
restrictions, vaccination mandates, or other faff ctors that limit the availabia lity of our existing or potential workforff ce;

• Limitations to the availabia lity of our key personnel due to travel restrictions and access restrictions to our customers'
faff cilities;

• Elevated employee turt nover which may impact our perforff mance and /or increase payroll expense and recruir ting-
related expenses;

• New or additional measures required by national, state, or local governments to combat COVID-19, such as a
COVID-19 vaccine mandate, may impact the availabia lity of our employees and/or increase operating costs;

• Decreased patient volumes which could impact the fiff nancial health of our customers and thereby increase our
associated credit risk with customers and increase pressure to modifyff our contractuat l terms; and

• Signififf cant disruptr ion of global fiff nancial markets, which could negatively impact our or our customers' abia lity to
access capia tal in the futff urt e.

The furff ther spread of COVID-19, and the requirements to take action to help limit the spread of the virusrr , could impact the
resources required to carryrr out our business as usual and may have a material adverse effff eff ct on our results of operations,
fiff nancial condition, and cash flff ows. The extent to which COVID-19 will impact our business and our fiff nancial results will
depend on futff urt e developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted. Such developments may include the
ongoing geographia c spread of the virusrr , the severity of the disease, the duration of the outbrt eak and the type and duration of
actions that may be taken by various government authorities in response to the outbrt eak and the impact on the United States and
the global economy. Any of these developments, individually or in aggregate, could materially impact our business and our
fiff nancial results and conditions.

Additionally, concerns over the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic have caused extreme volatility in fiff nancial and
other capia tal markets which has and may continue to adversely impact our stock price and may adversely impact our abia lity to
access capia tal, at all or on reasonabla e terms. To the extent the COVID-19 pandemic adversely affff eff cts our business and fiff nancial
results, it may also have the effff eff ct of heightening many of the other risks described herein.

ThTT ere are a lill mii itii ett d number of hospis tii altt sll inii our tartt ger t markerr t.tt SatSS uratitt on or consolill datitt on inii thtt e healtll htt care inii dustrtt yr couldll
resultll inii thtt e losll s of exiee sii titt nii g clill entstt ,s a reductitt on inii our potett ntitt al clill ent base and downward pressure on thtt e prices of our
productstt and services.

The limited number of hospitals with feff wer than 200 acute care beds in our general target market forff our acute care product and
service offff eff rings has resulted in an ever narrowing market forff new system installations and add-on sales which could materially
and adversely impact our business, fiff nancial condition and operating results.
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Our primaryrr objectives are to increase the market share of our RCM services, aggressively pursue competitive and vulnerabla e
EHR replacement opportunit ties, and diffff eff rentiate our products and services on a client experience basis that enabla es us to sell a
broader set of services into a loyal base of clients that are our advocates. Although we have forff mulated strategic responses forff
capia talizing on each of the identififf ed opportunit ties, there is no guarantee that such responses will ultimately prove successfulff .
Additionally, to the extent that these opportunit ties faff il to develop or develop more slowly than expected, our business, fiff nancial
condition and operating results could be materially and adversely impacted.

Furthermore, many healthcare providers have consolidated to create larger healthcare deliveryrr enterprrr ises with greater market
power. If this consolidation continues, we could lose existing clients and could experience a decrease in the number of potential
purchasers of our products and services. The loss of existing and potential clients due to industryrr consolidation could cause our
revenue growth rate to decline.

Economic,c markerr t and othtt er facff tortt srr may cause a declill nii e inii spes ndinii g forff inii fn orff mrr atitt on tett chnologyll and services by our current
and prospes ctitt ve clill entstt which may resultll inii lell ss demand forff our productstt ,s lowll er prices and, consequentltt yll ,yy lowll er revenues
and a lowll er revenue growthtt ratett .ee

The purchase of our inforff mation system involves a signififf cant fiff nancial commitment by our clients. At the same time, the
healthcare industryrr faff ces siignignifiiff cant fiiff nanciiall pressures thhat c louldd addversellyy affff eff ct overallll spe dindi gng on hheallthhcare iinforff matiion
tech lhnol gyogy a dnd ser ivices. To the extent spending forff healthcare inforff mation technology and services declines or increases slower
than we anticipate, demand forff our products and services, as well as the prices we charge, could be adversely affff eff cted.
Accordingly, we cannot assure you that we will be abla e to increase or maintain our revenues or our revenue growth rate.

ThTT ere isii signi ifi iff cant uncertaitt nii tytt inii thtt e healtll htt care inii dustrtt yr ,yy bothtt as a resultll of recentltt yll enactett d lell gie sii latll itt on and changinii g
governrr ment regue latll itt on, which may have a matett rial adversrr e imii pacm t on thtt e businii esses of our hospis tii altt clill entstt and ultll itt mii atett lyll
on our businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditii itt on and resultll stt of operatitt ons.

The healthcare industryrr is subject to changing political, economic and regulatoryrr inflff uences that may affff eff ct the procurement
processes and operation of healthcare faff cilities, including our hospital clients. During the past decade, the healthcare industryrr
has been subject to increased legislation and regulation of,ff among other things, reimbursement rates, payment programs,
inforff mation technology programs and certain capia tal expenditurt es (collectively, the "Health Reforff m Laws").

The Health Reforff m Laws contain various provisions which impact us and our clients. Some of these provisions have a positive
impact, by expanding the use of electronic health records in certain feff deral programs, forff example, while others, such as
reductions in reimbursement forff certain types of providers, have a negative impact due to feff wer availabla e resources. The
continued increase in frff aud and abusa e penalties is expected to adversely affff eff ct participants in the healthcare sector, including us.

Among other things, the Health Reforff m Laws provide forff the expansion of Medicaid eligibility, mandate material changes to
the deliveryrr of healthcare services and reduce the reimbursement paid forff such services in order to generate savings in the
Medicare program. The Health Reforff m Laws also modifyff certain payment systems to encourage more cost-effff eff ctive, quality-
based care and a reduction of ineffff iff ciencies and waste, including through various tools to address frff aud and abusa e.

The Health Reforff m Laws will continue to affff eff ct hospitals diffff eff rently depending upon the populations they serve and their payor
mix. Our target market of community hospitals typically serve higher uninsured populations than larger urbar n hospitals and rely
more heavily on Medicare and Medicaid forff reimbursement. It remains to be seen whether the increase in the insured
population forff community hospitals will be suffff iff cient to offff sff et actuat l and proposed additional cuts in Medicare and Medicaid
reimbursements contained in the Health Reforff m Laws.

The Health Reforff m Laws are leading to signififf cant changes in the healthcare system, but the fulff l impact of the legislation and of
furff ther statutt oryrr and regulatoryrr actions to reforff m healthcare on our business is unknown. As a result, there can be no assurances
that the legislation will not adversely impact either our operational results or the manner in which we operate our business. We
believe some healthcare industryrr participants have reduced their investments or postponet d investment decisions, including
investments in our solutions and services.

Cost-containment measures institutt ed by healthcare providers as a result of regulatoryrr reforff m or otherwise could result in a
reduced allocation of capia tal fundsff . Such a reduction could have an adverse effff eff ct on our abia lity to sell our systems and related
services. Although the Biden administration promises to prioritize public health by forff tifyiff ng and expanding implementation of
such laws and legislation, we cannot predict what effff eff ct, if any, such additional proposals or healthcare reforff ms might have on
our business, fiff nancial condition and results of operations.
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As existing regulations maturt e and become better defiff ned, we anticipate that these regulations will continue to directly affff eff ct
certain of our products and services, but we cannot fulff ly predict the effff eff ct at this time. We have taken steps to modifyff our
products, services and internal practices as necessaryrr to faff cilitate our compliance with the regulations, but there can be no
assurance that we will be abla e to do so in a timely or complete manner. Achieving compliance with these regulations could be
costly and distract management’s attention and divert other company resources, and any noncompliance by us could result in
civil and criminal penalties.

ThTT e healtll htt care inii dustrtt yr isii heavilii yll regue latll ett d at thtt e locll al,ll stattt ett and feff deral lell velsll . Our faiff lii ure tott complm yll witii htt regue latll ortt yr
requirii ementstt couldll creatett lill abilii ill tii ytt forff us,s resultll inii adversrr e publill citii ytt and negate itt velyll affff eff ct our businii ess.

The healthcare industryrr is heavily regulated and is constantly evolving due to the changing political, legislative and regulatoryrr
landscapea s. In some instances, the impact of these regulations on our business is direct to the extent that we are subject to these
laws and regulations ourselves. However, these regulations also impact our business indirectly as, in a number of
circumstances, our solutions, devices and services must be capaa bla e of being used by our clients in a way that complies with
those laws and regulations, even though we may not be directly regulated by the specififf c healthcare laws and regulations. There
is a signififf cant number of wide-ranging regulations, including regulations in the areas of healthcare frff aud, e-prescribing, claims
processing and transmission, medical devices, the security and privacy of patient data, the ARRARR meaningfulff use program,
patient access rights and interoperabia lity standards, that may be directly or indirectly appla icabla e to our operations and
relationships or the business practices of our clients. Specififf c areas that are subject to increased regulation include, but are not
limited to, the folff lowing:

HeHH althctt are FrFF aud. Federal and state governments continue to enhance regulation of and increase their scrutrr iny over practices
potentially involving healthcare frff aud, waste and abusa e by healthcare providers whose services are reimbursed by Medicare,
Medicaid and other government healthcare programs. Our healthcare provider clients are subject to laws and regulations
regarding frff aud and abusa e that, among other things, prohibit the direct or indirect payment or receipt of any remuneration forff
patient refeff rrals, or arranging forff or recommending refeff rrals or other business paid forff in whole or in part by these feff deral or
state healthcare programs. Federal enforff cement personnel have substantial fundiff ng, powers and remedies to pursue suspected or
perceived frff aud and abusa e. The effff eff ct of this government regulation on our clients is diffff iff cult to predict. Many of the
regulations appla icabla e to our clients and that may be appla icabla e to us, including those relating to marketing incentives offff eff red in
connection with medical device sales may be interprr eted or appla ied by a prosecutorial, regulatoryrr or judicial authority in a
manner that could broaden their appla icabia lity to us or require our clients to make changes in their operations or the way in
which they deal with us. If such laws and regulations are determined to be appla icabla e to us and if we faff il to comply with any
appla icabla e laws and regulations, we could be subject to civil and criminal penalties, sanctions or other liabia lities, including
exclusion frff om government healthcare programs, which could have a material adverse effff eff ct on our business, results of
operations and fiff nancial condition. Even an unsuccessfulff challenge by a regulatoryrr or prosecutorial authority of our activities
could result in adverse publicity, could require a costly response frff om us and could adversely affff eff ct our business, results of
operations and fiff nancial condition.

E-Prescribing. The use of our solutions by physicians forff electronic prescribing and electronic routing of prescriptions via the
Surescripts network to pharmacies is governed by feff deral and state laws. States have diffff eff ring regulations that govern the
electronic transmission of certain prescriptions and prescription requirements. Standards adopted by the National Council forff
Prescription Drugrr Programs and regulations adopted by the Centers forff Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS") related to
"EPrescribing and the Prescription Drugrr Program" set forff th implementation standards forff the transmission of electronic
prescriptions. These standards are detailed and broad, and cover not only routing transactions between prescribers and
pharmacies, but also electronic eligibility, forff mularyrr and benefiff ts inquiries. In general, regulations in this area can be
burdensome and evolve regularly, meaning that any potential benefiff ts to our clients frff om utilizing such solutions and services
may be superseded by a newly-promulgated regulation that adversely affff eff cts our business model. Our effff orff ts to provide
solutions that enabla e our clients to comply with these regulations could be time consuming and expensive.

Clail ms Processing and TrTT ansmisii sion. Our system electronically transmits medical claims by physicians to patients’ payors forff
immediate appra oval and reimbursement. In addition, we offff eff r business management services that include the manual and
electronic processing and submission of medical claims by healthcare providers to patients’ payors forff appra oval and
reimbursement. Federal and state laws provide that it is a violation forff any person to submit, or cause to be submitted, a claim to
any payor, including, without limitation, Medicare, Medicaid and all private health plans and managed care plans, seeking
payment forff any service or product that overbir lls or bills forff items that have not been provided to the patient. We have in place
policies and procedures that we believe assure that all claims that are transmitted by our system and through our services are
accurate and complete, provided that the inforff mation given to us by our clients is also accurate and complete. If,ff however, we
do not folff low those procedures and policies, or they are not suffff iff cient to prevent inaccurate claims frff om being submitted, we
could be subject to substantial liabia lity including, but not limited to, civil and criminal liabia lity. Additionally, any such faff ilure of
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our billing and collection services to comply with these laws and regulations could adversely affff eff ct demand forff our services and
could forff ce us to expend signififf cant capia tal, research and development, and other resources to address the faff ilure.

Where we are permitted to do so, we calculate charges forff our billing and collection services based on a percentage of the
collections that our clients receive as a result of our services. To the extent that violations or liabia lity forff violations of these laws
and regulations require intent, it may be alleged that this percentage calculation provides us or our employees with incentive to
commit or overlook frff aud or abusa e in connection with submission and payment of reimbursement claims. CMS has stated that it
is concerned that percentage-based billing services may encourage billing companies to commit or to overlook frff audulent or
abusa ive practices.

A portion of our business involves billing Medicare claims on behalf of our clients. In an effff orff t to combat frff audulent Medicare
claims, the feff deral government offff eff rs rewards forff reporting of Medicare frff aud which could encourage others to subject us to a
charge of frff audulent claims, including charges that are ultimately proved to be without merit.

As discussed below, the HIPAA security and privacy standards also affff eff ct our claims transmission services, since those services
must be strucr turt ed and provided in a way that supports our clients’ HIPAA compliance obligations.

Regule ation of MeMM dical Devices. The United States Food and Drugr Administration (the "FDA") has determined that certain of
our solutions, such as our ImageLink® and Blood Administration® products, are medical devices that are actively regulated
under the Federal Food, Drugrr and Cosmetic Act, as amended. If other of our solutions are deemed to be actively regulated
medical devices by the FDA, we could be subject to extensive requirements governing pre- and post-marketing activities
including registration of the appla icabla e manufaff cturt ing faff cility and softff ware and hardware products, appla ication of detailed
record-keeping and manufaff cturt ing standards, appla ication of the medical device excise tax, and FDA appra oval or clearance prior
to marketing. Complying with these medical device regulations is time consuming and expensive, and our marketing and other
sales activities could be subject to unanticipated and signififf cant delays. Further, it is possible that the FDA may become more
active in regulating softff ware and medical devices that are used in the healthcare industry.rr If we are unabla e to obtain the required
regulatoryrr appra ovals forff any such softff ware or medical devices, our short- to long-term business plans forff these solutions or
medical devices could be delayed or canceled and we could faff ce FDA refusff al to grant pre-market clearance or appra oval of
products; withdrawal of existing clearances and appra ovals; fiff nes, injunctions or civil penalties; recalls or product corrections;
production suspensions; and criminal prosecution. FDA regulation of our products could increase our operating costs, delay or
prevent the marketing of new or existing products, and adversely affff eff ct our revenue growth.

Securitytt and Privacyc of Patient InfII orff mation. Federal, state and local laws regulate the privacy and security of patient records
and the circumstances under which those records may be released. These regulations govern both the disclosure and use of
confiff dential patient medical record inforff mation and require the users of such inforff mation to implement specififf ed security and
privacy measures. United States regulations currently in place governing electronic health data transmissions continue to evolve
and are oftff en unclear and diffff iff cult to appla y.

In the United States, HIPAA regulations require national standards forff some types of electronic health inforff mation transactions
and the data elements used in those transactions, security standards to ensure the integrity and confiff dentiality of health
inforff mation, and standards to protect the privacy of individually identififf abla e health inforff mation. Covered entities under HIPAA,
which include healthcare organizations such as our clients, and our claims processing, transmission and submission services,
are required to comply with the privacy standards, transaction regulations and security regulations. Moreover, HITECH and
associated regulatoryrr requirements extend many of the HIPAA obligations, forff merly imposed only upon covered entities, to
business associates as well. As a business associate of our clients who are covered entities, we are in most instances already
contractuat lly required to ensure compliance with the HIPAA regulations as they pertain to the handling of covered client data.
However, the extension of these HIPAA obligations to business associates by law has created a direct liabia lity risk related to the
privacy and security of individually identififf abla e health inforff mation.

Evolving HIPAA and HITECH-related laws or regulations could restrict the abia lity of our clients to obtain, use or disseminate
patient inforff mation. This could adversely affff eff ct demand forff our solutions and devices if they are not re-designed in a timely
manner in order to meet the requirements of any new interprrr etations or regulations that seek to protect the privacy and security
of patient data or enabla e our clients to execute new or modififf ed healthcare transactions. We may need to expend additional
capia tal and softff ware development and other resources to modifyff our solutions to address these evolving data security and
privacy issues. Furthermore, our faff ilure to maintain the confiff dentiality of sensitive personal inforff mation in accordance with the
appla icabla e regulatoryrr requirements could damage our reputation and expose us to claims, fiff nes and penalties.

Federal and state statutt es and regulations have granted broad enforff cement powers to regulatoryrr agencies to investigate and
enforff ce compliance with these privacy and security laws and regulations. Federal and state enforff cement personnel have
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substantial fundiff ng, powers and remedies to pursue suspected or perceived violations. If we faff il to comply with any appla icabla e
laws or regulations, we could be subject to civil penalties, sanctions or other liabia lity. Enforff cement investigations, even if
meritless, could have a negative impact on our reputation, cause us to lose existing clients or limit our abia lity to attract new
clients.

ARRARR MeMM aningfulff UsUU e Program. The ARRARR initially required "meaningfulff use of certififf ed electronic health record technology"
by healthcare providers by 2015 in order to receive limited incentive payments and to avoid related reduced reimbursement
rates forff Medicare claims. Related standards and specififf cations are subject to interprr etation by the entities designated to certifyff
such technology. While a combination of our solutions has been certififf ed as meeting stage one, stage two, and stage three
standards forff certififf ed electronic health record technology, the regulatoryrr standards to achieve certififf cation will continue to
evolve over time. We may incur increased development costs and delays in delivering solutions if we need to upgrade our
softff ware or healthcare devices to be in compliance with these varyirr ng and evolving standards. In addition, furff ther delays in
interprr eting these standards may result in postponet ment or cancellation of our clients’ decisions to purchase our softff ware
solutions. If our softff ware solutions are not compliant with these evolving standards, our market position and sales could be
impaired and we may have to invest signififf cantly in changes to our softff ware solutions.

IntII eroperabilitytt Standards. Our clients are concerned with and oftff en require that our softff ware and systems be interoperabla e
with other third party healthcare inforff mation technology systems. Market forff ces or governmental or regulatoryrr authorities could
create softff ware interoperabia lity standards that would appla y to our softff ware and systems, and if our softff ware and systems are not
consistent with those standards, we could be forff ced to incur substantial additional development costs. For example, the
HITECH Act contains interoperabia lity standards that healthcare providers are required to adhere to in order to receive stimulus
fundsff frff om the feff deral government under the ARRARR . Compliance with these and related standards is becoming a competitive
requirement and, although a combination of our solutions has been certififf ed as meeting all such required interoperabia lity
standards to date, maintaining such compliance with these varyirr ng and evolving rulr es may result in increased development
costs and delays in upgrading our client softff ware and systems. To the extent these rulrr es are narrowly construer d, subsequently
changed or supplemented, or that we are delayed in achieving certififf cation under these evolving rulr es forff appla icabla e products,
our clients may postponet or cancel their decisions to purchase or implement our softff ware and systems.

As it relates specififf cally to interoperabia lity, we are a member of CommonWell Health Alliance ("CommonWell"), a not-forff -
profiff t trade association comprised of healthcare inforff mation technology vendors devoted to the notion that patient data should
be safeff ly, securely and immediately availabla e to patients and healthcare providers to support better care delivery,rr regardless of
where that care occurs. CommonWell is committed to fosff tering standards that make this possible, and to having healthcare
inforff mation technology companies embed these capaa bia lities natively and cost effff eff ctively into their EHR systems. Despite our
membership in CommonWell, there is no guarantee that we will successfulff ly manage the interoperabia lity of our softff ware and
systems with third-party health IT providers.

Patient Access Righti stt . In March 2020, the Offff iff ce of National Coordinator forff Health Inforff mation Technology ("ONC") of the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS") released the "21st Centurt yrr Cures Act: Interoperabla ity, Inforff mation
Blocking, and the ONC Health IT Certififf cation Program, Final RulRR e." The rulrr e implements several of the key interoperabia lity
provisions included in the 21st Centurt yrr Cures Act. Specififf cally, it calls on developers of certififf ed EHRs and health IT products
to adopt standardized APIs, which will help allow individuals to securely and easily access strucr turt ed and unstrucrr turt ed EHI
forff mats using smartphonet s and other mobile devices. This provision and others included in the fiff nal rulr e create a potentially
lengthy list of certififf cation and maintenance of certififf cation requirements that developers of EHRs and other health IT products
have to meet in order to maintain appra oved feff deral government certififf cation statust . Meeting and maintaining this certififf cation
statust could require additional development costs.

The ONC rulr e also implements the inforff mation blocking provisions of the 21st Centurt yrr Cures Act, including identifyiff ng
reasonabla e and necessaryrr activities that do not constitutt e inforff mation blocking. Under the 21st Centurt yrr Cures Act, the HHS has
the regulatoryrr authority to investigate and assess civil monetaryrr penalties of up to $1,000,000 against health IT developers and/
or providers foundff to be guilty of "inforff mation blocking." This new oversight and authority to investigate claims of inforff mation
blocking creates signififf cant risks forff us and our clients and could potentially create substantial new compliance costs.

Standards forff Submisii sion of HeHH althctt are Clail ms. Effff eff ctive October 2015, CMS mandated the use of new patient codes forff
reporting medical diagnosis and inpatient procedures, refeff rred to as the ICD-10 codes. CMS requires all providers, payors,
clearinghouses and billing services to utilize these ICD-10 codes when submitting claims forff payment. ICD-10 codes affff eff ct
medical diagnosis and inpatient procedure coding forff everyonerr covered by HIPAA, not just those who submit Medicare or
Medicaid claims. Claims forff services must use ICD-10 codes forff medical diagnosis and inpatient procedures or they will not be
paid. While we have successfulff ly implemented the use of ICD-10 codes within our products and services, the possibility exists
forff similar futff urt e mandates by CMS. If our products and services do not accommodate CMS mandates at any futff urt e date,
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clients may cease to use those products and services that are not compliant and may choose alternative vendors and products
that are compliant. This could adversely impact futff urt e revenues.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

Our strtt atett gye tott trtt ansitii itt on tott a subscriptii itt on-based recurrinii g revenue model and contitt nii ued modernizii atitt on of our tett chnologyll
may adversrr elyll affff eff ct our near-rr tett rmrr revenue growthtt and resultll stt of operatitt ons.

As we transition more of our offff eff rings to leverage cloud technologies, we may incur disruptrr ion and be less competitive as we
transition existing clients to new product offff eff rings, which could impact revenue and profiff tabia lity. We believe we must continue
to dedicate a signififf cant amount of resources to our research and development effff orff ts to maintain our competitive position, and
oftff entimes, successfulff investments require several years beforff e generating signififf cant revenue. We expect our ongoing shiftff
frff om a softff ware license model to a subscription-based services revenue model to create a recurring revenue stream that is more
predictabla e. The transition, however, creates changes related to the timing of revenue recognition compared to historical
patterns. We also incur certain expenses associated with the infrff astrucr turt es of our cloud-based offff eff rings in advance of our
abia lity to recognize the revenues associated with these offff eff rings, which may adversely affff eff ct our near-term reported revenues,
results of operations, and cash flff ows. A decline in renewals of recurring revenue offff eff rings in any period may not be
immediately reflff ected in our results forff that period but may result in a decline in our revenue and results of operations in futff urt e
periods.

ComCC pem titt tii itt on witii htt companm ies thtt at have greatett r fiff nii ancial,ll tett chnical and markerr titt nii g resources thtt an we have couldll resultll inii a
losll s of clill entstt and/or// a lowll erinii g of prff ices forff our productstt ,s causinii g a decrease inii our revenues and/or// markerr t share.ee

Our principal competitors in the business management, consulting and managed IT services market are Resolution Health, Inc.,
The Outsource Group Inc., Patient Focus, Inc., Xtend Healthcare Inc., Ensemble Health Partners, and nThrive, Inc. All of these
companies provide one or more of the services we offff eff r, with their primaryrr focff us being on providing business management
services to the healthcare market. The services they offff eff r are comparabla e in scope to the competing services we offff eff r.
Secondaryrr competitors include ARx LLC, Citadel Outsource Group LLC, Patient Matters, LLC, KIWI-TEK, LLC, and
Aviacode Inc. Our principal competitors forff RCM solutions include RelayHealth Corp,r SSI Group, LLC, Quadax Inc., Change
Healthcare Holdings, Inc., Availity, LLC, and Navicure, Inc. TruCr ode's primaryrr competitors include 3M, Nuance and Optumt .

Our principal competitors in the acute EHR market are Cerner Corporr ation, Medical Inforff mation Technology, Inc.
("Meditech"), and MEDHOST, Inc. These companies compete with us directly in our target market of small and midsize
hospitals. They offff eff r products and systems that are comparabla e to our solutions and address the needs of hospitals in the
markets we serve.

Our secondaryrr competitors in the acute care EHR market include N. Harris Computer Corporr ation and Epic Systems
Corporr ation. These companies are signififf cantly larger than we are, and they typically sell their products and services to larger
hospitals outside of our target market. However, they will sometimes compete with us directly or, more commonly, a larger
health system who uses a system provided by one of these competitors will offff eff r it to a smaller hospital as part of a merger or
alliance.

We also faff ce competition frff om providers of practice management systems, general decision support and databaa se systems, and
other segment-specififf c appla ications. Any of these companies, as well as other technology or healthcare companies could decide
at any time to specififf cally target hospitals within our target market.

Our principal competitors in the post-acute care EHR market are PointClickCare Corporrr ation and MatrixCare, Inc. These
companies compete with us directly in our target market of long-term post-acute care faff cilities. They offff eff r products and
systems that are comparabla e to our system and address the needs of long-term care providers.

Our principal competitors in the patient engagement market include Relay Health, Get Well Network/Healthloop, Apollo Care
Connect, Bridge Patient Portal, eClinicalWorks Patient Portal, Inflff uence Health, and InteliChart.

A number of existing and potential competitors are more establa ished than we are and have greater name recognition and
fiff nancial, technical and marketing resources. Products of our competitors may have better perforff mance, lower prices and
broader market acceptance than our products. We expect increased competition that could cause us to lose clients, lower our
prices to remain competitive and, consequently, experience lower revenues, revenue growth and profiff t margins.
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WeWW recentltt yll complm ell tett d thtt e acquisii itii itt ons of TrTT uCodeCC and HRHH G,GG and we may engage inii fuff ture acquisii itii itt ons. Such strtt atett gie c
acquisii itii itt ons may be expeee nsive,e titt mii e consuminii g, and subject tott othtt er inii herent risii ks which may jeopardizii e our abilii ill tii ytt tott
realill zii e antitt cipatii ett d benefe iff tii stt .

We may acquire additional businesses, technologies and products if we determine that these additional businesses, technologies
and products are likely to serve our strategic goals. Acquisitions have inherent risks, which may have a material adverse effff eff ct
on our business, fiff nancial condition, operating results or prospects, including, but not limited to the folff lowing:

• signififf cant acquisition and integration costs;

• faff ilure to achieve projected synergies and perforff mance targets;

• potentially dilutive issuances of our securities, the incurrence of debt and contingent liabia lities and amortization
expenses related to intangible assets with indefiff nite usefulff lives, which could adversely affff eff ct our results of operations
and fiff nancial condition;

• using cash as acquisition currency may adversely affff eff ct interest or investment income, which may in turt n adversely
affff eff ct our earnings and/or earnings per share;

• diffff iff culty in fulff ly or effff eff ctively integrating the acquired technologies, softff ware products, services, business practices or
personnel, which would prevent us frff om realizing the intended benefiff ts of the acquisition;

• faff ilure to maintain uniforff m standard controls, policies and procedures across acquired businesses;

• diffff iff culty in predicting and responding to issues related to product transition such as development, distribution and
client support;

• the possible adverse effff eff ct of such acquisitions on existing relationships with third party partners and suppliers of
technologies and services;

• the possibility that staffff or clients of the acquired companies might not accept new ownership and may transition to
diffff eff rent technologies or attempt to renegotiate contract terms or relationships, including maintenance or support
agreements;

• the assumption of known and unknown liabia lities;

• the possibility that the due diligence process in any such acquisition may not completely identifyff material issues
associated with product quality, product architecturt e, product development, intellectuat l property issues, key personnel
issues or legal and fiff nancial contingencies, including any defiff ciencies in internal controls and procedures and the costs
associated with remedying such defiff ciencies;

• diffff iff culty in entering geographia c and/or business markets in which we have no or limited prior experience;

• diversion of management’s attention frff om other business concerns; and

• the possibility that acquired assets become impaired, requiring us to take a charge to earnings which could be
signififf cant.

A faff ilure to successfulff ly integrate acquired businesses or technology in a timely manner could, forff any of these reasons, have an
adverse effff eff ct on our fiff nancial condition and results of operations. As a result, we may not be abla e to realize the expected
benefiff ts that we seek to achieve frff om the acquisitions, which could also affff eff ct our abia lity to service our debt obligations. In
addition, we may be required to spend additional time or money on integration that otherwise would be spent on the
development and expansion of our business.

IfII we are unablell tott atttt rtt act and retaitt nii qualill fi iff ed persrr onnel,ll our businii ess and operatitt nii g resultll stt wilii lll sufu fff eff r.rr

Our client service and support is a key component of our business. Most of our hospital clients have small inforff mation
technology staffff sff , and they depend on us to service and support their systems. Futurt e diffff iff culty in attracting, training and
retaining capaa bla e client service and support personnel could cause a decrease in the overall quality of our client service and
support. That decrease would have a negative effff eff ct on client satisfaff ction which could cause us to lose existing clients and
could have an adverse effff eff ct on our new client sales. The loss of clients due to inadequate client service and support would
negatively impact our abia lity to continue to grow our business.
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WeWW periodicallll yll have restrtt uctured our salell s forff ce,e which can be disii ruptu itt ve.ee

We continue to rely heavily on our direct sales forff ce. Periodically, we have restrucr turt ed or made other adjustments to our sales
forff ce in response to faff ctors such as product changes, geographia cal coverage and other internal considerations. Change in the
strucr turt es of the sales forff ce and sales forff ce management can result in temporaryrr lack of focff us and reduced productivity that
may affff eff ct revenues in one or more quarters. Futurt e restrucr turt ing of our sales forff ce could occur, and if so we may again
experience the adverse transition issues associated with such restrucr turt ing.

IfII we are unablell tott manage our growthtt inii thtt e new markerr tstt we may entett r,r our businii ess and fiff nii ancial resultll stt couldll sufu fff eff r.rr

Our futff urt e fiff nancial results will depend in part on our abia lity to profiff tabla y manage our business in new markets that we may
enter. We are engaging in the strategic identififf cation of,ff and competition forff , growth and expansion opportunit ties in new
markets or offff eff rings. In order to successfulff ly execute on these futff urt e initiatives, we will need to, among other things, manage
changing business conditions and develop expertise in areas outside of our business's traditional core competencies. Diffff iff culties
in managing futff urt e growth in new markets could have a signififf cant negative impact on our business, fiff nancial condition and
results of operations.

Our inii tett rnatitt onal businii ess actitt vitii itt es and processes exposee e us tott numerous and oftff ett n confn lff ill ctitt nii g lawll sw ,s regue latll itt ons,s polill cies,s
stantt dards or othtt er requirii ementstt ,s and tott risii ks thtt at couldll harmrr our businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditii itt on and resultll stt of operatitt ons.

Our subsidiary,rr Get Real Health, sells patient engagement technology to hospital systems and government agencies in Canada,
Australia, England, the United Araba Emirates and the Netherlands, directly and through resellers, and Evident has had limited
sales of EHR softff ware to government agencies in Canada and the Caribbean. Our business in these countries is subject to
numerous risks inherent in international business operations. Among others, these risks include:

• data protection and privacy regulations regarding access by government authorities to customer, partner, or employee
data;

• data residency requirements (the requirement to store certain data only in and, in some cases, also to access such data
only frff om within a certain jurisdiction);

• conflff ict and overlapa among tax regimes;

• possible tax constraints impeding business operations in certain countries;

• expenses associated with the localization of our products and compliance with local regulatoryrr requirements;

• discriminatoryrr or conflff icting fiff scal policies;

• operational diffff iff culties in countries with a high corruptr ion perception index;

• diffff iff culties enforff cing intellectuat l property and contractuat l rights in certain jurisdictions;

• country-rr specififf c softff ware certififf cation requirements;

• compliance with various industryrr standards; and

• market volatilities or workforff ce restrictions due to changing laws and regulations resulting frff om political decisions
(e.g. Brexit, government elections).

As we expand into new countries and markets, these risks could intensify.ff The appla ication of the respective local laws and
regulations to our business is sometimes unclear, subject to change over time, and oftff en conflff icting among jurisdictions.
Additionally, these laws and government appra oaches to enforff cement are continuing to change and evolve, just as our products
and services continually evolve. Compliance with these varyirr ng laws and regulations could involve signififf cant costs or require
changes in products or business practices. Non-compliance could result in the imposition of penalties or cessation of orders due
to alleged non-compliant activity. We do not believe we have engaged in any activities sanctionabla e under these laws and
regulations, but governmental authorities could use considerabla e discretion in appla ying these statutt es and any imposition of
sanctions against us could be material. One or more of these faff ctors could have an adverse effff eff ct on our operations globally or
in one or more countries or regions, which could have an adverse effff eff ct on our business, fiff nancial condition and results of
operations.
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WeWW facff e thtt e risii ks and uncertaitt nii titt es thtt at are associatett d witii htt inii vestitt gati itt ons and lill tii itt gati itt on againii st us,s which may adversrr elyll
imii pacm t our markerr titt nii g, disii trtt act management and have a negate itt ve imii pacm t uponu our businii ess,s resultll stt of operatitt ons and
fiff nii ancial conditii itt on.

We faff ce the risks associated with litigation concerning the operation of our business. For example, companies in our industry,rr
including many of our competitors, have been subject to litigation based on allegations of patent infrff ingement or other
violations of intellectuat l property rights. In particular, patent holding companies oftff en engage in litigation to seek to monetize
patents that they have obtained. As the number of competitors, patents and patent holding companies in our industryrr increases,
the funcff tionality of our products and services expands, and we enter into new geographia es and markets, the number of
intellectuat l property rights-related actions against us is likely to continue to increase. The uncertainty associated with
substantial unresolved litigation may have an adverse effff eff ct on our business. In particular, such litigation could impair our
relationships with existing clients and our abia lity to obtain new clients. Defeff nding such litigation may result in a diversion of
management's time and attention away frff om business operations, which could have an adverse effff eff ct on our business, results of
operations and fiff nancial condition. Such litigation may also have the effff eff ct of discouraging potential acquirers frff om bidding forff
us or reducing the consideration such acquirers would otherwise be willing to pay in connection with an acquisition.

There can be no assurance that such litigation will not result in liabia lity in excess of our insurance coverage, that our insurance
will cover such claims or that appra opriate insurance will continue to be availabla e to us in the futff urt e at commercially reasonabla e
rates.

Investigations may lead to futff urt e requests forff inforff mation and ultimately the assertion of claims or the commencement of legal
proceedings against us, which themselves may lead to material fiff nes, penalties or other material liabia lities. In addition, our
responses to these and any futff urt e requests require time and effff orff t, which can result in additional cost to us. Given the highly-
regulated naturt e of our industry,rr we have been and may, frff om time to time, be subject to subpoenas, requests forff inforff mation, or
investigations frff om various government agencies.

WeWW use offff sff hore thtt irii d-par- tytt partntt ersrr inii InII dia, PanPP ama, thtt e PhPP ilii ill ppiii nii es and KeKK nyn a thtt at exposee e us tott risii ks thtt at couldll have a
matett rial adversrr e efe fff eff ct on our operatitt nii g coststt .

Our reliance on an international workforff ce exposes us to business disruptrr ions caused by the political and economic
environment in those regions. Terrorist attacks and acts of violence or war may directly affff eff ct our workforff ce or contribute to
general instabia lity. Our global business services operations require us to comply with local laws and regulatoryrr requirements,
which are complex and of which we may not always be aware, and expose us to forff eign currency exchange rate risk. Our global
business services operations may also subject us to trade restrictions, reduced or inadequate protection forff intellectuat l property
rights, security breaches, and public health events, including the COVID-19 pandemic and other faff ctors which may adversely
affff eff ct our business. Negative developments in any of these areas could increase our operating costs or otherwise harm our
business. In addition, local laws and customs in countries in which we contract with third-party partners may diffff eff r frff om those
in the U.S. For example, it may be a local custom forff businesses to engage in practices that are prohibited by our internal
policies and procedures or U.S. laws and regulations appla icabla e to us, such as the Foreign Corruptr Practices Act ("FCPA"). The
FCPA generally prohibits U.S. companies frff om giving or offff eff ring money, giftff s, or anything of value to a forff eign offff iff cial to
obtain or retain business and requires businesses to make and keep accurate books and records and a system of internal
accounting controls. We cannot guarantee that our employees, contractors, and agents will comply with all of our FCPA
compliance policies and procedures. If we or our employees, contractors, or agents faff il to comply with the requirements of the
FCPA or similar legislation, government authorities in the U.S. and elsewhere could seek to impose civil or criminal fiff nes and
penalties which could have a material adverse effff eff ct on our business, operating results, and fiff nancial condition.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Our faiff lii ure tott developll new productstt or enhance current productstt inii respons se tott markerr t demands couldll adversrr elyll imii pacm t our
compem titt tii itt ve positii itt on and requirii e substantt titt al capitii altt resources tott correct.tt

The needs of hospitals in our target market are subject to rapia d change due to government regulation, trends in clinical care
practices and technological advancements. As a result of these changes, our products may quickly become obsolete or less
competitive. New product introducd tions and enhancements by our competitors that more effff eff ctively or timely respond to
changing industryrr needs may weaken our competitive position.

We continually redesign and enhance our products to incorporr ate new technologies and adapta our products to ever-changing
hardware and softff ware platforff ms. Oftff en we faff ce diffff iff cult choices regarding which new technologies to adopt. If we faff il to
anticipate or respond adequately to technological advancements, or experience signififf cant delays in product development or
introduction, our competitive position could be negatively affff eff cted. Moreover, our faff ilure to offff eff r products acceptabla e to our

31



target market could require us to make signififf cant capia tal investments and incur higher operating costs to redesign our products,
which could negatively affff eff ct our fiff nancial condition and operating results.

Our productstt assisii t clill nii ical decisii ion-makinii g and relatll ett d care by capturinii g, mainii taitt nii inii g and reporee titt nii g relell vant patitt ent data.tt
IfII our productstt faiff lii tott provide accuratett and titt mii elyll inii fn orff mrr atitt on, our clill entstt couldll assert claill mii s againii st us thtt at couldll resultll inii
substantt titt al cost tott us,s harmrr our repuee tattt itt on inii thtt e inii dustrtt yr and cause demand forff our productstt tott declill nii e.ee

We provide products that assist clinical decision-making and related care by capta urt ing, maintaining and reporting relevant
patient data. Our products could faff il or produce inaccurate results due to a variety of reasons, including unexpected service
disruptr ions, mechanical error, product flff aws, faff ulty installation and/or human error during the initial data conversion. If our
products faff il to provide accurate and timely inforff mation, clients and/or patients could sue us to hold us responsible forff losses
they incur frff om these errors. These lawsuits, regardless of merit or outcome, could result in substantial cost to us, divert
management’s attention frff om operations and decrease market acceptance of our products. We attempt to limit by contract our
liabia lity forff damages arising frff om negligence, errors or mistakes. Despite this precaution, such contract provisions may not be
enforff ceabla e or may not otherwise protect us frff om liabia lity forff damages. We maintain general liabia lity insurance coverage,
including coverage forff errors or omissions. However, this coverage may not be suffff iff cient to cover one or more large claims
against us or otherwise continue to be availabla e on terms acceptabla e to us. In addition, the insurer could disclaim coverage as to
any futff urt e claim.

Breaches of securitii ytt and virii uses inii our sys stett ms couldll resultll inii clill ent claill mii s againii st us and harmrr tott our repuee tattt itt on causinii g
us tott inii cur expeee nses and/or// losll e clill entstt .

In the course of our business operations, we compile and transmit confiff dential inforff mation, including patient health
inforff mation. We have included security feff aturt es in our systems that are intended to protect the privacy and integrity of this
inforff mation. Despite the existence of these security feff aturt es, our system may experience break-ins and similar disruptr ive
problems that could jeopardize the security of inforff mation stored in and transmitted through the inforff mation technology
networks of our clients. In addition, the other systems with which we may interfaff ce, such as the Internet and related systems,
may be vulnerabla e to security breaches, virusr es, programming errors or similar disruptr ive problems. Based on the size of our
company, the industryrr in which we operate, and the overall percentage of impacted companies in the same or similar industry,rr it
is probabla e there will be attempts to breach our security. Healthcare inforff mation has become a prime target forff attackers based
on the value of the inforff mation and, thereforff e, has the potential to increase the risk of us experiencing a cyber attack.

Our systems have experienced various immaterial breaches in the past, including ransomware, denial-of-ff service, malware, and
phishing. Also, our business partners have experienced security breaches, which is disruptr ive forff our customers. While these
events have not had an adverse impact on our business or fiff nancial condition, security breaches such as these could have a
material adverse effff eff ct on our fiff nancial condition, as, (a) clients could sue us forff breaches of security involving our system due
to the sensitivity of the medical inforff mation we compile and transmit; (b) actuat l or perceived security breaches in our system
could harm the market perception of our products which could cause us to lose existing and prospective clients; and (c) the
effff eff ct of security breaches and related issues could disruptr our abia lity to perforff m certain key business funcff tions and could
potentially reduce demand forff our products and services. Accordingly, we have expended signififf cant resources toward
establa ishing and enhancing the security of our related infrff astrucr turt es and we have enhanced our cybersecurity risk management
program and disclosure controls and procedures, as discussed under "Business - Our Products and Services." However, no
assurance can be given that these effff orff ts will be suffff iff cient to protect against a breach or other cybersecurity incident. Also,
maintaining and enhancing our infrff astrucrr turt e security may require us to expend signififf cant capia tal in the futff urt e.

Our networks have been, and likely will continue to be, subject to Distributed Denial of Service ("DDoS") attacks. Recent
industryrr experience has demonstrated that DDoS attacks continue to grow in size and sophistication and have the abia lity to
widely disruptrr services. In recent years, the size of DDoS attacks has grown rapia dly. While we have adopted mitigation
techniques, procedures and strategies to defeff nd against DDoS attacks, there can be no assurance that we will be abla e to defeff nd
against everyrr attack, especially as the attacks increase in size and sophistication. Any attack, even if only partially successfulff ,
could disruptr our networks, increase response time, negatively impact our abia lity to meet our service level obligations, and
generally impede our abia lity to provide reliabla e service to our customers and the broader internet community.

NeNN w productstt thtt at we inii trtt oduce or enhancementstt tott our exiee sii titt nii g productstt may contaitt nii undetett ctett d errorsrr or problell ms thtt at
couldll affff eff ct clill ent satitt sii fs acff titt on and cause a decrease inii revenues.

Highly complex softff ware products such as ours sometimes contain undetected errors or faff ilures when fiff rst introduced or when
updates and new versions are released. Tests of our products may not detect bugs or errors because it is diffff iff cult to simulate our
clients’ wide variety of computing environments. Despite extensive testing, frff om time to time we have discovered defeff cts or
errors in our products. Defeff cts or errors discovered in our products could cause delays in product introductions and shipments
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and unexpected service disruptr ions, result in increased costs and diversion of development resources, require design
modififf cations, decrease market acceptance or client satisfaff ction with our products, cause a loss of revenue, result in legal
actions by our clients and cause increased insurance costs.

WeWW may not be successfs uff l inii convinii cinii g customtt ersrr tott migri atett tott current or fuff ture relell ases of our productstt ,s which may lell ad
tott reduced services and mainii tett nance revenues and lell ss fuff ture businii ess frff om exiee sii titt nii g customtt ersrr .

Our customers may not be willing to incur the costs or invest the resources necessaryrr to complete upgrades to current or futff urt e
releases of our products. This may lead to our loss of services and maintenance revenues and futff urt e business frff om customers
that continue to operate prior versions of our products or choose to no longer use our products.

FaiFF lii ure tott mainii taitt nii our margir nii s and service ratett s forff imii plm ell mentattt itt on services couldll have a matett rial adversrr e efe fff eff ct on our
operatitt nii g perfr orff mrr ance and fiff nii ancial conditii itt on.

A signififf cant portion of our revenues is derived frff om implementation services. If we faff il to scope our implementation projects
correctly, our services margins may suffff eff r. We bill forff implementation services predominately on an hourly or daily basis (time
and materials) and sometimes under fiff xed price contracts, and we generally recognize revenue frff om those services as we
perforff m the work. If we are not abla e to maintain the current service rates forff our time and materials implementation services,
without corresponding cost reductions, or if the percentage of fiff xed price contracts increases and we underestimate the costs of
our fiff xed price contracts, our operating perforff mance may suffff eff r. The rates we charge forff our implementation services depend
on a number of faff ctors, including the folff lowing:

• perceptions of our abia lity to add value through our implementation services;

• complexity of services perforff med;

• competition;

• pricing policies of our competitors and of systems integrators;

• the use of globally sourced, lower-cost service deliveryrr capaa bia lities within our industry;rr and

• economic, political and market conditions.

SeSS rvices revenues carryr lowll er gross margir nii s thtt an lill cense revenues and an overallll inii crease inii services revenues as a
percentagett of tottt altt revenues couldll have an adversrr e imii pacm t on our businii ess.

Because our service revenues have lower gross margins than do our license revenues, an increase in the percentage of total
revenues represented by service revenues could have a detrimental impact on our overall gross margins and could adversely
affff eff ct operating results.

WeWW may be subject tott lill abilii ill tii ytt inii thtt e event we provide inii accuratett claill mii s datatt tott payorsrr .

We offff eff r electronic claims submission services as part of our business management services. While we have implemented
certain product feff aturt es designed to maximize the accuracy and completeness of claims submissions, these feff aturt es may not be
suffff iff cient to prevent inaccurate claims data frff om being submitted to payors. Should inaccurate claims data be submitted to
payors, we may be subject to liabia lity claims.

WeWW may expeee rience lill abilii ill tii ytt claill mii s arisii inii g out of thtt e lill censinii g of our softff wtt are and provisii ion of services.

Our agreements normally contain provisions designed to limit our exposure to potential liabia lity claims and generally exclude
consequential and other forff ms of extraordinaryrr damages. However, these provisions could be rendered ineffff eff ctive, invalid or
unenforff ceabla e by unfaff vorabla e judicial decisions or by feff deral, state, local or forff eign laws or ordinances. For example, we may
not be abla e to avoid or limit liabia lity forff disputes relating to product perforff mance or the provision of services. If a claim against
us were to be successfulff , we may be required to incur signififf cant expense and pay substantial damages, including consequential
or punitive damages, which could have a material adverse effff eff ct on our business, operating results and fiff nancial condition.
Even if we prevail in contesting such a claim, the accompanying publicity could adversely affff eff ct the demand forff our products
and services.

We also rely on certain technology that we license frff om third parties, including softff ware that is integrated with our internally
developed softff ware. Although these third parties generally indemnifyff us against claims that their technology infrff inges on the
proprietaryrr rights of others, such indemnififf cation is not always availabla e forff all types of intellectuat l property. Oftff en such third-
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party indemnififf ers are not well capia talized and may not be abla e to indemnifyff us in the event that their technology infrff inges on
the proprietaryrr rights of others. As a result, we may faff ce substantial exposure if technology we license frff om a third party
infrff inges on another party’s proprietaryrr rights. Defeff nding such infrff ingement claims, regardless of their validity, could result in
signififf cant cost and diversion of resources.

WeWW are depeee ndent on our lill censes of righi tstt ,s productstt and services frff om thtt irii d partitt es,s disii ruptu itt ons of which may cause us tott
disii contitt nii ue,e delayll or reduce product shipmii entstt .

We are increasingly dependent upon licenses forff some of the technology used in our products as well as other products and
services frff om third-party vendors, and the costs of these licenses have increased in recent years. Most of these arrangements can
be continued/renewed only by mutuat l consent and may be terminated forff any number of reasons. We may not be abla e to
continue using the technology, products or services made availabla e to us under these arrangements on commercially reasonabla e
terms or at all. As a result, we may have to discontinue, delay or reduce product shipments or services provided until we can
obtain equivalent technology or services. Most of our third-party licenses are non-exclusive. Our competitors may obtain the
right to use any of the business elements covered by these arrangements and use these elements to compete directly with us. In
addition, if our vendors choose to discontinue providing their technology, products or services in the futff urt e or are unsuccessfulff
in their continued research and development effff orff ts, we may not be abla e to modifyff or adapta our own products. The operation of
our products would be impaired if errors occur in third party technology or content that we incorporrr ate, and we may incur
additional costs to repair or replace the defeff ctive technology or content. It may be diffff iff cult forff us to correct any errors in third
party products because the products are not within our control.

Because we belill eve thtt at proprietartt yr righi tstt are matett rial tott our success,s misii appropriatitt on of thtt ese righi tstt couldll lill mii itii our
abilii ill tii ytt tott compem tett efe fff eff ctitt velyll and adversrr elyll affff eff ct our fiff nii ancial conditii itt on.

We are heavily dependent on the maintenance and protection of our intellectuat l property and we rely largely on a combination
of confiff dentiality provisions in our client agreements, employee nondisclosure agreements, trademark and trade secret laws and
other measures to protect our intellectuat l property. Additionally, our softff ware is not patented or copyrighted. Although we
attempt to control access to our intellectuat l property, unauthorized persons may attempt to copy or otherwise use our
intellectuat l property. There can be no assurance that the legal protections and precautions we take will be adequate to prevent
misappra opriation of our technology or that competitors will not independently develop technologies equivalent or superior to
ours. Monitoring unauthorized use of our intellectuat l property is diffff iff cult, and the steps we have taken may not prevent
unauthorized use. If our competitors gain access to our intellectuat l property, our competitive position in the industryrr could be
damaged. An inabia lity to compete effff eff ctively could cause us to lose existing and potential clients and experience lower
revenues, revenue growth and profiff t margins. Third parties could obtain patents that may require us to negotiate licenses to
conduct our business, and the required licenses may not be availabla e on reasonabla e terms or at all. We also rely on
nondisclosure agreements with certain employees, and we cannot be certain that these agreements will not be breached or that
we will have adequate remedies forff any breach.

IfII we are deemed tott inii fn rff inii ge on thtt e inii tett llll ell ctual propertytt righi tstt of thtt irii d partitt es,s we couldll inii cur unantitt cipatii ett d expeee nse and be
preventett d frff om providinii g our productstt and services ifi we cannot obtaitt nii lill censes tott thtt ese righi tstt on commerciallll yll acceptee abltt ell
tett rmrr s.

We do not believe that our operations or products infrff inge on the intellectuat l property rights of others. However, there can be
no assurance that others will not assert infrff ingement or trade secret claims against us with respect to our current or futff urt e
products. Many participants in the technology industryrr have an increasing number of patents and patent appla ications and have
frff equently demonstrated a readiness to take legal action based on allegations of patent and other intellectuat l property
infrff ingement. Further, as the number and funcff tionality of our products increase, we believe we may become increasingly
subject to the risk of infrff ingement claims. If infrff ingement claims are brought against us, these assertions could distract
management. We may have to spend a signififf cant amount of money and time to defeff nd or settle those claims. In addition,
claims against third parties frff om which we purchase softff ware could adversely affff eff ct our abia lity to access third-party softff ware
forff our systems.

If we were foundff to infrff inge on the intellectuat l property rights of others, we could be forff ced to pay signififf cant license feff es or
damages forff infrff ingement. If we were unabla e to obtain licenses to these rights on commercially acceptabla e terms, we would be
required to discontinue the sale of our products that contain the infrff inging technology. Our clients would also be required to
discontinue the use of those products. We are unabla e to insure against this risk on an economically feff asible basis. Even if we
were to prevail in an infrff ingement lawsuit, the accompanying publicity could adversely impact the demand forff our products.
Under some circumstances, we agree to indemnifyff our clients forff some types of infrff ingement claims that may arise frff om the use
of our products.
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InII tett rruptu itt ons inii our power supplu yll and/or// tett lell communicatitt ons capabilii ill tii itt es couldll disii ruptu our operatitt ons,s cause us tott losll e
revenues and/or// inii crease our expeee nses.

We currently have backup generators to be used as alternative sources of power in the event of a loss of power to our faff cilities.
If these generators were to faff il during any power outage, we would be temporarily unabla e to continue operations at our
faff cilities. This would have adverse consequences forff our clients who depend on us forff system support, business management,
and managed IT and profeff ssional services. Any such interruptrr ion in operations at our faff cilities could damage our reputation,
harm our abia lity to retain existing clients and obtain new clients, and result in lost revenue and increased insurance and other
operating costs.

We also have clients forff whom we store and maintain computer servers containing critical patient and administrative data.
Those clients access this data remotely through telecommunications lines. If our power generators faff il during any power outage
or if our telecommunications lines are severed or impaired forff any reason, those clients would be unabla e to access their mission
critical data causing an interruptr ion in their operations. In such event our remote access clients and/or their patients could seek
to hold us responsible forff any losses. We would also potentially lose those clients, and our reputation could be harmed.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INDEBTEDNESS

VolVV atll itt lii ill tii ytt inii and disii ruptu itt on tott thtt e globalll capitii altt and creditii markerr tstt and titt ghi tett ned lell ndinii g stantt dards may adversrr elyll affff eff ct our
abilii ill tii ytt tott access creditii inii thtt e fuff ture,e thtt e cost of anyn creditii obtaitt nii ed inii thtt e fuff ture,e and thtt e fiff nii ancial soundness of our clill entstt
and our businii ess.

Domestic and international events have frff equently resulted in volatility and disruptr ion to the global capia tal and credit markets,
oftff en adversely affff eff cting the availabia lity, terms and cost of credit. Although we believe that our operating cash flff ow and
fiff nancial assets will give us the abia lity to meet our fiff nancing needs forff the forff eseeabla e futff urt e, there can be no assurance that the
volatility and disruptr ion in the global capia tal and credit markets will not impair our liquidity or increase the costs of any futff urt e
borrowing.

Our business could also be negatively impacted to the extent that our hospital clients continue to faff ce tight capia tal and credit
markets and other disruptr ions resulting frff om the COVID-related economic recession or cuts in Medicare and Medicaid fundiff ng.
Hospitals may modify,ff delay or cancel plans to purchase our softff ware systems or services. Additionally, if hospitals’ operating
and fiff nancial perforff mance deteriorates, or if they are unabla e to make scheduled payments or obtain credit, they may not be abla e
to pay, or may delay payment of,ff accounts receivabla e owed to us. Any inabia lity of clients to pay us forff our products and
services may adversely affff eff ct our earnings and cash flff ow.

Tightened lending standards and the absa ence of third-party credit has resulted in many of our hospital clients seeking fiff nancing
arrangements frff om us to purchase our softff ware systems and services. These fiff nancing arrangements impact our short-term
operating cash flff ow and cash availabla e. Should the requests forff these fiff nancing arrangements continue or increase, our business
could be negatively impacted by our inabia lity to fiff nance these arrangements. In addition, the absa ence of credit could negatively
impact our existing fiff nancing receivabla es should our clients with fiff nancing arrangements be unabla e to meet their obligations.

Our substantt titt al inii debtett dness may adversrr elyll affff eff ct our availii ablll ell cash flff owll and our abilii ill tii ytt tott operatett our businii ess,s remainii inii
complm ill ance witii htt debt covenantstt and make paymentstt on our inii debtett dness.

As of December 31, 2022, we had appra oximately $141.1 million in principal amount of indebtedness, which includes $67.4
million under our term loan faff cility and $73.7 million borrowed under our revolving credit faff cility. We also had $86.3 million
of unused commitments under our revolving credit faff cility as of December 31, 2022.

Our substantial indebtedness increases the possibility that we may be unabla e to generate cash suffff iff cient to pay, when due, the
principal of,ff interest on or other amounts due in respect of our indebtedness. Our substantial indebtedness, combined with our
other fiff nancial obligations and contractuat l commitments, could have important consequences. For example, it could:

• make it more diffff iff cult forff us to satisfyff our obligations with respect to our indebtedness, and any faff ilure to comply with
the obligations under any of our debt instrumr ents, including restrictive covenants, could result in an event of defaff ult
under such instrumr ents;

• make us more vulnerabla e to adverse changes in general economic, industryrr and competitive conditions and adverse
changes in government regulation;
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• require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flff ow frff om operations to payments on our indebtedness, thereby
reducing the availabia lity of our cash flff ow to fundff working capia tal, capia tal expenditurt es, acquisitions and other general
corporrr ate purposr es;

• limit our flff exibility in planning forff , or reacting to, changes in our business and the industryrr in which we operate;

• place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that are less highly leveraged and thereforff e abla e to
take advantage of opportunit ties that our indebtedness prevents us frff om exploiting; and

• limit our abia lity to borrow additional amounts forff working capia tal, capia tal expenditurt es, acquisitions, debt service
requirements, execution of our business strategy or other purposr es.

Any of the abovea listed faff ctors could have a material adverse effff eff ct on our business, prospects, results of operations and
fiff nancial condition. Furthermore, our interest expense could increase if interest rates increase because our debt bears interest at
flff oating rates, which could adversely affff eff ct our cash flff ows. If we do not have suffff iff cient earnings to service our debt, we may be
required to refiff nance all or part of our existing debt, sell assets, borrow more money or sell securities, none of which we can
guarantee we will be abla e to do.

In addition, the credit agreement governing our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility contains restrictive covenants that
limit our abia lity to engage in activities that may be in our long-term best interests. See "The terms of the credit agreement
governing our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility may restrict our current and futff urt e operations, particularly our
abia lity to respond to changes in our business or to take certain actions."

Despis tii ett our current inii debtett dness lell velsll ,s we and our subsidiaries may stitt lii lll be ablell tott inii cur substantt titt allll yll more debt,tt which
couldll exacee erbatett thtt e risii ks associatett d witii htt our substantt titt al lell verage.ee

We and our subsidiaries may be abla e to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the futff urt e, including secured indebtedness.
Although the credit agreement governing our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility contains restrictions on the
incurrence of additional indebtedness, these restrictions are subject to a number of signififf cant qualififf cations and exceptions, and
the indebtedness incurred in compliance with these restrictions could be substantial. If new debt is added to our or our
subsidiaries’ current debt levels, the related risks that we faff ce would be increased.

ToTT service our inii debtett dness,s we wilii lll requirii e a signi ifi iff cant amount of cash. Our abilii ill tii ytt tott generatett cash depeee nds on manyn
facff tortt srr beye ond our contrtt ol,ll and anyn faiff lii ure tott meet our debt service oblill gati itt ons couldll have a matett rial adversrr e efe fff eff ct on our
businii ess,s prospes ctstt ,s resultll stt of operatitt ons and fiff nii ancial conditii itt on.

Our abia lity to pay interest on and principal of our debt obligations principally depends upon our operating perforff mance. As a
result, prevailing economic conditions and fiff nancial, business and other faff ctors, many of which are beyond our control, will
affff eff ct our abia lity to make these payments.

If we do not generate suffff iff cient cash flff ow frff om operations to satisfyff our debt service obligations, we may have to undertake
alternative fiff nancing plans, such as refiff nancing or restrucrr turt ing our indebtedness, selling assets, reducing or delaying capia tal
investments or capia tal expenditurt es or seeking to raise additional capia tal. Our abia lity to restrucr turt e or refiff nance our debt, if at
all, will depend on the condition of the capia tal markets and our fiff nancial condition at such time. Any refiff nancing of our debt
could be at higher interest rates and may require us to comply with more onerous covenants, which could furff ther restrict our
business operations. In addition, the terms of existing or futff urt e debt instrumrr ents may restrict us frff om adopting some of these
alternatives. Our inabia lity to generate suffff iff cient cash flff ow to satisfyff our debt service obligations, or to refiff nance our obligations
at all or on commercially reasonabla e terms, could affff eff ct our abia lity to satisfyff our debt obligations and have a material adverse
effff eff ct on our business, prospects, results of operations and fiff nancial condition.

ThTT e tett rmrr s of thtt e creditii agreement governrr inii g our tett rmrr loanll facff ilii ill tii ytt and revolvll inii g creditii facff ilii ill tii ytt may restrtt ict our current and
fuff ture operatitt ons,s partitt cularll lyll our abilii ill tii ytt tott respons d tott changes inii our businii ess or tott takett certaitt nii actitt ons.

Our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility contain, and any futff urt e indebtedness of ours would likely contain, a number
of restrictive covenants that impose signififf cant operating restrictions, including restrictions on our abia lity to engage in acts that
may be in our best long-term interests.

The credit agreement governing our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility includes covenants restricting, among other
things, our abia lity to:

• incur additional debt;
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• incur liens and encumbrances;

• pay dividends on our equity securities or payments to redeem, repurchase or retire our equity securities;

• enter into restrictive agreements;

• make investments, loans and acquisitions;

• merge or consolidate with any other person;

• dispose of assets;

• enter into sale and leaseback transactions;

• engage in transactions with our affff iff liates; and

• materially alter the business we conduct.

The operating restrictions and covenants in these debt agreements and any futff urt e fiff nancing agreements may adversely affff eff ct our
abia lity to fiff nance futff urt e operations or capia tal needs or to engage in other business activities. The credit agreement requires
compliance with a consolidated net leverage ratio test and a fiff xed charge coverage ratio test. On March 10, 2023, the calculation
of the fiff xed charge coverage ratio was amended to specififf cally exclude frff om the defiff nition of fiff xed charges the Company's
share repurchases conducted during the third and fourff th quarters of 2022. Any faff ilure by us to comply with this or another
covenant in the futff urt e may result in an event of defaff ult. There can be no assurance that we will be abla e to continue to comply
with this covenant or obtain amendments to avoid futff urt e covenant violations, or that such amendments will be availabla e on
commercially acceptabla e terms.

The credit agreement requires us to mandatorily prepay the term loan faff cility and amounts borrowed under the revolving credit
faff cility with net cash proceeds frff om certain fiff nancing and other transactions. Our abia lity to comply with these covenants may be
affff eff cted by events beyond our control, and any material deviations frff om our forff ecasts could require us to seek waivers or
amendments of covenants, alternative sources of fiff nancing or reductions in expenditurt es. In addition, the outstanding
indebtedness under our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility is, subject to certain exceptions, secured by security
interests in substantially all of our and the subsidiaryrr guarantors’ tangible and intangible assets (subject to certain exceptions).
A breach of any of the restrictive covenants in the credit agreement governing our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility
would result in a defaff ult, and our lenders may elect to declare all outstanding borrowings, together with accruerr d interest and
other feff es, to be immediately due and payabla e, or enforff ce and forff eclose on their security interest and liquidate some or all of
such pledged assets. The lenders under our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility also have the right in these
circumstances to terminate any commitments they have to provide furff ther borrowings.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON STOCK AND OTHER GENERARR L RISKS

WeWW are subject tott changes inii and inii tett rprrr etattt itt ons of fff iff nii ancial accountitt nii g matttt ett rsrr thtt at governrr thtt e measurement of our
perfr orff mrr ance,e one or more of which couldll adversrr elyll affff eff ct our businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditii itt on, cash flff owll s,s revenue and resultll stt
of operatitt ons.

Based on our reading and interprr etations of relevant guidance, principles or concepts issued by, among other authorities, the
American Institutt e of Certififf ed Public Accountants, the Financial Accounting Standards Board and the Securities and Exchange
Commission, we believe revenue received pursuant to our current sales and licensing contract terms and business arrangements
have been properly recognized. However, there continue to be issued interprr etations and guidance forff appla ying the relevant
standards to a wide range of sales and licensing contract terms and business arrangements that are prevalent in the softff ware
industry.rr Futurt e interprr etations or changes by the regulators of existing accounting standards, including Financial Accounting
Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codififf cation ("ASC") Topic 606, Revenue frff om ContCC rt actstt withtt CusCC tomersrr , or
changes in our business practices could result in changes in our revenue recognition and/or other accounting policies and
practices that could adversely affff eff ct our business, fiff nancial condition, cash flff ows, revenue and results of operations.

WeWW may be requirii ed tott record a signi ifi iff cant charger tott earninii gs ifi our goodwilii lll or inii tantt gibli ell assetstt become imii paim rii ed.

We are required under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP") to test our goodwill forff impairment
annually or more frff equently if indicators forff potential impairment exist. Indicators that are considered include signififf cant
changes in perforff mance relative to expected operating results, signififf cant changes in the use of the assets, signififf cant negative
industry,rr or economic trends, or a signififf cant decline in the Company's stock price and/or market capia talization forff a sustained
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period of time. In addition, we periodically review our intangible assets forff impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carryirr ng value may not be recoverabla e. Factors that may be considered a change in
circumstances indicating that the carryirr ng value of our intangible assets may not be recoverabla e include slower growth rates, the
loss of signififf cant clients, or divestiturt e of a business or asset forff less than its carryirr ng value. We may be required to record a
signififf cant charge to earnings in our consolidated fiff nancial statements during the period in which any impairment of our
goodwill or intangible assets is determined. For example, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $28.0 million in the
fourff th quarter of 2017 relating to our Post-acute Care EHR reporting unit, which consists soley of AHT, which we acquired in
Januaryrr 2016 as part of our acquisition of HHI. This impairment charge had a signififf cant negative effff eff ct on our consolidated
net income forff the year ended December 31, 2017.

Any futff urt e impairment charges could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations. There are inherent
uncertainties in management's estimates, judgments and assumptions used in assessing recoverabia lity of goodwill and intangible
assets. Any changes in key assumptions, including faff ilure to meet business plans, a deterioration in the market, or other
unanticipated events and circumstances, may affff eff ct the accuracy or validity of such estimates and could potentially result in an
impairment charge.

ThTT e unprn edictabitt lii ill tii ytt of our quartett rlyll operatitt nii g resultll stt may cause us tott faiff lii tott meet revenues or earninii gs expeee ctattt itt ons which
couldll cause thtt e price of our common stoctt k tott flff uctuatett or declill nii e.ee

There is no assurance that consistent quarterly growth in our business will occur. Our quarterly revenues may flff uctuat te and may
be diffff iff cult to forff ecast forff a variety of reasons. For example, prospective clients oftff en take signififf cant time evaluating our
system and related services beforff e making a purchase decision. Moreover, a prospective client who has placed an order forff our
system could decide to cancel that order or postponet installation of the ordered system. If a prospective client delays or cancels
a scheduled system installation during any quarter, we may not be abla e to schedule a substitutt e system installation during that
quarter. The amount of revenues that would have been generated frff om that installation will be postponet d or lost. The possibility
of delays or cancellations of scheduled system installations could cause our quarterly revenues to flff uctuat te.

The folff lowing faff ctors may also affff eff ct demand forff our products and services and cause our quarterly revenues to flff uctuat te:

• changes in client budgets and purchasing priorities;

• the abia lity of our clients to obtain fiff nancing forff the purchase of our products;

• the fiff nancial stabia lity of our clients;

• the specififf c mix of softff ware, hardware and services in orders frff om clients;

• the timing of new product announcements and product introductions by us and our competitors;

• market acceptance of new products, product enhancements and services frff om us and our competitors;

• product and price competition;

• our success in expanding our sales and marketing programs;

• the availabia lity and cost of system components;

• delay of revenue recognition to futff urt e quarters due to an increase in the sales of our remote access SaaS services;

• the length of sales cycles and installation processes;

• changes in revenue recognition or other accounting guidelines employed by us and/or establa ished by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board or other rulr emaking bodies;

• accounting policies concerning the timing of recognition of revenue;

• personnel changes; and

• general market and economic faff ctors.

Variations in our quarterly revenues may adversely affff eff ct our operating results. In each fiff scal quarter, our expense levels,
operating costs and hiring plans are based on projections of futff urt e revenues and are relatively fiff xed. Because a signififf cant
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percentage of our expenses are relatively fiff xed, a variation in the timing of systems sales, implementations and installations can
cause signififf cant variations in operating results frff om quarter to quarter. As a result, we believe that interim period-to-period
comparisons of our results of operations are not necessarily meaningfulff and should not be relied upon as indications of futff urt e
perforff mance. Further, our historical operating results are not necessarily indicative of futff urt e perforff mance forff any particular
period.

Due to all of the forff egoing faff ctors, it is possible that our operating results may be below the expectations of securities analysts
and investors. In such event, the price of our common stock would likely be adversely affff eff cted.

Our common stoctt k price has periodicallll yll expeee rienced signi ifi iff cant volatll itt lii ill tii ytt ,yy which couldll resultll inii substantt titt al losll ses forff
inii vestortt srr purchasinii g shares of our common stoctt k and inii lill tii itt gati itt on againii st us.

Volatility may be caused by a number of faff ctors including but not limited to:

• actuat l or anticipated quarterly variations in operating results;

• rumr ors abouta our perforff mance, softff ware solutions, or merger and acquisition activity;

• changes in expectations of futff urt e fiff nancial perforff mance or changes in estimates of securities analysts;

• governmental regulatoryrr action;

• healthcare reforff m measures;

• client relationship developments;

• purchases or sales of Company stock;

• changes occurring in the markets in general;

• macroeconomic conditions, both nationally and internationally; and

• other faff ctors, many of which are beyond our control.

Furthermore, the stock market in general, and the market forff softff ware, healthcare and high technology companies in particular,
has experienced signififf cant volatility in recent years that oftff en has been unrelated to the operating perforff mance of particular
companies. These broad market and industryrr flff uctuat tions may adversely affff eff ct the trading price of our common stock,
regardless of actuat l operating perforff mance.

Moreover, in the past, securities class action litigation has oftff en been brought against a company folff lowing periods of volatility
in the market price of its securities. We may in the futff urt e be the target of similar litigation. Securities litigation could result in
substantial costs and divert management’s attention and resources.

IfII we faiff lii tott mainii taitt nii efe fff eff ctitt ve inii tett rnal contrtt ol over fiff nii ancial reporee titt nii g, thtt isii may adversrr elyll affff eff ct inii vestortt confn iff dence inii our
companm yn and, as a resultll ,tt thtt e value of our common stoctt k.

We are required under Section 404 of the Sarbar nes-Oxley Act to furff nish a report by management on the effff eff ctiveness of our
internal control over fiff nancial reporting and to include a report by our independent auditors attesting to such effff eff ctiveness. Any
faff ilure by us to maintain effff eff ctive internal control over fiff nancial reporting could adversely affff eff ct our abia lity to report accurately
our fiff nancial condition or results of operations.

If we are unabla e to maintain effff eff ctive internal control over fiff nancial reporting, or if our independent auditors determine that we
have a material weakness in our internal control over fiff nancial reporting, we could lose investor confiff dence in the accuracy and
completeness of our fiff nancial reports, the market price of our common stock could decline, and we could be subject to sanctions
or investigations by the SEC or other regulatoryrr authorities. Failure to remedy any material weakness in our internal control
over fiff nancial reporting, or to implement or maintain other effff eff ctive control systems required of public companies, also could
restrict our futff urt e access to the capia tal markets.
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WeWW do not have emplm oyll ment or non-compem titt tii itt on agreementstt witii htt most of our keye persrr onnel,ll and thtt eirii deparee ture couldll harmrr
our fuff ture success.

Our futff urt e success depends to a signififf cant extent on the leadership and perforff mance of our chief executive offff iff cer and other
executive offff iff cers. Other than Mr. Fowler, we do not have employment or non-competition agreements with any of our
executive offff iff cers. Thereforff e, they may terminate their employment with us at any time and may compete against us. The loss
of the services of any of our executive offff iff cers could have a material adverse effff eff ct on our business, fiff nancial condition and
results of operations.

As a resultll of thtt e inii herent lill mii itii attt itt ons inii our inii tett rnal contrtt ol over fiff nii ancial reporee titt nii g, misii stattt ett mentstt due tott error or frff aud
may occur and not be detett ctett d.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonabla e assurance that inforff mation required to be disclosed
by us in reports we fiff le with or submit to the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) is accumulated
and communicated to management and recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specififf ed in SEC
rulr es and forff ms. We believe that any disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls and procedures, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonabla e, not absa olute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.
These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faff ulty and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake. In addition, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by
collusion of two or more people, or by an unauthorized override of the controls.

MosMM t of our facff ilii ill tii itt es are locll atett d inii an area vulnll erablell tott hurricanes and trtt opical stortt mrr s,s and thtt e occurrence of a severe
hurricane,e simii ilii arll stortt mrr or othtt er natural disii astett r couldll cause damage tott our facff ilii ill tii itt es and equipmii ent,tt which couldll requirii e
us tott cease or lill mii itii our operatitt ons.

A signififf cant portion of our faff cilities and employees are located within 30 miles of the coast of the Gulf of Mexico. Our
faff cilities are vulnerabla e to signififf cant damage or destrucr tion frff om hurricanes and tropical storms. Such disasters may become
more frff equent and/or severe as the result of climate change. We are also vulnerabla e to damage frff om other types of disasters,
including tornadoes, fiff res, flff oods and similar events. If any disaster were to occur, our abia lity to conduct business at our
faff cilities could be seriously impaired or completely destroyed. This would have adverse consequences forff our clients who
depend on us forff system support or business management, consulting and managed IT services. Also, the servers of clients who
use our remote access services could be damaged or destroyed in any such disaster. This would have potentially devastating
consequences to those clients. Although we have an emergency recoveryrr plan, including back-up systems in remote locations,
there can be no assurance that this plan will effff eff ctively prevent the interruptr ion of our business due to a naturt al disaster.
Furthermore, the insurance we maintain may not be adequate to cover our losses resulting frff om any naturt al disaster or other
business interruptrr ion. Moreover, we could be affff eff cted by climate change and other environmental issues to the extent such
issues adversely affff eff ct the general economy, adversely impact our supply chain or increase the costs of supplies needed forff our
operations, or otherwise result in disruptr ions impacting the communities in which our faff cilities are located.

WeWW are exposee ed tott markerr t risii k relatll ett d tott inii tett rest ratett changes.

We are exposed to market risk related to changes in interest rates as a result of the flff oating interest rates appla icabla e to the
outstanding debt under our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility. The interest rate forff the outstanding debt under our
term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility as of December 31, 2022 was 6.39%. Each of our credit faff cilities continues to
bear interest at a rate per annum equal to an appla icabla e margin plus, at our option, either (1) the Adjusted Secured Overnight
Financing Rate ("SOFR") rate forff the relevant interest period, subject to a flff oor of 0.50%, (2) an alternate base rate determined
by refeff rence to the greater of (a) the prime lending rate of Regions, (b) the feff deral fundsff rate forff the relevant interest period plus
one half of one percent per annum and (c) the one month SOFR rate, subject to the aforff ementioned flff oor, plus one percent per
annum, or (3) a combination of (1) and (2). The appla icabla e margin forff SOFR loans and the letter of credit feff e ranges frff om 1.8%
to 3.0%. The appla icabla e margin forff base rate loans ranges frff om 0.8% to 2.0%, in each case based on the Company's
consolidated net leverage ratio. A one hundred basis point change in interest rate on our borrowings outstanding as of
December 31, 2022 would result in a change in interest expense of appra oximately $1.4 million annually.

MacMM roeconomic conditii itt ons couldll have a matett riallll yll adversrr e imii pacm t on our businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditii itt on, or resultll stt of
operatitt ons.

In recent months, record levels of inflff ation have resulted in signififf cant volatility and disruptrr ions in the global economy. In
response to rising inflff ation, central banks, including the United States Federal Reserve, have tightened their monetaryrr policies
and raised interest rates, and such measures may continue if there is a period of sustained heightened inflff ation. Higher interest
rates and volatility in fiff nancial markets could lead to additional economic uncertainty or recession. Increased inflff ation rates
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have increased our and our suppliers’ operating costs, including labora costs. There is no assurance that we will be abla e to
promptly increase our pricing to offff sff et our increased costs in a higher inflff ationaryrr environment, or that our operations will not
be materially impacted by rising inflff ation and its broader effff eff ct on the markets in which we operate in the futff urt e. Impacts frff om
inflff ationaryrr pressures could be more pronounced and materially adversely impact aspects of our business where revenue
streams and costs commitments are linked to contractuat l agreements that extend into the futff urt e, as we may not be abla e to
quickly or easily adjust pricing, reduce costs, or implement countermeasures. We are unabla e to predict the impact of effff orff ts by
central banks and feff deral, state, and local governments to combat elevated levels of inflff ation. If their effff orff ts to create downward
pressure on inflff ation are too aggressive, they may lead to a recession. Alternatively, if they are insuffff iff cient or are not sustained
long enough to bring inflff ation to lower, more acceptabla e levels, our customers’ abia lity or willingness to spend on healthcare
inforff mation technology may be impacted forff a prolonged period of time. If a recession occurs, economies weaken, or
inflff ationaryrr trends continue, our business and operating results could be materially adversely affff eff cted.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

On April 5, 2021, the Company relocated its principal executive offff iff ce pursuant to a sublease forff 20,093 square feff et of offff iff ce
space in downtown Mobile, Alabaa ma. Our corporrr ate campus is located on appra oximately 16.5 acres in Mobile, Alabaa ma and
includes appra oximately 135,500 square feff et of offff iff ce space. Our main campus building consists of appra oximately 66,000 square
feff et of offff iff ce and warehouse space. We also have eleven additional smaller campus buildings consisting of appra oximately 6,000
square feff et of offff iff ce space each and an additional campus building consisting of appra oximately 3,500 square feff et. The Company
also owns 11.3 acres of undeveloped real property adjacent to our corporr ate campus.

We lease the remainder of our faff cilities in various locations in the United States, including: Mobile, Alabaa ma; Pottsville,
Pennsylvania; Glenwood, Minnesota; Plymouth, Minnesota; Ridgeland, Mississippi; Spokane, Washington and Rockville,
Marylrr and. The terms of these lleases ggenerallllyy ra gnge iin lle gngthh frff om one to twellve yyears, a dnd allll of thhe lleases contaiin optiions to
iincrementallllyy exte dnd thhe llease perii dod. Durii gng 2021, we hhadd one llease whihichh e ixpiredd a dnd thhe Compa yny dididd not renew: Monroe,
L iouisiiana. Addidditiionallllyy, on J lulyy 28, 2021, thhe Compa yny termiinatedd iits llease aggreement forff appra ioximatellyy 45,000 square feff et of
offff iiff ce space iin Faiirhhope, Allabbaa ma. Durii gng 2022, we hhadd one llease iin Potts ivilllle, Pennsylylva inia whihichh e ixpiredd a dnd thhe Compa yny
exte dndedd forff a thhree-yyear term. We allso hhadd one llease iin Marshhallll, Miinnesota thhat e ixpiredd iin normall course ddurii gng 2022.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we have been and may again become involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinaryrr course of our
business. We are not presently a party to any litigation or legal proceedings that we believe to be material and we are not aware
of any pending or threatened litigation against us that we believe could have a material adverse effff eff ct on our business, operating
results, fiff nancial condition or cash flff ows. See Note 16 – Commitments and Contingencies included in the notes to our audited
fiff nancial statements included elsewhere in the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

On November 2, 2022, the Company received a subpoena frff om the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
primarily relating to certain accounting matters, including, but not limited to those relating to revenue recognition and
impairment testing of goodwill, during the period frff om May 1, 2019 to the date of the subpoena. The Company is cooperating
in providing documents and inforff mation to the SEC in connection with the subpoena and intends to continue to do so. The
Company cannot predict the timing or outcome of this investigation.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not appla icabla e.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRARR NT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market forff CPSI Common Stock

As of March 9, 2023, there were appra oximately 103 registeredd h lholdders of our common stock, as provided to us by our transfeff r
agent. This number does not include the number of benefiff cial owners whose shares are held in "street" names by broker-dealers
and other institutt ions who hold shares on behalf of their clients. As of March 9, 2023, there were 14,530,201 shhares of common
stockk outsta dindi gng.

CPSI’s common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol "CPSI."

Dividends

On November 2, 2017, the Company announced that our Board of Directors adopted a fiff xed dividend policy forff the payment of
quarterly dividends, and on September 4, 2020, our Board of Directors opted to indefiff nitely suspend all quarterly dividends.
The indefiff nite suspension of quarterly dividends was concurrent with the authorization of a stock repurchase program, aligning
with the Company's capia tal allocation strategy that prioritizes flff exibility to allow forff more opportunit stic uses of capia tal. Our
Board of Directors will take into account such matters as general business conditions, capia tal needs, our fiff nancial results,
availabla e liquidity and such other faff ctors as our Board of Directors may deem relevant in futff urt e dividend declarations.
Additionally, the terms of our Credit Agreement restrict our abia lity to pay dividends. See Item 7, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, “Liquidity and Capia tal Resources-Credit Agreement” included
herein.

Purchases of Equity Securities

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes our repurchase of equity securities during the three months ended December 31, 2022:

Period

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased

Average Price
Paid per Share

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased as
Part of Publicly
Announced
Plans or

Programs (a)

Approximate
Dollar Value of
Shares That
May Yet Be
Purchased

Under the Plans
or Programs (a)

October 1, 2022 - October 31, 2022 . . . . . . . . . . 42,000 $ 29.27 42,000 $ 20,332,714

November 1, 2022 - November 30, 2022 . . . . . . 42,345 $ 28.79 42,345 $ 19,113,761
December 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022 . . . . . . 44,037 $ 27.83 44,037 $ 17,888,286

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 128,382 $ 28.62 128,382

(a) On September 4, 2020, our Board of Directors appra oved a stock repurchase program under which we may repurchase
up to $30.0 million of our common stock through September 3, 2022. On July 27, 2022, the Board of Directors
extended the expiration date of the stock repurchase program to September 4, 2024. Any futff urt e stock repurchase
transactions may be made through open market purchases, privately-negotiated transactions, or otherwise in
compliance with RulRR e 10b-18 under the securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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ITEM 6. [Reserved]

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERARR TIONS

You should read the folff lowing discussion of our fiff nancial condition and results of operations in conjunction with the "Selected
Financial Data" and our fiff nancial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report. This discussion
and analysis contains forff ward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actuat l results may
diffff eff r materially frff om those anticipated in these forff ward-looking statements as a result of many faff ctors, including but not
limited to those set forff th under "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Background

CPSI is a leading provider of healthcare solutions and services forff community hospitals, their clinics and other healthcare
systems. Founded in 1979, CPSI is the parent of six companies – Evident, LLC ("Evident"), American HealthTech, Inc.
("AHT"), TruBr ridge, LLC ("TruBr ridge"), iNetXperts, Corp.r d/b// a Get Real Health ("Get Real Health"), TruCr ode LLC
("TruCrr ode"), and Healthcare Resource Group, Inc. ("HRG"). Our combined companies are focff used on helping improve the
health of the communities we serve, connecting communities forff a better patient care experience, and improving the fiff nancial
operations of our customers. Evident provides comprehensive acute care electronic healthcare record ("EHR") solutions forff
community hospitals and their affff iff liated clinics. AHT is one of the nation’s largest providers of post-acute care EHR solutions
and services forff post-acute care faff cilities. TruBrr ridge focff uses on providing business, consulting and managed IT services, along
with its complete revenue cycle management ("RCM") solution, forff all care settings. Get Real Health focff uses on solutions
aimed at improving patient engagement forff individuals and healthcare providers. TruCr ode provides medical coding softff ware
that enabla es complete and accurate code assignment forff optimal reimbursement. HRG provides specialized RCM solutions forff
faff cilities of all sizes.

Commencii gng wiithh thhe fourff thh quarter of 2022, thhe Compa yny operates iits bbusiiness iin thhree operatii gng seggments, whihichh are allso
our reportablbla e seggments: RCM, EHR, a dnd Patiient E gngaggement. Thhe ii dindi ividduall compa inies alliiggn wiithh thhe reportii gng seggments a dnd
contriibbute towardds thhe combibinedd focff us of iimpr iovi gng thhe hheallthh of thhe comm iunitiies we serve as f lolff llows:

• Thhe RCM reportii gng seggment iincll dudes TruBrr riidgedge, HRG, a dnd TruCr dode, a dnd focff uses on pr iovididi gng bbusiiness managgement,
cons lultii gng, a dnd managgedd IT serviices all gong wiithh iits com lplete RCM s lolutiion forff allll care settii gngs, reggardldless of thheiir
ppriimaryyrr hheallthhcare iinforff matiion s lolutiions pr iovidder.

• Thhe EHR seggment iincll dudes E ividdent a dnd AHT, a dnd pr ioviddes comprehhensiive acute a dnd post-acute care EHR s lolutiions
a dnd rellatedd ser ivices forff comm iunityy hhos ipitalls, thheiir physphysiiciian cllii inics, a dnd skikilllledd nursii gng a dnd assiistedd llii ivi gng faff ciilliitiies.

• Thhe Patiient E gngaggement seggment offff eff rs comprehhensiive patiient e gngaggement a dnd empowerment tech lhnol gyogy s lolutiions
thhroughough Get Reall Heallthh to iimprove patiient outcomes a dnd e gngaggement strategigies wiithh care pr iovidders.

Our companies currently support community hospitals and other healthcare systems with a geographia cally diverse patient mix
within the domestic community healthcare market. Our target market forff our RCM, EHR, and Patient Engagement solutions
includes community hospitals with feff wer than 400 acute care beds and their clinics, as well as independent or small to medium
sized chains of skilled nursing faff cilities. 98% of our acute care hospital EHR customer base is comprised of hospitals with
feff wer than 100 beds. The target market forff our post-acute care solutions consists of appra oximately 15,500 skilled nursing
faff cilities that are either independently owned or part of a larger management group with multiple faff cilities.

See Note 18 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements included herein forff additional inforff mation on our three reportabla e
segments.

Management Overview

StSS rtt atett gye

Our core strategy is to achieve meaningfulff long-term revenue growth by cross-selling RCM services into our existing EHR
customer base, expanding RCM market share with sales to new community hospitals and larger health systems, and pursuing
competitive EHR takeaway opportunit ties in the acute and post-acute markets. During 2020, we engaged a top-tier international
consulting fiff rm to assess our core growth strategy, with the outcome of this eight-week engagement being the confiff rmation of
our current core strategy and the identififf cation of other innovative potential growth opportunit ties. We may also seek to grow
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through acquisitions of businesses, technologies or products if we determine that such acquisitions are likely to help us meet our
strategic goals.

The opportunit ty to cross-sell RCM services is greatest within our Acute Care EHR customer base. As such, retention of
existing Acute Care EHR customers is a key component of our long-term growth strategy by protecting this base of potential
RCM customers, while at the same time serving as a leading indicator of our market position and stabia lity of revenues and cash
flff ows.

We determine retention rates by refeff rence to the amount of beginning-of-ff period Acute Care EHR recurring revenues that have
not been lost due to customer attrition frff om our production environment customer base. Production environment customers are
those that are using our appla ications to document live patient encounters, as opposed to legacy environment customers that have
view-only access to historical patient records. Since 2019, these retention rates have consistently remained in the mid-to-high
90th percentile ranges and did not materially deviate frff om this range during 2022. We have increased customer retention effff orff ts
by enhancing support services, investing in tooling and instrumr entation to proactively monitor forff potential disruptr ions, and
deploying in-appla ication experience softff ware that delivers appla ication specififf c insights while using our products.

As we pursue meaningfulff long-term revenue growth by leveraging RCM as a growth agent, we are placing ever-increasing
value in furff ther developing our already signififf cant recurring revenue base to furff ther stabia lize our revenues and cash flff ows. As
such, maintaining and growing recurring revenues are key components of our long-term growth strategy, aided by the
aforff ementioned focff us on customer retention. This includes a renewed focff us on driving demand forff subscriptions forff our
existing technology solutions and expanding the footff prt int forff RCM services beyond our EHR customer base.

While the combination of revenue growth and operating leverage results in increased margin realization, we also look to
increase margins through specififf c cost containment measures where appra opriate as we continue to leverage opportunit ties forff
greater operating effff iff ciencies. However, in the immediate futff urt e, we anticipate incremental margin pressure frff om the continued
client transition frff om perper tuat l license arrangements to “Softff ware as a Service” ("SaaS") arrangements as described below.

InII dustrtt yr DyD namics

Turbulr ence in the U.S. and worldwide economies and fiff nancial markets impacts almost all industries. While the healthcare
industryrr is not immune to economic cycles, we believe it is more signififf cantly affff eff cted by U.S. regulatoryrr and national health
initiatives. In recent years, there have been signififf cant changes to provider reimbursement by the U.S. feff deral government,
folff lowed by commercial payers and state governments. There is increasing pressure on healthcare organizations to reduce costs
and increase quality while replacing the feff e-forff -service reimbursement model in part by enrolling in an advanced payment
model that incentivizes high-quality, cost effff eff ctive-care via value-based reimbursement. This pressure could furff ther encourage
adoption of healthcare IT and increase demand forff business management, consulting, and managed IT services, as the futff urt e
success of these healthcare providers is greatly dependent upon their abia lity to engage patient populations and to coordinate
patient care across a multitudet of settings, while optimizing operating effff iff ciency along the way.

Additionally, healthcare organizations with a large dependency on Medicare and Medicaid populations, such as community
hospitals, have been affff eff cted by the challenging fiff nancial condition of the feff deral government and many state governments and
government programs. Accordingly, we recognize that prospective hospital clients oftff en do not have the necessaryrr capia tal to
make investments in inforff mation technology while those with the necessaryrr capia tal have become more selective in their
investments. Despite these challenges, we believe healthcare IT will be an area of continued investment due to its unique
potential to improve safeff ty and effff iff ciency and reduce costs while meeting current and futff urt e regulatory,rr compliance and
government reimbursement requirements.

EHEE RHH License ModeMM l PrPP efe eff rences

Muchh of thhe variiabibia lliityy iin our perii diodic revenues a dnd profiiff tabibia lliityy hhas bbeen a dnd wiillll contiinue to bbe ddue to chhangingi gng ddema dnd forff
didiffff eff rent lliicense m dodells forff our tech lhnol gyogy s lolutiions, wiithh variiabibia lliityy iin operatii gng cashh fllff ows furff thher iimpactedd byby thhe fiiff nancii gng
ddeciisiions wiithihin thhose lliicense m dodells. Our tech lhnol gyogy s lolutiions are ggenerallllyy dde lpl yoyedd iin one of two lliicense m dodells: (( )1)
pperperr tuat ll lliicenses, forff whihichh thhe rellatedd revenue iis recogniognizedd effff eff ctiivellyy upon iinstallllatiion, a dnd (( )2) “Softff ware as a Ser ivice” or
“SaaS” arra gngements, iincll diudi gng our Cll doud Ellectr ionic Heallthh Recordd ((“Cll doud EHR”)) offff eff rii gng, whihichh ggenerallllyy res lult iin revenue
bebeii gng recogniognizedd monthlhlyy as thhe ser ivices are pr ioviddedd over thhe term of thhe arra gngement.

Thhe overwhhellmii gng majja oriityy of our hihistoriicall EHR iinstallllatiions hhave bbeen dunder a perper tuat ll lliicense m dodell, bbut new customer
ddema dnd hhas ddramatiicallllyy shihiftff edd towardds a SaaS lliicense m dodell iin thhe past severall yyears. SaaS lliicense m dodells madde up lonlyy 12%
of annuall new acute care EHR iinstallllatiions iin 2018, iincreasii gng to 63% ddurii gng 2021 a dnd 100% ddurii gng 2022. Thhese SaaS
offff eff rii gngs are bbecomii gng iincreasiinglnglyy attractiive to our clliients bbecause thihis confiiff gguratiion allllows thhem to bobtaiin access to addvancedd
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softff ware pr doducts wiithhout a siignignifiiff cant ii initiiall ca ipia tall outllayy. We expect thihis tre dnd to contiinue forff thhe forff eseeablbla e futff urt e, wiithh
thhe res lultii gng iimpact on thhe Compa yny’s fiiff nanciiall statements bbeii gng redducedd EHR revenues iin thhe perii dod of iinstallllatiion iin
exchha gnge forff iincreasedd recurrii gng perii diodic revenues ((refllff ectedd iin EHR revenues)) over thhe term of thhe SaaS arra gngement. Thihis
naturt allllyy lplaces ddownwardd pressure on shhort-term revenue ggrowthh a dnd profiiff tabibia lliityy metriics, bbut bbenefiiff ts ll gong-term revenue
ggrowthh a dnd profiiff tabibia lliityy whihichh, iin our iview, iis consiistent wiithh our ggoall of ddelliiverii gng ll gong-term shhareh lholdder vallue.

For customers electing to purchase our technology solutions under a traditional perper tuat l license, we have historically made
fiff nancing arrangements availabla e on a case-by-case basis, depending on the various aspects of the proposed contract and
customer attributes. These fiff nancing arrangements have comprised the maja ority of our perper tuat l license installations over the
past several years, and include short-term payment plans and longer-term lease fiff nancing through us or third-party fiff nancing
companies. The aforff ementioned shiftff in customer prefeff rence towards SaaS arrangements has signififf cantly reduced the
frff equency of new fiff nancing arrangements forff customer purchases under a perperr tuat l license. When combined with scheduled
payments on existing fiff nancing arrangements, the reduced frff equency of new fiff nancing arrangements has resulted in a
substantial reduction in fiff nancing receivabla es during 2022.

For those perper tuat l license clients not seeking a fiff nancing arrangement, the payment schedule of the typical contract is
strucr turt ed to provide forff a scheduling deposit due at contract signing, with the remainder of the contracted feff es due at various
stages of the installation process (deliveryrr of hardware, installation of softff ware and commencement of training, and satisfaff ctoryrr
completion of a monthly accounting cycle or end-of-ff month operation by each respective appla ication, as appla icabla e).

MarMM gir nii OptOO itt mii izii atitt on EfE fff orff tstt

Our core growth strategy includes an element geared towards margin optimization by identifyiff ng opportunit ties to further
improve our cost strucr turt e by executing against initiatives related to organizational realignment, expanded use of offff sff hore
partnerships and the use of automation to increase the effff iff ciency and value of our associates' effff orff ts.

Regarding the organizational realignment, on Februarr ryrr 1, 2021, we committed to a reduction in forff ce that resulted in the
termination of appra oximately 1.0% of our workforff ce (21 employees). The reduction in forff ce was a component of a broader
strategic review of the Company's operations that was intended to more effff eff ctively align our resources with business priorities.
Substantially all of the employees impacted by the reduction in forff ce exited the Company in the fiff rst quarter of 2021, with the
last of the impacted employees exiting in the third quarter of 2021. The Company incurred expenses of appra oximately $2.7
million related to the reduction in forff ce. These expenses consisted of one-time termination benefiff ts to the affff eff cted employees,
including but not limited to severance payments, healthcare benefiff ts, and payments forff accruer d vacation time. As a result of the
reduction in forff ce, the Company realized appra oximately $3.9 million in annual savings beginning in 2021 compared to prior
expense levels.

The remaining margin optimization initiatives of enhanced leveraging of offff sff hore partnerships and automation have
commenced and, to date, have provided meaningfulff effff iff ciencies to our operations, particularly within RCM. As a service
organization, RCM's cost strucr turt e is heavily dependent upon human capia tal, subjecting it to the complexities and risks
associated with this resource. Chief among these complexities and risks is the ever-present pressure of wage inflff ation, which
has recently become a reality as national and international economies recover frff om the economic downturt n caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic and has compelled the Company to make compensation adjustments that are outside of historical norms.
We believe that our effff orff ts towards margin optimization are well-timed, enabla ing a rapia d response to actuat l or expected wage
inflff ation in order to preserve RCM gross margins, but we cannot guarantee that these effff orff ts will fulff ly eliminate any related
margin deterioration.

In addition to wage inflff ation, we are a party to contracts with certain third-party suppliers and vendors that allow forff annual
price adjustments indexed to inflff ation. While we continually seek to proactively manage controllabla e expenses, inflff ationaryrr
pressure on costs could lead to erosion of margins.

Labor CapiCC tii altt ill zii atitt on

During the second quarter of 2021, our ongoing monitoring activities associated with the capia talization of softff ware
development costs and the related correlation between capia talization rates and operational metrics designed to reflff ect the
distribution of work revealed that our then-current labora capia talization methodology did not fulff ly reflff ect all of the critical
activities necessaryrr to develop softff ware assets. Consequently, during the second quarter of 2021, we elected to change our
method of estimating the labora costs incurred in developing softff ware assets requiring capia talization under ASC 350-40, IntII ernal
UsUU e of Softff wtt are. Prior to this change, we estimated the associated labora costs using an estimated time-equivalent forff workload
metrics commonly utilized within agile softff ware development environments. With this change, we now estimate these labora
costs using the distribution of these agile workload metrics between capia talizabla e and non-capia talizabla e units of work. We
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believe this change is prefeff rabla e as the new methodology better estimates capia talizabla e labora costs and is consistent with
industryrr best practices. We have determined that this change in accounting forff softff ware development costs is a change in
accounting estimate effff eff cted by a change in accounting principle and, as such, has been accounted forff on a prospective basis. In
connection with this change, we capia talized $8.8 million of softff ware development costs during 2021. We estimate that the effff eff ct
of this change was to increase capia talized amounts by appra oximately $4.6 million during 2021 with a corresponding decrease to
product development costs that were expensed. The additional capia talized amounts will be amortized over an average of fiff ve
years, leading to increased amortization expense in futff urt e years.

COCC VIVV DII -19

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our operations was broad-sweeping, most notabla y causing severe deterioration in
United States community hospital patient volumes that negatively impacted the revenues, gross margins, and income of our
RCM service offff eff rings. While patient volumes have continued to recover and are largely in line with pre-COVID-19 levels, we
cannot predict the extent to which our business, results of operations, fiff nancial condition or liquidity will ultimately be
impacted, including as a result of macro-economic impacts to the global supply chain, labora shortages, and inflff ationaryrr
pressures. However, we continue to assess its impact on our business and continue to actively manage our response. For furff ther
details on the potential impact of COVID-19 on our business, refeff r to "Risk Factors," in Part I, Item 1A.

2022 Financial Overview

In thhe fourff thh quarter of 2022, thhe Compa yny madde a numbber of chha gnges to iits orgga inizatiionall strucr turt e a dnd managgement syystem to
alliiggn thhe Compa yny's operatii gng m dodell to iits strategigic ii initiiatiives. Wiithh thhese chha gnges thhe Compa yny re ivisedd iits reportablbla e
seggments to RCM, EHR, a dnd Patiient E gngaggement, bbut thihis realliiggnment of thhe Compa yny's reportablbla e seggments dididd not iimpact iits
cons loliiddatedd fiiff nanciiall statements. Thhroughoutoughout thihis didiscussiion, priior-yyear res lults hhave bbeen recast to conforff m wiithh thhe chha gnge iin
reportablbla e seggments notedd abbovea .

We ggeneratedd revenues of $$326.6 miilllliion frff om thhe salle of our pr doducts a dnd ser ivices ddurii gng 2022, comparedd to $$280.6 miilllliion
ddurii gng 2021, an iincrease of 16% thhat iis ddue to thhe combibinatiion of iinorgga inic ggrowthh thhroughough our recent ac iquisiitiions of TruCrr dode
a dnd HRG a dnd orgga inic ggrowthh as RCM s lolutiions contiinue to ggaiin tractiion iin thhe ddomestiic hheallthhcare lla dndscapea . Des ipite thihis
iincrease iin revenues, net iincome ddecreasedd byby $$2.6 miilllliion to $$15.9 miilllliion ddurii gng 2022, comparedd to $$18.4 miilllliion ddurii gng
2021, as iinvestments iin operatiionall capaa ciityy combibinedd wiithh iincreasedd iinterest expense a dnd amortiizatiion of ac iquisiitiion-rellatedd
iintangingiblbles more thhan offff sff et annuall revenue ggaiins. Corres dipondi gng to thihis ddecreasedd profiiff tabibia lliityy, net cashh pr ioviddedd byby
operatii gng actii ivitiies ddecreasedd byby $$15.3 miilllliion, frff om $$47.7 miilllliion pr ioviddedd byby operatiions ddurii gng 2021 to $$32.4 miilllliion
ppr ioviddedd byby operatiions forff 2022, as thhe aforff ementiionedd iincrease iin revenue c loupledd wiithh ddellayyedd clliient cashh c lolllectiions
res lultedd iin a siignignifiiff cant expansiion of accounts receiivablbla e.
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Results of Operations

The folff lowing tabla e sets forff th certain items included in our results of operations forff each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2022, expressed as a percentage of our total revenues forff these periods:

Year ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s Amount % Sales Amount % Sales Amount % Sales
INCOME DATA:
Sales revenues:
RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 179,870 55.1 % $ 131,242 46.8 % $ 107,431 38.3 %
EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 139,823 42.8 % 143,109 51.0 % 152,954 54.5 %
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,955 2.1 % 6,278 2.2 % 4,103 1.6 %
Total sales revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 326,648 100.0 % 280,629 100.0 % 264,488 100.0 %
Costs of sales:
RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 97,010 29.7 % 66,015 23.5 % 57,461 21.7 %
EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71,347 21.8 % 70,664 25.2 % 69,361 26.2 %
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,856 1.2 % 3,068 1.1 % 1,420 0.5 %
Total costs of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 172,213 52.7 % 139,747 49.8 % 128,242 48.5 %
Gross profiff t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 154,435 47.3 % 140,882 50.2 % 136,246 51.5 %
Operating expenses:
Product development . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,926 9.5 % 30,389 10.8 % 33,457 12.6 %
Sales and marketing . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,131 8.3 % 21,978 7.8 % 22,835 8.6 %
General and administrative . . . . . . . 56,192 17.2 % 50,022 17.8 % 47,479 18.0 %
Amortization of acquisition-related
intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,403 5.3 % 13,786 4.9 % 11,421 4.3 %
Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . 131,652 40.3 % 116,175 41.4 % 115,192 43.6 %
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,783 7.0 % 24,707 8.8 % 21,054 8.0 %
Other income (expense):
Other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,178 0.4 % 1,529 0.5 % 1,494 0.6 %
Gain on contingent consideration . . 565 0.2 % — — % — — %
Loss on extinguishment of debt . . . (125) — % — — % (202) (0.1)%
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,320) (1.9)% (3,160) (1.1)% (3,562) (1.3)%
Total other income (expense) . . . . . . (4,702) (1.4)% (1,631) (0.6)% (2,270) (0.9)%
Income beforff e taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,081 5.5 % 23,076 8.2 % 18,784 7.1 %
Provision forff income taxes . . . . . . . . 2,214 0.7 % 4,646 1.7 % 4,538 1.7 %
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 15,867 4.9 % $ 18,430 6.6 % $ 14,246 5.4 %

2022 Compared to 2021

Revenues

Total revenues forff the year ended December 31, 2022 increased by $46.0 million, or 16%, compared to the year ended
December 31, 2021.

RCM revenues increased by $48.6 million, or 37%, compared to 2021 due to acquisition-fueff led growth and organic growth of
our revenue cycle service offff eff rings. TruCr ode, acquired in May 2021, contributed $13.8 million of revenue during 2022,
compared to only $7.4 million during 2021, which reflff ected only eight months of activity. Our acquisition of HRG in March
2022 provided furff ther inorganic growth, contributing an estimated $34.1 million of revenue during 2022. Organic revenue
growth has materialized as our hospital clients operate in an environment typififf ed by rising costs and increased complexity and
are increasingly seeking to alleviate themselves of the ever-increasing administrative burden of operating their own business
offff iff ce funcff tions. This increasing demand forff services, coupled with the positive impact of improving hospital patient volumes
on RCM revenues, resulted in organic revenue growth of $8.1 million, or 7%.
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EHR revenues decreased by $3.3 million, or 2%, frff om the year ended December 31, 2021, and were comprised of the folff lowing
forff the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Year ended December 31,
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
Recurring EHR revenues (1)

Acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 109,340 $ 108,440
Post-acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,384 16,472
Total recurring EHR revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124,724 124,912
Non-recurring EHR revenues (2)

Acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,138 16,939
Post-acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,961 1,258
Total non-recurring EHR revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,099 18,197
Total EHR revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 139,823 $ 143,109
(1)Mostly comprised of support and maintenance, third-party subscriptions, and SaaS revenues.
(2)Mostly comprised of installation revenues frff om the sale of our acute and post-acute care EHR solutions and related
appla ications under a perper tuat l (non-subscription) licensing model.

Recurring EHR revenues remained flff at with a $0.2 million, or 0.2%, decrease in 2022 compared to 2021. Acute Care EHR
recurring revenues increased by $0.9 million, or 1%, as recent effff orff ts to emphasize SaaS arrangements have led to the
accumulation of signififf cant sources of recurring revenue, albeit at the expense of non-recurring revenue. Post-acute Care EHR
recurring revenues decreased by $1.1 million, or 7%, primarily due to the loss of certain signififf cant customers during early
2022.

Non-recurring EHR revenues decreased by $3.1 million, or 17%, compared to 2021. Acute Care EHR non-recurring revenues
decreased by $3.8 million, or 22%, compared to 2021, due mostly to a decrease in the number of perperr tuat l license installations
of our Acute Care EHR solutions. We installed our Acute Care EHR solutions at nineteen new hospital clients during 2022 (all
of which were under a SaaS arrangements resulting in revenue being recognized ratabla y over the contract term) compared to
seventeen new hospital clients durd ing 2021 (ten under a SaaS arrangement). Post-acute EHR non-recurring revenues increased
by $0.7 million, or 56%, compared to 2021 due to a temporarily benefiff cial shiftff in license mix.

Patient Engagement revenues increased by $0.7 million, or 11%, compared to 2021 as escalating demand forff patient
engagement solutions continues to propel organic growth forff Get Real Health's products and services.

CosCC tstt of SalSS ell s

Total costs of sales increased by $32.5 million compared to 2021. As a percentage of total revenues, costs of sales increased to
53% of revenues during 2022 frff om 50% during 2021.

Our costs associated with RCM sales and support increased by $31.0 million, or 47%, in 2022, primarily driven by our recent
acquisitions of TruCrr ode and HRG. The remaining cost increases forff RCM are organic in naturt e, caused by resource expansion
necessitated by the growing customer base and improved patient volumes. The gross margin on these services decreased to 46%
in 2022, compared to 50% during 2021, due to the addition of HRG, which is comprised of mostly lower margin services.

Costs of EHR system sales and support increased by $0.7 million, or 1%, compared to 2021, primarily driven by increased
labora and travel costs. The increase in EHR costs of sales coupled with the aforff ementioned decrease in non-recurring revenues
resulted in a decrease in the related gross margins to 49% in 2022 compared to 51% in 2021.

Costs of Patient Engagement sales and support increased by $0.8 million, or 26%, compared to 2021. Increased labora costs
related to investments aimed at aggressively addressing increasing demand forff patient engagement solutions comprised the
maja ority of the increase. The increase in costs of sales outpat ced the increase in revenues in 2022 as we continue to invest in this
nascent business, resulting in the compression of gross margins to 45% in 2022 compared to 51% in 2021.

PrPP oduct Developmll ent

Product development expenses consist primarily of compensation and other employee-related costs (including stock-based
compensation) and infrff astrucr turt e costs incurred, but not capia talized, forff new product development and product enhancements.
Product development costs increased by $0.5 million, or 2%, compared to 2021. A $5.6 million, or 64%, increase in product
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development labora capia talization pursuant to the aforff ementioned change in our method of estimating the labora costs incurred in
developing softff ware assets requiring capia talization under ASC 350-40, IntII ernal UsUU e Softff wtt are was offff sff et by increased
amortization of the related assets and increased costs associated related to our strategy to migrate to a public cloud environment.
In addition, our recent acquisitions of TruCrr ode and HRG resulted in a combined $1.9 million of product development expenses
during 2022 compared to only $0.8 million in 2021.

SalSS ell s andd MarMM kkerr tiitt nii gg

Salles a dnd markketii gng costs iincreasedd byby $$5.2 miilllliion, or 23%, comparedd to 2021. 2022 markkedd thhe returt n of our iin-person
NNatiionall Clliient Confeff rence, whihichh hhadd miiggratedd to ivirtuat ll- lonlyy siince thhe onset of thhe COVID-19 pa dndemiic, res lultii gng iin
iincrementall expense of $$1.1 miilllliion. Resource expansiion res lultedd iin a $$1.3 miilllliion iincrease iin payyr lolll costs a dnd an iimprovedd
salles e invironment res lultedd iin a $$0.6 miilllliion iincrease iin commiissiion expenses. Siimiillarllyy, travell costs hhave iincreasedd byby $$0.3
miilllliion as travell patterns returt n to pre-COVID llevells. Markketii gng pr gogram costs iincreasedd byby $$0.7 miilllliion ddue to more
aggggressiive markketii gng of our s lolutiions a dnd ser ivices combibinedd wiithh speciifiiff c campaiiggns to iincrease bbra dnd awareness forff our
pportf lolff iio of compa inies. In addidditiion, our recent ac iquisiitiions of TruCr dode a dnd HRG res lultedd iin a combibinedd iincrease iin salles a dnd
markketii gng expense of $$1.5 miilllliion iin 2022, comparedd to lonlyy $$0.4 miilllliion of addidditiionall salles a dnd markketii gng expenses ddurii gng
2021.

GeG neral and Adminii isii trtt atitt ve

Generall a dnd addmii inistratiive expenses iincreasedd byby $$6.2 miilllliion, or 12%, compared to 2021, mostly due to volatility in employee
health claims coupled with an expanding employee base that resulted in a $4.1 million increase in employee benefiff ts cost. In
addition, our commitment to improving the employee experience and becoming an employer of choice resulted in a $1.9
million increase in human resources cost. Lastllyy, our recent ac iquisiitiions of TruCrr dode a dnd HRG res lultedd iin a combibinedd iincrease
iin ggenerall a dnd addmii inistratiive expenses of $$2.9 miilllliion iin 2022, comparedd to lonlyy $$1.1 miilllliion of addidditiionall ggenerall a dnd
addmii inistratiive expenses ddurii gng 2021. Partially offff sff etting this aggregate $7.8 million increase in employee benefiff ts, human
resources, and acquisition-related costs was a $1.6 million decrease in bad debt expense due to generally improved collections
experience and the lack of any severe collectabia lity determinations forff customers with large receivabla es balances.

Amortitt zii atitt on of Acquisii itii itt on-R- elatll ett d InII tantt gibli ell s

Amortization expense associated with acquisition-related intangible assets increased by $3.6 million, or 26%, primarily due to
amortization of intangibles acquired in the TruCrr ode and HRG acquisitions.

TotTT altt OpeOO ratitt nii g ExpeEE nses

As a percentage of total revenues, total operating expenses decreased to 40% in 2022 compared to 41% in 2021.

TotTT altt Othtt er InII come (E(( xpeEE nse)e

Total other income (expense) increased to expense of $4.7 million during 2022 compared to expense of $1.6 million during
2021. A rising interest rate environment and a higher level of fundeff d debt caused a $3.2 million increase in interest expense,
which was partially offff sff et by a $0.6 million gain on contingent consideration. During 2022, $0.6 million of the original $2.5
million contingent consideration estimated in determining the TruCr ode purchase price was reversed as TruCrr ode's earnings over
the earnout period were less than estimated on the date of acquisition.

InII come Befe orff e TaxeTT s

As a result of the forff egoing faff ctors, income beforff e taxes decreased to $18.1 million in 2022, compared to $23.1 million in 2021.

PrPP ovisii ion forff InII come TaxeTT s

Our effff eff ctive income tax rates forff 2022 and 2021 were 12% and 20%, respectively. Lowered provision-to-returt n adjustments
resulted in an incremental 3.5% decrease in our effff eff ctive tax rate forff 2022 compared to 2021, while the tax-frff ee gain on
contingent consideration and increased Work Opportunit ty Tax Credits resulted in incremental decreases in our effff eff ctive tax rate
of 2.2% and 1.2%, respectively, forff 2022 compared to 2021.

NeNN t InII come

Net income forff 2022 decreased by $2.6 million to $15.9 million, or $1.08 per basic and diluted share, compared with $18.4
million, or $1.26 per basic and diluted share, forff 2021.
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Supplu ell mentaltt SeSS gme ent InII fn orff mrr atitt on

Our reportabla e segments have been determined in accordance with ASC 280 - Segme ent Repore ting. We have three reportabla e
operating segments: RCM, EHR, and Patient Engagement. We evaluate each of our three operating segments based on segment
revenues and segment adjusted EBITDA.

Adjusted EBITDA consists of GAAP net income as reported and adjusts forff (i) defeff rred revenue purchase accounting
adjustments arising frff om purchase allocation adjustments related to business acquisitions; (ii) depreciation expense; (iii)
amortization of softff ware development costs; (iv) amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets; (v) stock-based
compensation; (vi) severance and other non-recurring charges; (vii) interest expense and other, net; (viii) gain on contingent
consideration; and (ix) the provision forff income taxes. The segment measurements provided to and evaluated by the chief
operating decision makers ("CODM") are described in Note 18 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements. These results should be
considered in addition to, and not as a substitutt e forff , results reported in accordance with GAAP.

The folff lowing tabla e presents a summaryrr of the revenues and adjusted EBITDA of our three operating segments forff the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Year Ended December 31, Change
2022 2021 $ %

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
Revenues by segment:
RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 179,870 $ 131,242 $ 48,628 37 %
EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 139,823 143,109 (3,286) (2)%
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,955 6,278 677 11 %

Adjusted EBITDA by segment:
RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 36,242 $ 30,211 $ 6,031 20 %
EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,091 23,061 (3,970) (17)%
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 566 (595) 1,161 195 %

Segme ent Revenues

Refeff r to the corresponding discussion of revenues forff each of our reportabla e segments previously provided under the Revenues
heading of this Management's Discussion and Analysis. There are no intersegment revenues to be eliminated in computing
segment revenue.

Segme ent Adjusted EBEE IBB TII DTT ADD - YeYY ar EndeEE d December 31, 2022 ComCC parm ed withtt YeYY ar EndeEE d December 31, 2021

RCM adjusted EBITDA increased by $6.0 million, or 20%, compared to 2021. Revenue growth of of 37% was partially offff sff et
by a 360 basis point decrease in gross margins, as growth materialized frff om lower-margin, resource-intensive service lines.
This decrease in gross margins combined with expanded operating expenses to limit adjusted EBITDA growth despite this
dramatic increase in revenues.

EHR adjusted EBITDA decreased by $4.0 million, or 17%. The aforff ementioned decrease in revenues combined with an
increase in cost of sales caused a $4.0 million decrease in gross profiff t, which was partially offff sff et by improved operating
expenses resulting frff om increased product development labora capia talization rates.

Patient Engagement adjusted EBITDA increased by $1.2 million, or 195%. Although gross profiff t decreased by $0.1 million as
the increase in cost of sales outpat ced the increase in revenue, this was more than offff sff et by a marked increase in capia talizabla e
product development work resulting in signififf cantly reduced operating expenses.

2021 Compared to 2020

Revenues

Total revenues forff the year ended December 31, 2021 increased by $16.1 million, or 6%, compared to the year ended
December 31, 2020.
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RCM revenues increased by $23.8 million, or 22%, compared to 2020. Our hospital clients operate in an environment typififf ed
by rising costs and increased complexity and are increasingly seeking to alleviate themselves of the ever-increasing
administrative burden of operating their own business offff iff ce funcff tions. This increasing demand forff services, coupled with the
aforff ementioned impact of improving hospital patient volumes on RCM revenues, resulted in revenue increases of $8.6 million,
or 21%, forff our accounts receivabla e management services; $5.7 million, or 18%, forff our insurance services division; and $1.4
million, or 16%, forff our medical coding services. Lastly, the acquisition of TruCr ode in May 2021 resulted in an additional $7.4
million of revenue during 2021.

EHR revenues decreased by $9.8 million, or 6%, frff om the year ended December 31, 2020, and were comprised of the folff lowing
forff the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Year ended December 31,
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2021 2020
Recurring EHR revenues (1)

Acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 108,440 $ 105,597
Post-acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,472 16,272
Total recurring EHR revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124,912 121,869
Non-recurring EHR revenues (2)

Acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,939 29,173
Post-acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,258 1,912
Total non-recurring EHR revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,197 31,085
Total EHR revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 143,109 $ 152,954
(1)Mostly comprised of support and maintenance, third-party subscriptions, and SaaS revenues.
(2)Mostly comprised of installation revenues frff om the sale of our acute and post-acute care EHR solutions and related
appla ications under a perper tuat l (non-subscription) licensing model.

Recurring EHR revenues increased by $3.0 million, or 2%, during 2021. Acute Care EHR recurring revenues increased by $2.8
million, or 3%, as attrition frff om the Thrive and Centriq customer base has normalized to more historical levels and our SaaS
customer base has continued to grow, strengthening recurring revenues. Post-acute Care EHR recurring revenues increased by
$0.2 million, or 1%, as attrition has stabia lized as we continue to make technological improvements to the AHT product line.

Non-recurring EHR revenues decreased by $12.9 million, or 41%, mostly driven by a $12.2 million, or 42%, decrease in Acute
Care EHR non-recurring revenues. We installed our Acute Care EHR solutions at seventeen new hospital clients during 2021
(ten of which were under a SaaS arrangement, resulting in revenue being recognized ratabla y over the contract term;
comparatively, revenues related to perperr tuat l license arrangements are recognized when the related installation is complete)
compared to twenty-fiff ve new hospital clients during 2020 (seventeen of which were under a SaaS arrangement). In addition to
the decrease in the number of non-SaaS new customer implementations, the related non-recurring revenues decreased as 2020
benefiff ted frff om a high volume of late-installing appla ications forff non-SaaS implementations that went live in prior periods.
Comparatively, the continued shiftff in customer prefeff rences towards SaaS arrangements and the continuing impacts of
COVID-19 on client purchasing and implementation plans have decreased the opportunit ties forff such folff low-on revenue
activities forff recent implementations and decreased demand forff add-on appla ications within our existing Acute Care EHR
customer base.

Patient Engagement revenues increased by $2.2 million, or 53%, as a result of increasing demand forff Get Real Health's patient
engagement solutions and services.

CosCC tstt of SalSS ell s

Total costs of sales increased by $11.5 million compared to 2020. As a percentage of total revenues, costs of sales increased to
50% of revenues during 2021 frff om 48% during 2020.

Our costs associated with RCM sales and support increased by $8.6 million, or 15%, in 2021, primarily driven by resource
expansion necessitated by the growing customer base and improved patient volumes. The acquisition of TruCrr ode in May 2021
resulted in an additional $1.7 million of costs of sales during 2021. The gross margin on these services increased to 50% in
2021, compared to 47% during 2020, as the growing recurring revenue base worked in tandem with operational effff iff ciencies to
increase margins.
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Costs of EHR system and sales support increased by $1.3 million, or 2%, in 2021. Costs of Acute Care EHR revenues
increased by $1.2 million, or 2%, compared to 2020, as our increased usage of vendor partnerships to fulff fiff ll customer needs
increased the related costs of third-party softff ware by $3.6 million. This increase was partially offff sff et by a $2.1 million decrease
in hardware costs associated with the decrease in non-recurring revenues. Costs of Post-acute Care EHR revenues increased
slightly to $4.9 million in 2021 frff om $4.8 million in 2020. The gross margin on EHR system sales and support decreased to
51% in 2021 frff om 55% in 2020, as the increase in costs of sales worked in tandem with decreased non-recurring revenues to
decrease margins.

Costs of Patient Engagement sales and support increased by $1.6 million, or 116%, compared to 2020, primarily due to
increased labora and vendor costs. The rate of increase in costs of sales outpat ced the increase in revenues in 2021 as we continue
to invest in this nascent business, resulting in the compression of gross margins to 51% in 2021 compared to 65% in 2020.

PrPP oduct Developmll ent

Product development expenses consist primarily of compensation and other employee-related costs (including stock-based
compensation) and infrff astrucr turt e costs incurred, but not capia talized, forff new product development and product enhancements.
Product development costs decreased by $3.1 million, or 9%, compared to 2020, with the primaryrr driver being a $5.5 million,
or 165%, increase in product development labora capia talization pursuant to the aforff ementioned change in our method of
estimating the labora costs incurred in developing softff ware assets requiring capia talization under ASC 350-40, IntII ernal UsUU e
Softff wtt are. This increased capia talization rate was partially offff sff et by increased amortization of the related assets and increased
payroll costs associated with expanding resources. The acquisition of TruCr ode in May 2021 resulted in $0.8 million of
additional product development expenses during 2021.

SalSS ell s andd MarMM kkerr tiitt nii gg

Salles a dnd markketii gng costs ddecreasedd byby $$0.9 miilllliion, or 4%, comparedd to 2020. Thhe aforff ementiionedd redductiion-iin-forff ce
combibinedd wiithh redducedd non-recurrii gng revenues res lultedd iin ddecreasedd payyr lolll a dnd commiissiion expenses. Thhe ac iquisiitiion of
TruCrr dode iin Mayy 2021 res lultedd iin $$0.4 miilllliion of addidditiionall salles a dnd markketii gng expenses ddurii gng 2021.

GeG neral and Adminii isii trtt atitt ve

Generall a dnd addmii inistratiive expenses iincreasedd byby $2.5 million, or 5%, compared to 2020, mostly due to $2.5 million in
severance costs associated with our 2021 reduction-in-forff ce, an increase of $0.8 million in employee health claims, and the
acquisition of TruCr ode in May 2021, which resulted in $1.1 million of additional general and administrative expenses during
2021 (exclusive of non-recurring transaction-related costs). Partially offff sff etting this aggregate $4.4 million increase in
severance, employee health claims, and TruCrr ode-related costs was a $1.8 million decrease in bad debt expense due to generally
improved collections experience and the lack of any severe collectabia lity determinations forff customers with large receivabla es
balances.

Amortitt zii atitt on of Acquisii itii itt on-R- elatll ett d InII tantt gibli ell s

Amortization expense associated with acquisition-related intangible assets increased by $2.4 million, or 21%, due to changes in
estimates regarding the remaining usefulff lives of certain of our acquired intangible assets combined with the amortization of
intangibles acquired in the TruCr ode acquisition.

TotTT altt OpeOO ratitt nii g ExpeEE nses

As a percentage of total revenues, total operating expenses decreased to 41% in 2021 compared to 44% in 2020.

TotTT altt Othtt er InII come (E(( xpeEE nse)e

Total other income (expense) improved to expense of $1.6 million during 2021 compared to expense of $2.3 million during
2020. This improvement was mostly attributabla e to a decreasing interest rate environment and lowered average amounts
outstanding under our long-term debt faff cilities, resulting in a $0.4 million decrease in related interest expense.

InII come Befe orff e TaxeTT s

As a result of the forff egoing faff ctors, income beforff e taxes increased to $23.1 million in 2021, compared to $18.8 million in 2020.
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PrPP ovisii ion forff InII come TaxeTT s

Our effff eff ctive income tax rates forff 2021 and 2020 were 20% and 24%, respectively. Lowered provision-to-returt n adjustments
resulted in an incremental 2.6% decrease in our effff eff ctive tax rate forff 2021 compared to 2020, while decreased tax shortfaff lls
related to stock-based compensation arrangements resulted in an incremental 1.9% decrease in our effff eff ctive tax rate forff 2021
compared to 2020.

NeNN t InII come

Net income forff 2021 increased by $4.2 million to $18.4 million, or $1.26 per basic and diluted share, compared with $14.2
million, or $0.98 per basic and diluted share, forff 2020.

Supplu ell mentaltt SeSS gme ent InII fn orff mrr atitt on

Our reportabla e segments have been determined in accordance with ASC 280 - Segme ent Repore ting. We have three reportabla e
operating segments: RCM, EHR, and Patient Engagement. We evaluate each of our three operating segments based on segment
revenues and segment adjusted EBITDA.

Adjusted EBITDA consists of GAAP net income as reported and adjusts forff (i) defeff rred revenue purchase accounting
adjustments arising frff om purchase allocation adjustments related to business acquisitions; (ii) depreciation expense; (iii)
amortization of softff ware development costs; (iv) amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets; (v) stock-based
compensation; (vi) severance and other non-recurring charges; (vii) interest expense and other, net; (viii) gain on contingent
consideration; and (ix) the provision forff income taxes. The segment measurements provided to and evaluated by the CODM are
described in Note 18 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements. These results should be considered in addition to, and not as a
substitutt e forff , results reported in accordance with GAAP.

The folff lowing tabla e present a summaryrr of the revenues and adjusted EBITDA of our three operating segments forff the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Year Ended December 31, Change
2021 2020 $ %

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
Revenues by segment:
RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 131,242 $ 107,431 $ 23,811 22 %
EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 143,109 152,954 (9,845) (6)%
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,278 4,103 2,175 53 %

Adjusted EBITDA by segment:

RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 30,211 $ 22,780 $ 7,431 33 %
EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,061 21,488 1,573 7 %
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (595) (881) 286 32 %

Segme ent Revenues

Refeff r to the corresponding discussion of revenues forff each of our reportabla e segments previously provided under the Revenues
heading of this Management's Discussion and Analysis. There are no intersegment revenues to be eliminated in computing
segment revenue.

Segme ent Adjusted EBEE IBB TII DTT ADD - YeYY ar EndeEE d December 31, 2021 ComCC parm ed withtt YeYY ar EndeEE d December 31, 2020

RCM adjusted EBITDA increased by $7.4 million, or 33%, compared to 2020. The acquisition of TruCr ode resulted in an
incremental $3.9 million of adjusted EBITDA, with the remaining $3.5 million of adjusted EBITDA growth resulting frff om the
business unit's 15% organic revenue growth.

EHR adjusted EBITDA increased by $1.6 million, or 7%. The aforff ementioned decrease in revenues combined with an increase
in cost of sales to cause an $11.1 million decrease in gross profiff t, which was wholly offff sff et by improved operating expenses
resulting primarily frff om increased product development labora capia talization rates and reduced sales and marketing costs.
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Patient engagement adjusted EBITDA increased by $0.3 million, or 32% as signififf cant revenue gains led to improved
profiff tabia lity metrics forff this nascent business unit.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

SouSS rces of Liquii iditii ytt

As of December 31, 2022, our principal sources of liquidity consisted of cash and cash equivalents of $7.0 million and our
remaining borrowing capaa city under the revolving credit faff cility of $86.3 million, compared to $11.4 million of cash and cash
equivalents and $79.0 million of remaining borrowing capaa city under the revolving credit faff cility as of December 31, 2021. In
Januaryrr 2016, we entered into a syndicated credit agreement which provided forff a $125 million term loan faff cility and a $50
million revolving credit faff cility. On June 16, 2020, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that increased
the aggregate principal amount of our credit faff cilities to $185 million, which included a $75 million term loan faff cility and a
$110 million revolving credit faff cility. On May 2, 2022, we entered into a First Amendment to the Amended Restated Credit
Agreement that furff ther increased the aggregate principal amount of our credit faff cilities to $230 million, which included a $70
million term loan faff cility and a $160 million revolving credit faff cility.

As of December 31, 2022, we had $141.1 million in principal amount of indebtedness outstanding under the credit faff cilities.
We believe that our cash and cash equivalents of $7.0 million as of December 31, 2022, the futff urt e operating cash flff ows of the
combined entity, and our remaining borrowing capaa city under the revolving credit faff cility of $86.3 million as of December 31,
2022, taken together, provide adequate resources to fundff ongoing cash requirements forff the next twelve months and beyond.
We cannot provide assurance that our actuat l cash requirements will not be greater than we expect as of the date of fiff ling of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. If sources of liquidity are not availabla e or if we cannot generate suffff iff cient cash flff ow frff om
operations during the next twelve months, we may be required to obtain additional sources of fundsff through additional
operational improvements, capia tal market transactions, asset sales or fiff nancing frff om third parties, a combination thereof or
otherwise. We cannot provide assurance that these additional sources of fundsff will be availabla e or, if availabla e, would have
reasonabla e terms. Aside frff om normal operating cash requirements, obligations under our Credit Agreement (as discussed
below) and operating leases (see Note 15 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements included herein forff furff ther inforff mation), and
opportunit stic uses of capia tal in share repurchases and business acquisition transactions, we do not have any material cash
commitments or planned cash commitments. Although the Company currently has no obligations related to planned
acquisitions, the Company's strategy includes the potential forff futff urt e acquisitions, which may be fundeff d thorough draws on the
credit faff cilities or the use of the other sources of liquidity described abovea .

OpeOO ratitt nii g CasCC h FlFF owll Actitt vitii itt es

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $15.4 million, frff om $47.7 million forff 2021 to $32.4 million forff 2022,
primarily due to disadvantageous changes in working capia tal, most notabla y as it relates to expansion in accounts receivabla e.
During 2021, accounts receivabla e expanded by $2.0 million, or 6%, driven by a corresponding 6% increase in annual revenue
with days sales outstanding ("DSO") remaining unchanged frff om the previous year at 45 days. During 2022, accounts receivabla e
expanded by $16.9 million, or 49%, driven by a 16% increase in annual revenues while integration-related delays associated
with our recent acquisition of HRG and the now higher proportion of revenues billed in arrears, resulted in a signififf cant
increase in DSO frff om 45 to 58 days. The resulting impact to operating cash flff ows was a $3.2 million decrease during 2021
compared to a $12.4 million decrease in 2022. In addition, under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, Internal Revenue Code ("IRC")
Section 174 amended the feff deral tax treatment of research or experimental expenditurt es paid or incurred during the tax year,
which allowed forff expensing of such costs in the year incurred forff feff deral income tax purposr es. Effff eff ctive forff the 2022 tax year,
taxpayers are required to capia talize and amortize specififf ed research or experimental expenditurt es over a fiff ve-year period. As a
result of the change to IRC Section 174, a defeff rred tax asset of $9.8 million was recorded forff the tax year ended December 31,
2022, with the resulting impact of defeff rred taxes to operating cash flff ows being a $6.7 million decrease during 2022 compared to
a $3.5 million increase during 2021.

InII vestitt nii g CasCC h FlFF owll Actitt vitii itt es

Net cash used in investing activities decreased frff om $69.9 million during 2021 to $62.7 million during 2022. Most notabla y, we
completed our $43.4 million acquisition of HRG during the fiff rst quarter of 2022. We completed our $59.6 million acquisition of
TruCrr ode during the second quarter of 2021. In addition, cash outflff ows related to capia talized internal softff ware development
effff orff ts increased frff om $9.4 million in 2021 to $19.1 million in 2022 due to the aforff ementioned change in methodology forff
estimating labora costs eligible foff r capia talization and a faff vorabla e shiftff in workload mix away frff om support funcff tions towards
capia talizabla e projects.
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FiFF nii ancinii g CasCC h FlFF owll Actitt vitii itt es

During 2022, our fiff nancing activities were a net source of cash in the amount of $25.9 million, as $48.0 million in borrowings
frff om our revolving line of credit, used to fundff our acquisition of HRG, were partially offff sff et by long-term debt principal
payments of $8.9 million and $11.9 million used to repurchase shares of our common stock, which are treated as treasuryrr stock.
During 2021, our fiff nancing activities were a net source of cash in the amount of $20.9 million, as $61.0 million in borrowings
frff om our revolving line of credit were partially offff sff et by long-term debt principal payments of $38.8 million and $1.3 million
used to repurchase shares of our common stock.

On September 4, 2020, our Board of Directors appra oved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to $30.0 million in
aggregate amount of the Company's outstanding shares of common stock through open market purchases, privately-negotiated
transactions, or otherwise in compliance with RulRR e 10b-18 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. On July 27,
2022, our Board of Directors extended the expiration of the stock repurchase program to September 4, 2024. These shares may
be purchased frff om time to time throughout the duration of the stock repurchase program depending upon market conditions.
Our abia lity to repurchase shares is subject to compliance with the terms of our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.
Concurrent with the authorization of this stock repurchase program, the Board of Directors opted to indefiff nitely suspend all
quarterly dividends.

CrCC editii Agreement

As of December 31, 2022, we had $67.4 million in principal amount outstanding under the term loan faff cility and $73.7 million
in principal amount outstanding under the revolving credit faff cility. Each of our credit faff cilities continues to bear interest at a
rate per annum equal to an appla icabla e margin plus, at our option, either (1) the Adjusted SOFR rate forff the relevant interest
period, subject to a flff oor of 0.50%, (2) an alternate base rate determined by refeff rence to the greater of (a) the prime lending rate
of Regions, (b) the feff deral fundsff rate forff the relevant interest period plus one half of one percent per annum and (c) the one
month SOFR rate, subject to the aforff ementioned flff oor, plus one percent per annum, or (3) a combination of (1) and (2). The
appla icabla e margin forff SOFR loans and the letter of credit feff e ranges frff om 1.8% to 3.0%. The appla icabla e margin forff base rate
loans ranges frff om 0.8% to 2.0%, in each case based on the Company's consolidated net leverage ratio.

Principal payments with respect to the term loan faff cility are due on the last day of each fiff scal quarter beginning June 30, 2022,
with quarterly principal payments of appra oximately $0.9 million through March 31, 2027, with maturt ity on May 2, 2027 or
such earlier date as the obligations under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement as amended by the First Amendment
become due and payabla e pursuant to the terms of such agreement. Any principal outstanding under the revolving credit faff cility
is due and payabla e on the maturt ity date.

Our credit faff cilities are secured pursuant to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 16, 2020, among the
parties identififf ed as obligors therein and Regions, as collateral agent, on a fiff rst priority basis by a security interest in
substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets (subject to certain exceptions) of the Company and certain subsidiaries of
the Company, as guarantors (collectively, the “Subsidiaryrr Guarantors”), including certain registered intellectuat l property and
the capia tal stock of certain of the Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries. Our obligations under the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement are also guaranteed by the Subsidiaryrr Guarantors.

The First Amendment provides incremental faff cility capaa city of $75 million, subject to certain conditions. The Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement, as amended by the First Amendment, includes a number of restrictive covenants that, among other
things and in each case subject to certain exceptions and baskets, impose operating and fiff nancial restrictions on the Company
and the Subsidiaryrr Guarantors, including the abia lity to incur additional debt; incur liens and encumbrances; make certain
restricted payments, including paying dividends on the Company's equity securities or payments to redeem, repurchase, or retire
the Company's equity securities (which are subject to our compliance, on a pro forff ma basis to give effff eff ct to the restricted
payment, with the fiff xed charge coverage ratio and consolidated net leverage ratio described below); enter into certain restrictive
agreements; make investments, loans and acquisitions; merge or consolidate with any other person; dispose of assets; enter into
sale and leaseback transactions; engage in transactions with affff iff liates; and materially alter the business we conduct. The First
Amendment requires the Company to maintain a minimum fiff xed charge coverage ratio of 1.25:1.00 throughout the duration of
such agreement. Under the First Amendment, the Company is required to comply with a maximum consolidated net leverage
ratio of 3.75:1.00 forff each quarter through March 31, 2023, aftff er which time the maximum consolidated net leverage ratio will
be 3.50:1.00. Further, under the First Amendment, in connection with any acquisition by the Company exceeding $25 million,
the Company may elect to increase the maximum permitted consolidated net leverage ratio forff the fiff scal quarter in which the
acquisition occurs and each of the folff lowing three fiff scal quarters by 0.50:1.00 abovea the otherwise permitted maximum. If the
consolidated net leverage ratio is less than 2.50:1:00, there is no limit on the incremental faff cility. The Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement also contains customaryrr representations and warranties, affff iff rmative covenants and events of defaff ult. We
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believe that we were in compliance with the covenants contained in such agreement as of December 31, 2022. On March 10,
2023, the calculation of the fiff xed charge coverage ratio was amended to specififf cally exclude frff om the defiff nition of fiff xed
charges the Company's share repurchases conducted during the third and fourff th quarters of 2022. Any faff ilure by us to comply
with this or another covenant in the futff urt e may result in an event of defaff ult. There can be no assurance that we will be abla e to
continue to comply with this covenant or obtain amendments to avoid futff urt e covenant violations, or that such amendments will
be availabla e on commercially acceptabla e terms.

The First Amendment removed the requirement that the Company mandatorily prepay the credit faff cilities with excess cash flff ow
generated during the prior fiff scal year. The Company is permitted to voluntarily prepay the credit faff cilities at any time without
penalty, subject to customaryrr “breakage” costs with respect to prepayments of SOFR rate loans made on a day other than the
last day of any appla icabla e interest period.

Bookings

Bookings is a key operational metric used by management to assess the relative success of our sales generation effff orff ts, and
were as folff lows forff the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively:

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
RCM(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48,065 $ 20,333
EHR(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38,152 40,873
Patient engagement (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,188 9,007
Total Bookings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 89,405 $ 70,213
(1) Generally calculated as the total contract price (forff non-recurring, project-related amounts) and annualized contract value
(forff recurring amounts).
(2) Generally calculated as the total contract price (forff system sales) including annualized contract value (forff support) forff
perper tuat l license system sales and total contract price forff SaaS sales.

RCM bookings during 2022 increased by $27.7 million, or 136%, compared to 2021 as we experienced strength in our core
markets forff RCM services, particularly as it relates to bookings frff om our existing EHR customer base. Sales activities and
bookings during 2021 suffff eff red frff om a number of incremental headwinds, chief among them being (a) COVID-19 related
distractions, including increased infeff ction rates forff certain geographia es and widespread focff us on eventuat l vaccine rollouts, (b)
reorganization transitions related to our Februarr ryrr 2021 reduction-in-forff ce, and (c) lower-value regulatoryrr purchases required by
the Centers forff Medicare and Medicaid Services' Hospital Price Transparency mandate requiring hospitals to provide clear,
accessible pricing inforff mation online. These topics disproportionately dominated sales discussions and resources, with the
related headwinds beginning to dissipate during the third quarter of 2021 and having little to no effff eff ct on 2022. Conversely,
2022 bookings benefiff ted frff om growing demand forff outsourced RCM services, with bookings frff om within our EHR customers
base increasing by $17.7 million, or 138%. Our recent acquisition of HRG enhanced our core competencies in generating sales
momentumt outside of our EHR customer base, with these "net new" bookings increasing by $10 million, or 135%.

EHR bookings during 2022 decreased by $2.7 million, or 7%, compared to 2021, primarily due to a $3.6 million decrease in
Acute Care EHR bookings resulting frff om a challenging decision environment forff new Acute Care EHR system sales
arrangements.This decrease was partially offff sff et by a $0.9 million increase in Post-acute Care EHR bookings as an improved
sales environment worked in tandem with recent product innovations designed to improve the competitive position of our AHT
products.

Patient engagement bookings decreased by $5.8 million, or 65%, compared to 2021. 2021 bookings were propelled by large
international client wins forff Get Real Health's patient engagement solutions, while 2022 lacked any such large international
client wins.

Bookings represent our sales activity during the periods reported abovea . The amount and volume of pending contracts at the end
of the period is described under “Business – Backlog.” Some of the contracts in our backlog are subject to modififf cation or
cancellation at the convenience of the customer, or forff defaff ult in the event that we are unabla e to perforff m under the contract.
There can be no assurance that our bookings or backlog will result in actuat l revenue in any particular period, or at all, or that
any contract included in backlog will be profiff tabla e.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

GeG neral

Our discussion and analysis of our fiff nancial condition and results of operations are based on our fiff nancial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We are
required to make some estimates and judgments that affff eff ct the preparation of these fiff nancial statements. We base our estimates
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonabla e under the circumstances, but actuat l
results may diffff eff r frff om these estimates under diffff eff rent assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognitii itt on

Revenue is recognized upon transfeff r of control of promised products or services to clients in an amount that reflff ects the
consideration we expect to receive in exchange forff those products and services. We enter into contracts that can include various
combinations of products and services, which are generally distinct and accounted forff as separate perforff mance obligations. The
Company employs the 5-step revenue recognition model under ASC 606, Revenue frff om ContCC rt actstt withtt CusCC tomersrr , to: (1)
identifyff the contract with the client, (2) identifyff the perforff mance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price,
(4) allocate the transaction price to the perforff mance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfiff es a perforff mance obligation. Refeff r to Note 2 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements included herein forff furff ther
discussion regarding our revenue recognition policies and signififf cant judgments involved in our appla ication of ASC 606.
Although we believe that our appra oach to estimates and judgements regarding revenue recognition is reasonabla e, actuat l results
could diffff eff r and we may be exposed to increases or decreases in revenue that could be material.

Allll owll ance forff CrCC editii Losses

Trade accounts receivabla e are stated at the amount the Company expects to collect and do not bear interest. The collectabia lity of
trade receivabla e balances is regularly evaluated based on a combination of faff ctors such as customer credit-worthiness, past
transaction historyrr with the customer, current economic industryrr trends and changes in customer payment patterns, resulting in
the establa ishment of general reserves. Additionally, if it is determined that a customer will be unabla e to fulff ly meet its fiff nancial
obligation, such as in the case of a bankruptr cy fiff ling or other material event impacting its business, a specififf c allowance forff
credit losses may be recorded to reduce the related receivabla e to the amount expected to be recovered. Refeff r to Note 11 of the
consolidated fiff nancial statements included herein forff a detailed discussion abouta our credit loss accounting policy related to
trade accounts receivabla e.

The Company has sold inforff mation and patient care systems to certain healthcare providers under short-term payment plans and
sales-type leases. The Company establa ishes an allowance forff credit losses forff these fiff nancing receivabla es based on the historical
level of customer defaff ults under such fiff nancing arrangements. Additionally, if it is determined that a customer will be unabla e to
meet its fiff nancial obligation, such as in the case of a bankruptr cy fiff ling or other material event impacting its business, a specififf c
allowances may be recorded to reduce the related receivabla e to the amount expected to be recovered.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, FiFF nancial InsII trtt umentstt -CrCC edit Losses (T(( opiTT c 326), which requires the
measurement of all expected credit losses forff fiff nancial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current
conditions, and reasonabla e and supportabla e forff ecasts. We adopted the new standard as of Januaryrr 1, 2020. Adoption of this
standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated fiff nancial statements. Although we believe that that our appra oach to
estimates and judgments regarding our allowance forff credit losses is reasonabla e, actuat l results could diffff eff r and we may be
exposed to increases or decreases in required allowances that could be material.

EsEE titt mii atett s

The Company uses estimates to record certain transactions and liabia lities. These estimates are generally based on management’s
best judgment, past experience, and utilization of third party services such as actuat rial and other expert services. Because these
estimates are subjective and variabla e, actuat l results could diffff eff r signififf cantly frff om these estimates. Signififf cant estimates
included in our fiff nancial statements include those forff self-ff insurance reserves under our health insurance plan, reserves forff
uncertain tax positions, bad debt and credit allowances, legal liabia lity exposure or lack thereof,ff and accruer d expenses.

Businii ess ComCC binii atitt ons,s inii cludinii g Purchased InII tantt gibli ell Assetstt

The Company accounts forff business combinations at faff ir value. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred and recorded in
general and administrative expenses. Measurement period adjustments relate to adjustments to the faff ir value of assets acquired
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and liabia lities assumed based on inforff mation that we should have known at the time of acquisition. All changes to purchase
accounting that do not qualifyff as measurement period adjustments are included in current period earnings.

The faff ir value amount assigned to an intangible asset is based on an exit price frff om a market participant’s viewpoint, and
utilizes data such as discounted cash flff ow analysis and replacement cost models. We review acquired intangible assets forff
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carryirr ng amount of such assets may not be
recoverabla e.

Goodwill is recorded as the diffff eff rence, if any, between the aggregate consideration paid forff an acquisition and the faff ir value of
the identififf abla e net tangible and intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated forff impairment annually
or more frff equently if indicators of impairment are present or changes in circumstances suggest that impairment may exist. We
test annually forff impairment as of October 1.

As part of our annual goodwill impairment test, we fiff rst assess qualitative faff ctors to determine whether it is more likely than not
that the faff ir value of a reporting unit is less than its carryirr ng amount. If we conclude that it is more likely than not that the faff ir
value of a reporting unit is less than its carryirr ng amount, we conduct a quantitative goodwill impairment assessment which
compares the faff ir value of the reporting unit with its carryirr ng amount, including goodwill. If the carryirr ng amount of the
reporting unit exceeds its faff ir value, an impairment charge is recognized forff the amount by which the carryirr ng amount exceeds
that reporting unit's faff ir value. If the faff ir value of the reporting unit exceeds its carryirr ng amount, the goodwill of the reporting
unit is not considered to be impaired.

Critical estimates in valuing certain intangible assets and the faff ir value of the reporting unit during goodwill impairment tests
include, but are not limited to, identifyiff ng reporting units, historical and projected customer retention rates, anticipated growth
in revenue frff om the acquired customers, and expected futff urt e cash outflff ows.

Signififf cant judgments in testing goodwill forff impairment also include assigning assets and liabia lities to the reporting unit and
determining the faff ir value of each reporting unit based on management’s best estimates and assumptions, as well as other
inforff mation compiled by management, including valuations that utilize customaryrr valuation procedures and techniques.

Management’s best estimates and assumptions are employed in determining the appra opriateness of these assumptions as of the
acquisition date and forff each subsequent period.

Futurt e business and economic conditions, as well as diffff eff rences actuat lly related to any of the assumptions, could materially
affff eff ct the fiff nancial statements through impairment of goodwill or intangible assets, and acceleration of the amortization period
of the purchased intangible assets, which are fiff nite-lived assets.

As of October 1, 2022, the date of our most recent impairment test, our TruBr ridge reporting unit had a faff ir value that was
substantially in excess of its carryirr ng value, at 154% . The calculated faff ir value of our Post-acute EHR and Acute Care EHR
reporting units exceeded the reporting units' carryirr ng values by 24% and 13%, respectively, and as such, pose a heightened risk
of impairment if the reporting unit’s operating results were to decline in futff urt e periods. During the three months ended
December 31, 2022, there were no identififf ed indicators of impairment that required the Company to complete an interim
quantitative assessment related to any of the Company’s reporting units or indefiff nitely-lived intangible assets.

SofSS tff wtt are Developmll ent CosCC tstt

Softff ware development costs are accounted forff in accordance with ASC 350-40, IntII ernal-UsUU e Softff wtt are. We capia talize incurred
labora costs forff softff ware development frff om the time the preliminaryrr project phase is completed until the softff ware is availabla e forff
general release. Research and development costs and other computer softff ware maintenance costs related to softff ware
development are expensed as incurred. We estimate the usefulff lifeff of our capia talized softff ware and amortize its value on a
straight-line basis over that estimated lifeff , which is estimated to be fiff ve years. If the actuat l lifeff of the asset is deemed to be
impaired, a write-down of the value of the asset may be recorded as a charge to earnings. Amortization begins when the related
feff aturt es are placed in service. Refeff r to Note 5 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements included herein forff furff ther discussion of
softff ware development.
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market and Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk relates primarily to the potential flff uctuat tions in the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR")
which replaced the British Bankers Association London Interbar nk Offff eff red Rate ("LIBOR") as the new benchmark interest rate
forff our credit faff cilities. We had $141.1 million of outstanding borrowings under our credit faff cilities with Regions Bank at
December 31, 2022. The term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility bear interest at a rate per annum equal to an appla icabla e
margin plus, at our option, either (1) the Adjusted SOFR rate forff the relevant interest period, subject to a flff oor of 0.5%, (2) an
alternate base rate determined by refeff rence to the greatest of (a) the prime lending rate of Regions, (b) the feff deral fundsff rate forff
the relevant interest period plus one half of one percent per annum and (c) the one month SOFR rate, subject to the
aforff ementioned flff oor, plus one percent per annum, or (3) a combination of (1) and (2). Accordingly, we are exposed to
flff uctuat tions in interest rates on borrowings under our credit faff cilities. A one hundred basis point change in interest rate on our
borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2022 would result in a change in interest expense of appra oximately $1.4 million
annually.

We did not have investments as of December 31, 2022. We do not currently utilize derivative fiff nancial instrumr ents to manage
our interest rate risks.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There were no new accounting standards required to be adopted in 2022 that had a material impact on our consolidated
fiff nancial statements, and we do not believe that any recently issued but not yet effff eff ctive accounting standards, if adopted,
would have a material impact on our consolidated fiff nancial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The inforff mation required by this Item is contained in Item 7 herein under the heading "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
abouta Market and Interest Rate Risk."
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Managgement iis responsiiblble forff establbla iishihi gng a dnd maiintaii ini gng addequate iinternall contr lol over fiiff nanciiall reportii gng as ddefiiff nedd iin
R lulRR e 13a- (15(f))ff dunder thhe Securiitiies Exchha gnge Act of 1934. Computer Pr gograms a dnd Syystems, Inc.’s (("CPSI")) iinternall contr lol
over fiiff nanciiall reportii gng iis ddesiiggnedd to pr iovidde reasonablbla e assurance reggardidi gng thhe relliiabibia lliityy of fiiff nanciiall reportii gng a dnd thhe
ppreparatiion of fiiff nanciiall statements forff externall purposrr es iin accorddance wiithh ggenerallllyy acceptedd accountii gng priincii lples. CPSI’s
iinternall contr lol over fiiff nanciiall reportii gng iincll dudes thhose lpoliiciies a dnd proceddures thhat:

((ii)) pertaiin to thhe maiintenance of recordds thhat, iin reasonablbla e ddetaiill, accuratellyy a dnd faff iirllyy refllff ect thhe transactiions a dnd
didisposiitiions of thhe assets of CPSI;

((iiii)) pr iovidde reasonablbla e assurance thhat transactiions are recorddedd as necessaryyrr to permiit preparatiion of fiiff nanciiall
statements iin accorddance wiithh ggenerallllyy acceptedd accountii gng priincii lples, a dnd thhat receiipts a dnd expe dinditurt es of CPSI are
bebeii gng madde lonlyy iin accorddance wiithh authhoriizatiions of managgement a dnd didirectors of CPSI; andnd

((iiiiii)) pr iovidde reasonablbla e assurance reggardidi gng preventiion or tiimellyy ddetectiion of unauthhoriizedd ac iquisiitiion, use or
didisposiitiion of CPSI’s assets thhat c louldd hhave a materiiall effff eff ct on thhe fiiff nanciiall statements.

Because of iits ii hnherent lliimiitatiions, iinternall contr lol over fiiff nanciiall reportii gng mayy not prevent or ddetect miisstatements. Allso,
pprojojectiions of a yny evalluatiion of effff eff ctiiveness to futff urt e perii dods are subjubject to thhe riiskk thhat contr lols mayy bbecome iinaddequate
bebecause of chha gnges iin c dionditiions, or thhat thhe ddeggree of com lpliiance wiithh thhe lpoliiciies or proceddures mayy ddeteriiorate.

Managgement assessedd thhe effff eff ctiiveness of CPSI’s iinternall contr lol over fiiff nanciiall reportii gng as of Decembber 31, 2022. In makiki gng
thihis assessment, managgement usedd thhe criiteriia set forff thh byby thhe Commiittee of Sponsorii gng Orgga inizatiions of thhe Treaddwayy
Commiissiion ((COSO)) iin IIntII er lnal ContCC rt lol-IntII eggre atedd FrFF ameworkkrr (( )2013)((( .

Basedd on our assessment a dnd thhose criiteriia, managgement bbelliieves thhat CPSI maiintaiinedd effff eff ctiive contr lol over fiiff nanciiall
reportii gng as of Decembber 31, 2022.

We excll dudedd Heallthhcare Resource Group, Inc. (("HRG")), whihichh was iincll dudedd iin our cons loliiddatedd fiiff nanciiall statements, frff om our
assessment of iinternall contr lol over fiiff nanciiall reportii gng as of Decembber 31, 2022 bbecause iit was ac iquiredd byby thhe Compa yny iin a
ppurchhase bbusiiness combibinatiion on Marchh 1, 2022. Thhe ac iquiredd bbusiiness of HRG excll dudedd frff om our assessment representedd
appra ioximatellyy 10% of thhe Compa yny's totall assets as of Decembber 31, 2022 a dnd appra ioximatellyy 10% of thhe Compa yny's
cons loliiddatedd totall revenues forff thhe yyear e dndedd Decembber 31, 2022.

Thhe ii dndepe dndent regigisteredd blpubliic accountii gng fiiff rm, Grant Thhornton LLP, hhas a diuditedd thhe cons loliiddatedd fiiff nanciiall statements of
thhe Compa yny as of a dnd forff thhe yyear e dndedd Decembber 31, 2022, a dnd hhas allso iissuedd iits report on thhe effff eff ctiiveness of thhe
Compa yny’s iinternall contr lol over fiiff nanciiall reportii gng iincll dudedd iin thihis report on page 63.

62



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Computer Programs and Systems, Inc.:

Opinion on internal control over fiff nancial reporting
We have audited the internal control over fiff nancial reporting of Computer Programs and Systems, Inc. (a Delaware corporr ation)
and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria establa ished in the 2013 IntII ernal ContCC rt ol—ll
IntII egre ated FrFF ameworkrr issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). In our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effff eff ctive internal control over fiff nancial reporting as of December 31,
2022, based on criteria establa ished in the 2013 IntII ernal ContCC rt ol—ll I— ntII egre ated FrFF ameworkrr issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”), the consolidated fiff nancial statements of the Company as of and forff the year ended December 31, 2022, and our
report dated March 16, 2023 expressed an unqualififf ed opinion on those fiff nancial statements.

Basis forff opinion
The Company’s management is responsible forff maintaining effff eff ctive internal control over fiff nancial reporting and forff its
assessment of the effff eff ctiveness of internal control over fiff nancial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting ("Management's Report"). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting fiff rm registered with the
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. feff deral securities laws and
the appla icabla e rulr es and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perforff m the
audit to obtain reasonabla e assurance abouta whether effff eff ctive internal control over fiff nancial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over fiff nancial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effff eff ctiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and perforff ming such other procedures as we considered necessaryrr in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonabla e basis forff our opinion.

Our audit of,ff and opinion on, the Company's internal control over fiff nancial reporting does not include the internal control over
fiff nancial reporting of Healthcare Resource Group, Inc. ("HRG"), a wholly-owned subsidiaryrr whose fiff nancial statements reflff ect
total assets and revenues each constitutt ing 10% of the related consolidated fiff nancial statement amounts as of and forff the year
ended December 31, 2022. As indicated in Management's Report, HRG was acquired during 2022. Management's assertion on
the effff eff ctiveness of the Company's internal control over fiff nancial reporting excluded internal control over fiff nancial reporting of
HRG.

Defiff nition and limitations of internal control over fiff nancial reporting
A company’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabla e assurance regarding the
reliabia lity of fiff nancial reporting and the preparation of fiff nancial statements forff external purposr es in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabla e detail, accurately and faff irly reflff ect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabla e assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaryrr to permit
preparation of fiff nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditurt es of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonabla e assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effff eff ct on the fiff nancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over fiff nancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effff eff ctiveness to futff urt e periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/ GRARR NA T THORNRR TON LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 16, 2023
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Computer Programs and Systems, Inc.:

Opinion on the fiff nancial statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Computer Programs and Systems, Inc. (a Delaware
corporrr ation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flff ows forff each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, and the
related notes and fiff nancial statement schedule included under item 15(a) (collectively refeff rred to as the “fiff nancial statements”).
In our opinion, the fiff nancial statements present faff irly, in all material respects, the fiff nancial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flff ows forff each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2022, in conforff mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”), the Company’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria establa ished in
the 2013 IntII ernal ContCC rt ol—ll I— ntII egre ated FrFF ameworkrr issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO”), and our report dated March 16, 2023 expressed an unqualififf ed opinion.

Basis forff opinion
These fiff nancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s fiff nancial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting fiff rm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. feff deral securities laws and the appla icabla e
rulr es and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perforff m the
audit to obtain reasonabla e assurance abouta whether the fiff nancial statements are frff ee of material misstatement, whether due to
error or frff aud. Our audits included perforff ming procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the fiff nancial
statements, whether due to error or frff aud, and perforff ming procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the fiff nancial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and signififf cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the fiff nancial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonabla e basis forff our opinion.

Critical audit matters
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising frff om the current period audit or the fiff nancial statements that
was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the fiff nancial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgements. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the fiff nancial statements, taken as a whole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Goodwill ImII paim rment Assessment

As described furff ther in Notes 2 and 12 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements, management evaluates goodwill forff impairment
on an annual basis as of October 1, or more frff equently if impairment indicators exist, at the reporting unit level. Management
estimated the faff ir values of its reporting units using a combination of the income and market appra oaches. The determination of
the faff ir value of the reporting units requires management to make signififf cant estimates and assumptions related to forff ecasts of
futff urt e revenues and operating expenses and discount rates. We identififf ed the goodwill impairment assessment of the acute
reporting unit as a critical audit matter.

The principal considerations forff our determination that the goodwill impairment assessment of the acute reporting unit is a
critical audit matter is that changes in the assumptions related to forff ecasts of futff urt e revenues, operating expenses and discount
rates could materially affff eff ct the determination of the faff ir value of the reporting unit, the amount of any goodwill impairment
charge, or both. Management utilized signififf cant judgment when estimating the faff ir value and carryirr ng value of the reporting
unit. In turt n, auditing management’s judgments regarding forff ecasts of futff urt e revenues, operating expenses and the discount
rates appla ied, involved a high degree of subjectivity due to the estimation uncertainty of management’s signififf cant judgments.

64



Our audit procedures related to the goodwill impairment assessment of the acute reporting unit included the folff lowing, among
others:

• We evaluated the design and tested the operating effff eff ctiveness of controls relating to the goodwill impairment
assessment of the acute reporting unit, including the determination of the faff ir value of the reporting unit.

• We tested management's process forff determining the faff ir value and carryirr ng value of the acute reporting unit. This
included evaluating the appra opriateness of the valuation methods, testing the completeness, accuracy, and relevance of
data used by management, and evaluating the reasonabla eness of management's signififf cant assumptions, which
included forff ecasted revenues and operating expenses. We tested whether these forff ecasts were reasonabla e and
consistent with historical perforff mance, third-party market data, and other evidence obtained in other areas of the audit.

• We tested the Company's discounted cash flff ow models forff the acute reporting unit with the assistance of valuation
specialists, including the reasonabla eness of the utilized discount rate.

• We tested the Company's use of the market appra oach with the assistance of valuation specialists, including the
reasonabla eness of selected multiples.

/s/ GRARR NA T THORNRR TON LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2004.

Atlanta, Georgia
March 16, 2023
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COMPUTER PROGRARR MS AND SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,951 $ 11,431
Accounts receivabla e, net of allowance forff credit losses of $2,854 and $1,826,
respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51,311 34,431
Financing receivabla es, current portion, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,474 6,488
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 784 855
Prepaid income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 701 4,599
Prepaid expenses and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,338 11,194

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 74,559 68,998
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,884 11,590
Softff ware development costs, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,257 11,644
Operating lease assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,567 7,097
Financing receivabla es, net of current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,312 7,231
Other assets, net of current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,131 3,874
Intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 102,000 95,203
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 198,253 177,713

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 430,963 $ 383,350
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabia lities:
Accounts payabla e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,035 $ 8,079
Current portion of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,394
Defeff rred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,590 11,529
Accruer d vacation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,214 5,262
Other accruerr d liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,475 17,163

Total current liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44,455 46,427
Long-term debt, net of current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 94,966
Operating lease liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,651 5,505
Defeff rred tax liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,758 13,880
Total liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 199,252 160,778
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value per share; 30,000 shares authorized; 14,913
shares issued at December 31, 2022 and 14,734 shares issued at December 31,
2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 15
Additional paid-in capia tal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 192,275 187,079
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53,921 38,054
Treasuryrr stock, 483 shares at December 31, 2022 and 89 shares at December 31,
2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14,500) (2,576)

Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 231,711 222,572
Total liabia lities and stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 430,963 $ 383,350

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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COMPUTER PROGRARR MS AND SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERARR TIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)
Year ended December 31,

2022 2021 2020
Sales revenues:

RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 179,870 $ 131,242 $ 107,431
EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 139,823 143,109 152,954
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,955 6,278 4,103

Total sales revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 326,648 280,629 264,488
Costs of sales (exclusive of amortization shown separately below):

RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 97,010 66,015 57,461
EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71,347 70,664 69,361
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,856 3,068 1,420

Total costs of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 172,213 139,747 128,242
Gross profiff t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 154,435 140,882 136,246
Operating expenses:

Product development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,389 33,457
Sales and marketing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,978 22,835
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56,192 50,022 47,479
Amortization of acquisition-related intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,786 11,421

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116,175 115,192
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,783 24,707 21,054
Other income (expense):

Other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,178 1,529 1,494
Gain on contingent consideration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 565 — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (125) — (202)
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,320) (3,160) (3,562)

Total other income (expense) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,702) (1,631) (2,270)
Income beforff e taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,081 23,076 18,784
Provision forff income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,214 4,646 4,538
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 15,867 $ 18,430 $ 14,246
Net income per share - basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.08 $ 1.26 $ .98
Net income per share - diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.08 $ 1.26 $ .98
Weighted average shares outstanding used in per common share
computations:

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,356 14,290 14,038
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,356 14,318 14,038

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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COMPUTER PROGRARR MS AND SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands)

Common
Shares

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capia tal

Retained
Earnings Treasuryrr Stock

Total
Stockholders’
Equity

Balance at December 31, 2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,356 $ 14 $ 174,618 $ 9,715 — $ 184,347
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 14,246 — 14,246
Issuance of restricted stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 156 1 (1) — — —
Forfeff iturt e of restricted stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1) — — — — —
Stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 7,005 — — 7,005
Treasuryrr stock purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — (1,261) (1,261)
Dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — (4,337) — (4,337)
Balance at December 31, 2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,511 $ 15 $ 181,622 $ 19,624 $ (1,261) $ 200,000
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 18,430 — 18,430
Issuance of restricted stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 229 — — — — —
Forfeff iturt e of restricted stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) — — — — —
Stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 5,457 — — 5,457
Treasuryrr stock purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — (1,315) (1,315)
Balance at December 31, 2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,734 $ 15 $ 187,079 $ 38,054 $ (2,576) $ 222,572
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 15,867 — 15,867
Exercise of stock option . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 23 — — 23
Issuance of restricted stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 189 — — — — —
Forfeff iturt e of restricted stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14) — — — — —
Stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 5,173 — — 5,173
Treasuryrr stock purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — (11,924) (11,924)
Balance at December 31, 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,913 $ 15 $ 192,275 $ 53,921 $ (14,500) $ 231,711( )( )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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COMPUTER PROGRARR MS AND SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31,

2022 2021 2020
Operating Activities
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 15,867 $ 18,430 $ 14,246
Adjustments to net income:

Provision forff bad debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 992 2,592 4,370
Defeff rred taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,688) 3,502 2,755
Stock based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,173 5,457 7,005
Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,443 2,156 1,790
Amortization of acquisition-related intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,786 11,421
Amortization of softff ware development costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,484 931 118
Amortization of defeff rred fiff nance costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 332 293 317
Gain on contingent consideration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (565) — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 125 — 202
Loss on disposal of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 313 —

Changes in operating assets and liabia lities (net of acquired assets and
liabia lities):

Accounts receivabla e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,428) (3,204) 3,667
Financing receivabla es . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,098 6,369
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71 229 342
Prepaid expenses and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,930) (3,914) (3,519)
Accounts payabla e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,429) (615) (1,088)
Defeff rred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61 2,099 (498)
Other liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 422 401 2,097
Prepaid income taxes/income taxes payabla e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,898 (2,810) (452)

Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,375 47,744 49,142
Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (270) (920) (3,336)
Purchase of business, net of cash received . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (43,364) (59,634) —
Investment in softff ware development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (19,097) (9,365) (3,328)
Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (62,731) (69,919) (6,664)
Financing Activities
Dividends paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (4,337)
Proceeds frff om long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 575 — 64
Payments of long-term debt principal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,563) (3,750) (4,069)
Proceeds frff om revolving line of credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48,000 61,000 —
Payments of revolving line of credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5,300) (35,000) (27,561)
Payments of contingent consideration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,935) — —
Proceeds frff om exercise of stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 — —
Treasuryrr stock purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,924) (1,315) (1,261)
Net cash provided by (used in) fiff nancing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,935 (37,164)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,480) (1,240) 5,314
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,431 12,671 7,357
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,951 $ 11,431 $ 12,671

Continued on folff lowing page.
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COMPUTER PROGRARR MS AND SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (Continued)

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31,

2022 2021 2020
Supplemental disclosure of cash flff ow inforff mation:
Cash paid forff interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,863 $ 2,817 $ 3,245
Cash paid forff income taxes, net of refundff . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,765 $ 3,503 $ 2,235
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash flff ow inforff mation:
Write-offff of fulff ly depreciated assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ 1,618

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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COMPUTER PROGRARR MS AND SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

1. NATURE OF OPERARR TIONS

Computer Programs and Systems, Inc. (“CPSI” or the “Company”) is a leading provider of healthcare solutions and
services forff community hospitals, their clinics and other healthcare systems. Founded in 1979, CPSI is the parent of six
companies – Evident, LLC, American HealthTech, Inc. ("AHT"), TruBr ridge, LLC ("TruBr ridge"), iNetXperts, Corp.r d/b// a
Get Real Health, TruCrr ode LLC ("TruCr ode"), and Healthcare Resource Group, Inc ("HRG"). Our combined companies are
focff used on helping improve the health of the communities we serve, connecting communities forff a better patient care
experience, and improving the fiff nancial operations of our customers. Evident provides comprehensive acute care EHR
solutions forff community hospitals and their affff iff liated clinics. AHT is one of the nation’s largest providers of post-acute
care EHR solutions and services forff post-acute care faff cilities. TruBrr ridge focff uses on providing business, consulting and
managed IT services, along with its complete RCM solution, forff all care settings. Get Real Health focff uses on solutions
aimed at improving patient engagement forff individuals and healthcare providers. TruCr ode provides medical coding
softff ware that enabla es complete and accurate code assignment forff optimal reimbursement. HRG provides specialized RCM
solutions forff faff cilities of all sizes.

2. SUMMARYRR OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PrPP inii ciplii ell s of ConCC solill datitt on

The consolidated fiff nancial statements of CPSI include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All
signififf cant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

CasCC h and CasCC h Equivalell ntstt

Cash and cash equivalents can include time deposits and certififf cates of deposit with original maturt ities of three months or
less that are highly liquid and readily convertible to a known amount of cash. These assets are stated at cost, which
appra oximates market value, due to their short duration or liquid naturt e.

ChCC ange inii UsUU efe uff l Lives of InII tantt gibli ell Assetstt

In accordance with its policy, the Company reviews the estimated usefulff lives of its intangible assets on an ongoing basis.
This review indicated that the actuat l lives of certain developed technology were shorter than the estimated usefulff lives used
forff amortization purposr es in the Company's fiff nancial statements. As a result, effff eff ctive Januaryrr 1, 2021, the Company
changed its estimates of the usefulff lives of certain developed technology to better reflff ect the estimated periods during
which these assets will remain in service. The remaining usefulff lifeff of certain developed technology that was 3.25 years at
Januaryrr 1, 2021 was reduced to 2 years, while the remaining usefulff lifeff of certain developed technology that was 4.25 years
was reduced to 3 years. The effff eff ct of this change was to increase 2021 amortization expense by appra oximately $1.0 million
and decrease 2021 net income and basic and diluted earnings per share by $0.8 million and $0.06, respectively.

PrPP esentattt itt on

Commencing with the fourff th quarter of 2022, the Company realigned its reporting strucr turt e due to certain organizational
changes. As a result, the Company changed its three reportabla e segments frff om (i) TruBr ridge, (ii) Acute Care Electronic
Health Records ("EHR"), and (iii) Post-acute Care EHR to (i) Revenue Cycle Management ("RCM"), (ii) EHR, and (iii)
Patient Engagement. All prior segment inforff mation has been recast to reflff ect the Company's new segment strucr turt e and
current period presentation. Refeff r to Note 18 - Segment Reporting forff more inforff mation.

Accountstt Receivablell and Allll owll ance forff CrCC editii Losses

Trade accounts receivabla e are stated at the amount the Company expects to collect and do not bear interest. The Company
establa ishes a general allowance forff credit losses based on collections history.rr In the case of a bankruptr cy fiff ling or other
similar event indicating the collectabia lity of specififf c customer accounts is no longer probabla e, a specififf c allowance forff
credit losses may be recorded to reduce the related receivabla e to the amount expected to be recovered.
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FiFF nii ancinii g Receivablell s

Financing receivabla es are comprised of short-term payment plans and sales-type leases. Short-term payment plans are
stated at the amount the Company expects to collect and do not bear interest. Sales-type leases are initially recorded at the
present value of the related minimum lease payments.

An allowance forff credit losses has been establa ished forff our fiff nancing receivabla es based on the historical level of customer
defaff ults under such arrangements. In the case of a bankruptrr cy fiff ling or other similar event indicating the collectabia lity of
specififf c customer accounts is no longer probabla e, a specififf c reserve may be recorded to reduce the related receivabla e to the
amount expected to be recovered. Customer payments are considered past due if a scheduled payment is not received
within contractuat lly agreed upon terms, with amounts reclassififf ed to accounts receivabla e when they become due. As a
result, we evaluate the credit quality of our fiff nancing receivabla es on an ongoing basis utilizing an aging of receivabla es and
write-offff sff , customer collection experience, the customer’s fiff nancial condition and known risk characteristics impacting the
respective customer base, as well as existing economic conditions, to determine if any furff ther allowance is necessary.rr
Amounts are specififf cally charged offff once all availabla e means of collection have been exhausted.

InII ventortt ies

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realizabla e value using the average cost method. The Company’s inventories are
comprised of computer equipment, forff ms and supplies.

PrPP opertytt and Equipmii ent

Property and equipment is recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Additions and improvements to property and
equipment that materially increase productive capaa city or extend the lifeff of an asset are capia talized. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. Upon retirement or other disposition of such assets, the related costs and
accumulated depreciation are removed frff om the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results
of operations.

Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the asset’s usefulff lifeff , which is generally 5 years forff
computer equipment, furff niturt e, and fiff xturt es and 30 years forff buildings. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s usefulff lifeff or the remaining lease term. The Company reviews forff the possible impairment of long-
lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carryirr ng amount of an asset may not be
recoverabla e. Depreciation expense is reported in the consolidated statements of operations as a component of costs of sales
and operating expenses.

Businii ess ComCC binii atitt ons

We appla y business combination accounting when we acquire a business. Business combinations are accounted forff at faff ir
value. The associated acquisition costs are expensed as incurred and recorded in general and administrative expenses;
restrucr turt ing costs associated with a business combination are expensed as incurred; contingent consideration is measured
at faff ir value at the acquisition date, with changes in faff ir value aftff er the acquisition date affff eff cting earnings; changes in
defeff rred tax asset valuation allowances and income tax uncertainties aftff er the measurement period affff eff ct income tax
expense; and goodwill is determined as the excess of the faff ir value of the consideration conveyed in the acquisition over
the faff ir value of the net assets acquired. The accounting forff business combinations requires estimates and judgments as to
expectations forff futff urt e cash flff ows of the acquired business, and the allocation of those cash flff ows to identififf abla e intangible
assets, in determining the estimated faff ir value forff assets and liabia lities acquired. The faff ir values assigned to tangible and
intangible assets acquired and liabia lities assumed, are based on management's estimates and assumptions, including
valuations that utilize customaryrr valuation procedures and techniques. If the actuat l results diffff eff r frff om the estimates and
judgments used in these estimates, the amounts recorded in the fiff nancial statements could result in a possible impairment of
the intangible assets and goodwill, or require acceleration of the amortization expense of fiff nite-lived intangible assets. The
results of the acquired businesses' operations are included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations of the combined
entity beginning on the date of the acquisition. We have appla ied this acquisition method to the transactions described in
Note 3 - Business Combinations.

GoodwG ilii lll

Goodwill is recorded as the diffff eff rence, if any, between the aggregate consideration paid forff an acquisition and the faff ir
value of the identififf abla e net tangible and intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated forff
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impairment annually or more frff equently if indicators of impairment are present or changes in circumstances suggest that
impairment may exist. We test annually forff impairment as of October 1.

As part of our annual goodwill impairment test, we fiff rst assess qualitative faff ctors to determine whether it is more likely
than not that the faff ir value of a reporting unit is less than its carryirr ng amount. If we conclude that it is more likely than not
that the faff ir value of a reporting unit is less than its carryirr ng amount, we conduct a quantitative goodwill impairment
assessment, which compares the faff ir value of the reporting unit with its carryirr ng amount, including goodwill. If the
carryirr ng amount of the reporting unit exceeds its faff ir value, an impairment charge is recognized forff the amount by which
the carryirr ng amount exceeds the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. If the faff ir value of the reporting
unit exceeds its carryirr ng amount, the goodwill of the reporting unit is not considered to be impaired. We determined there
was no impairment to goodwill forff any of the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 or 2020.

Purchased InII tantt gibli ell Assetstt

Purchased intangible assets are acquired in connection with a business acquisition, and are amortized over their estimated
usefulff lives based on the pattern of economic benefiff t expected frff om each asset. We concluded forff certain purchased
intangible assets that the pattern of economic benefiff t appra oximated the straight-line method, and thereforff e, the use of the
straight-line method was appra opriate, as the maja ority of the cash flff ows will be recognized ratabla y over the estimated usefulff
lives and there is no degradation of the cash flff ows over time.

We assess the recoverabia lity of intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carryirr ng
amount of the asset may not be recoverabla e. The carryirr ng amount is not recoverabla e if it exceeds the undiscounted sum of
cash flff ows expected to result frff om the use and eventuat l disposition of the asset. If the asset is not recoverabla e, the
impairment loss is measured by the excess of the asset's carryirr ng amount over its faff ir value. We determined there was no
impairment to purchased intangible assets as of December 31, 2022, 2021 or 2020.

Revenue Recognitii itt on

Revenue is recognized upon transfeff r of control of promised products or services to clients in an amount that reflff ects the
consideration we expect to receive in exchange forff those products and services. We enter into contracts that can include
various combinations of products and services, which are generally distinct and accounted forff as separate perforff mance
obligations. The Company employs the 5-step revenue recognition model under Accounting Standards Codififf cation 606,
Revenue frff om ContCC rt actstt withtt CusCC tomersrr , to: (1) identifyff the contract with the client, (2) identifyff the perforff mance
obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the perforff mance
obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfiff es a perforff mance obligation.

Revenue is recognized net of shipping charges and any taxes collected frff om clients, which are subsequently remitted to
governmental authorities.

• Revenue CyCC clell ManMM agement

Our RCM business unit provides an array of business processing services ("BPS") consisting of accounts
receivabla e management, private pay services, insurance services, medical coding, electronic billing, statement
processing, payroll processing, and contract management. Fees are recognized over the period of the client
contractuat l relationship as the services are perforff med based on the stand-alone selling price ("SSP"), net of
discounts. SSP forff BPS services is determined based on observabla e stand-alone selling prices. Fees forff many of
these services are invoiced, and revenue recognized accordingly, based on the volume of transactions or a
percentage of client accounts receivabla e collections. Payment is due monthly forff BPS with certain amounts
varyirr ng based on utilization and/or volumes.

Our RCM business unit also provides profeff ssional IT services. Revenue frff om profeff ssional IT services is
recognized as the services are perforff med based on SSP, which is determined by observabla e stand-alone selling
prices. Payment is due monthly as services are perforff med.

Lastly, our RCM business unit also provides certain softff ware solutions and related support under Softff ware as a
Service ("SaaS") arrangements and time-based softff ware licenses. Revenue frff om SaaS arrangements is
recognized in a manner consistent with SaaS arrangements forff EHR softff ware, as discussed below. Revenue
frff om time-based softff ware licenses is recognized upon deliveryrr to the client (“point in time”) and revenue frff om
non-license components (i.e., support) is recognized ratabla y over the respective contract term (“over time”).
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SSP forff time-based licenses is determined using the residual appra oach, while the non-license component is
based on cost plus reasonabla e margin.

• Elell ctrtt onic HeHH altll htt Records

The Company enters into contractuat l obligations to sell perper tuat l softff ware licenses, installation, conversion, and
related training services, softff ware appla ication support, hardware, and hardware maintenance services to acute
care community hospitals and post-acute providers.

• Non-recurring Revenues

• Perper tuat l softff ware licenses and installation, conversion, and related training services are not
considered separate and distinct perforff mance obligations due to the proprietaryrr naturt e of our softff ware
and are, thereforff e, accounted forff as a single perforff mance obligation on a module-by-module basis.
Revenue is recognized as each module's implementation is completed based on the module's SSP, net
of discounts. We determine each module's SSP using the residual method. Fees forff licenses and
installation, conversion, and related training services are typically due in three installments: (1) at
placement of order, (2) upon installation of softff ware and commencement of training, and (3) upon
satisfaff ctoryrr completion of monthly accounting cycle or end-of-ff month operation by appla ication and as
appla icabla e forff each appla ication. Oftff en, short-term and/or long-term fiff nancing arrangements are
provided forff softff ware implementations; refeff r to Note 11 - Financing Receivabla es forff furff ther
inforff mation. EHR implementations include a system warranty that terminates thirty days frff om the
softff ware go-live date, the date which the client begins using the system in a live environment.

• Hardware revenue is recognized separately frff om softff ware licenses at the point in time it is delivered to
the client. The SSP of hardware is cost plus a reasonabla e margin and revenue is recognized on a gross
basis. Payment is generally due upon deliveryrr of the hardware to the client. Standard manufaff cturt er
warranties appla y to hardware.

• Recurring Revenues

• Softff ware appla ication support and hardware maintenance services sold with softff ware licenses and
hardware are separate and distinct perforff mance obligations. Revenue forff support and maintenance
services is recognized based on SSP, which is the renewal price, ratabla y over the lifeff of the contract,
which is generally three to fiff ve years. Payment is due monthly forff support and maintenance services
provided.

• Subscriptions to third-party content revenue is recognized as a separate perforff mance obligation ratabla y
over the subscription term based on SSP, which is cost plus a reasonabla e margin, and revenue is
recognized on a gross basis. Payment is due monthly forff subscriptions to third party content.

• SaaS arrangements forff EHR softff ware and related conversion and training services are considered a
single perforff mance obligation. Revenue is recognized on a monthly basis as the SaaS service is
provided to the client over the contract term. Payment is due monthly forff SaaS services provided.

Refeff r to Note 18 of the consolidated fiff nancial statements forff furff ther inforff mation, including revenue by
client base (acute care or post-acute care) bifurff cated by recurring and non-recurring revenue.

• PatPP itt ent EnEE gagement

The Company enters into contractuat l obligations to sell perper tuat l and term-based softff ware licenses,
implementation and customization profeff ssional services, and softff ware appla ication support services to a variety
of healthcare organizations including hospital systems, health ministries, and government and non-profiff t
organizations.

• Non-recurring Revenues

• Perper tuat l softff ware licenses are sold only to one re-seller client and are considered a separate and
distinct perforff mance obligation. Revenue is recognized at the point in time perper tuat l licenses are
delivered to the client, which occurs at the time of sale. The SSP of perper tuat l licenses is directly
observabla e. Payment is generally due upon deliveryrr of licenses.
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• Implementation and customization services are considered a separate and distinct perforff mance
obligation. Revenue is recognized over time based on SSP, which is generally directly observabla e.
Payment forff profeff ssional services is typically due in two installments: (1) upon signaturt e of the
agreement and (2) upon customer acceptance of the delivered services.

• Recurring Revenues

• Term-based softff ware licenses are considered a separate and distinct perforff mance obligation. Revenue
is recognized based on SSP, which is directly observabla e, at the point in time the term-based licenses
are delivered to the client or upon annual renewal. Payment is generally due upon deliveryrr of licenses
or upon annual renewal.

• Softff ware appla ication support services sold with softff ware licenses are separate and distinct perforff mance
obligations. The related revenues are recognized based on SSP, which is the renewal price, ratabla y
over the lifeff of the contract, which is generally three to fiff ve years. Payment is generally due forff the
fulff l amount of annual support feff es at the beginning of an annual license term.

Refeff r to Note 18 of the consolidated fiff nancial statements forff furff ther inforff mation.

• Defe eff rred Revenue

Defeff rred revenue represents amounts invoiced to clients forff which the services under contract have not been
completed and revenue has not been recognized, including annual renewals of certain softff ware subscriptions
and customer deposits forff implementations to be perforff med at a later date. Revenue is recognized ratabla y over
the lifeff of the softff ware subscriptions as services are provided and at the point-in-time when implementations
have been completed.

The folff lowing tabla e details defeff rred revenue forff the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, included in the
consolidated balance sheets:

For years ended December 31,
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
Beginning balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 11,529 $ 8,130
Defeff rred revenue recorded . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,393
Defeff rred revenue acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,300
Less defeff rred revenue recognized as revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (25,518) (21,294)
Ending balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 11,590 $ 11,529

The defeff rred revenue recorded forff the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is comprised primarily of the
annual renewals of certain softff ware subscriptions billed during the fiff rst quarter of each year and deposits
collected forff futff urt e EHR installations. The defeff rred revenue acquired resulted frff om the May 2021 acquisition of
TruCrr ode. The defeff rred revenue recognized as revenue during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is
comprised primarily of the periodic recognition of annual renewals that were defeff rred until earned and deposits
forff futff urt e EHR installations that were defeff rred until earned.

• CosCC tstt tott Obtaitt nii and FuFF lfll iff lii lll a ConCC trtt act witii htt a CuCC stomtt er

Costs to obtain a contract include the commission costs related to SaaS and RCM arrangements, which are
capia talized and amortized ratabla y over the expected lifeff of the customer. As a practical expedient, we generally
recognize the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred if the amortization period
of the asset would have been one year or less. Costs to obtain a contract are expensed within sales and
marketing expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Contract fulff fiff llment costs related to the implementation of SaaS arrangements are capia talized and amortized
ratabla y over the expected lifeff of the customer. Costs to fulff fiff ll contracts consist of the payroll costs forff the
implementation of SaaS arrangements, including time forff training, conversion, and installation that is necessaryrr
forff the softff ware to be utilized. Contract fulff fiff llment costs are expensed within thhe capta iion "Ellectr ionic hheallthh
recordd - Cost of salles" iin thhe accompanyinyi gng cons loliiddatedd statements of operatiions.
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Costs to obtain and fulff fiff ll contracts related to SaaS and RCM arrangements are included within the "Prepaid
expenses and other" and "Other assets, net of current portion" line items on our consolidated balance sheets.

The folff lowing tabla e details costs to obtain and fulff fiff ll contracts with customers forff the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, included in the consolidated balance sheets:

For years ended December 31,
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
Beginning balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,312 $ 5,992
Costs to obtain and fulff fiff ll contracts capia talized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,361 7,256
Less costs to obtain and fulff fiff ll contracts recognized as expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7,096) (5,936)
Ending balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 11,577 $ 7,312

• SiSS gni ifi iff cant Judgmentstt

Our contracts with clients oftff en include promises to transfeff r multiple products and services. Determining
whether products and services are considered distinct perforff mance obligations that should be accounted forff
separately versus together may require signififf cant judgment.

Judgment is required to determine SSP forff each distinct perforff mance obligation. We use observabla e SSP forff
items that are sold on a stand-alone basis to similarly situat ted clients at unit prices within a suffff iff ciently narrow
range. For perforff mance obligations that are sold to diffff eff rent clients forff a broad range of amounts, or forff
perforff mance obligations that are never sold on a stand-alone basis, the residual method in determining SSP is
apa plied and requires signififf cant judgment.

Allocating the transaction price, including estimating SSP of promised goods and services forff contracts with
discounts or variabla e consideration, may require signififf cant judgment. Due to the short time frff ame of the
implementation cycle, discount allocation is immaterial as revenue is recognized net of discounts within the
same reporting period. In scenarios where the Company enters into a contract that includes both a softff ware
license and BPS or other services that are charged based on volume of services rendered, the Company allocates
variabla e amounts entirely to a distinct good or service. The terms of the variabla e payment relate specififf cally to
the entity’s effff orff ts to satisfyff that perforff mance obligation.

Signififf cant judgment is required in determining the expected lifeff of a customer relationship, which is the
amortization period forff costs to obtain and fulff fiff ll a contract that have been capia talized. The Company
determined that the expected lifeff of the customer relationship is not materially diffff eff rent frff om the initial contract
term based on the characteristics of the SaaS offff eff ring.

• Remainii inii g PePP rfr orff mrr ance Oblill gati itt ons

Disclosures regarding remaining perforff mance obligations are not considered material as the overwhelming
maja ority of the Company's remaining perforff mance obligations either (a) are related to contracts with an
expected duration of one year or less, or (b) exhibit revenue recognition in the amount to which the Company
has the right to invoice.

Although we believe that our appra oach to estimates and judgments regarding revenue recognition is reasonabla e, actuat l
results could diffff eff r, and we may be exposed to increases or decreases in revenue that could be material.

StSS octt k-B- ased ComCC pem nsatitt on

The Company accounts forff stock-based compensation according to the provisions of ASC 718, ComCC pem nsation – Stock
ComCC pem nsation, which establa ishes accounting forff stock-based awards exchanged forff employee services. Accordingly, stock-
based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the faff ir value of the award, and is recognized as an expense
over the employee’s or non-employee director’s requisite service period.

SofSS tff wtt are Developmll ent CosCC tstt

Our softff ware solutions are offff eff red to our clients through traditional perperr tuat l licenses, term licenses and SaaS deliveryrr
models. Development costs associated with the solutions offff eff red exclusively through a SaaS model are accounted forff in
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accordance with ASC 350-40, IntII ernal UsUU e Softff wtt are. All other client solution development costs are accounted forff in
accordance with ASC 985-20, CosCC tstt of Softff wtt are to be Sold,l Leased, or MarMM krr ekk ted.

Under ASC 985-20, softff ware development costs incurred in creating computer softff ware solutions are expensed until
technological feff asibility has been establa ished upon completion of a detailed program design or, in the absa ence of a detailed
program design, upon completion of a product design and working model of the softff ware product. Thereaftff er, all softff ware
development costs incurred through the softff ware’s general release date are capia talized and subsequently recorded at the
lower of amortized cost or net realizabla e value. Capia talized costs are amortized based on the current and expected futff urt e
revenue forff each softff ware solution with minimum annual amortization equal to the straight-line amortization over the
estimated economic lifeff of the solution, which is estimated to be fiff ve years.

Under ASC 350-40, softff ware development costs related to preliminaryrr project activities and post-implementation and
maintenance activities are expensed as incurred. We capia talize direct costs related to appla ication development activities
that are probabla e to result in additional funcff tionality. Capia talized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over fiff ve
years. We test forff impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances that could impact recoverabia lity occur.

See Note 5 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements forff furff ther inforff mation relating to our softff ware development costs.

InII come TaxeTT s

We account forff income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, Accounting forff IncII ome TaxTT es. Under this topic, defeff rred
income taxes are determined utilizing the asset and liabia lity appra oach. This method gives consideration to the futff urt e tax
consequences associated with diffff eff rences between fiff nancial accounting and tax bases of assets and liabia lities. The effff eff ct on
the defeff rred tax assets and liabia lities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. We recognize interest and penalties accruerr d related to unrecognized tax benefiff ts in the consolidated
statements of operations as a component of the provision forff income taxes.

We also make a provision forff uncertain income tax positions in accordance with the ASC 740, Accounting forff IncII ome
TaxTT es. These provisions require that a tax position taken in a tax returt n be recognized in the fiff nancial statements when it is
more likely than not (i.e., a likelihood of more than fiff ftff y percent) that the position would be sustained upon examination by
tax authorities. A recognized tax position is then measured at the largest amount of benefiff t that is greater than fiff ftff y percent
likely of being realized upon settlement. The topic also requires that changes in judgment that result in subsequent
recognition, derecognition, or change in a measurement date of a tax position taken in a prior annual period (including any
related interest and penalties) be recognized as a discrete item in the interim period in which the change occurs.

Valuation allowances are recorded when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the
defeff rred tax assets will not be realized. These valuation allowances can be impacted by changes in tax laws, changes to
statutt oryrr tax rates, and futff urt e taxabla e income, and are based on our judgment, estimates, and assumptions.

UsUU e of EsEE titt mii atett s

The preparation of fiff nancial statements in conforff mity with U.S. GAAP requires that management make estimates and
assumptions that affff eff ct the reported amounts of assets and liabia lities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabia lities at
the date of the fiff nancial statements, and the reported revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actuat l results
could diffff eff r frff om those estimates.

SeSS gme ent Reporee titt nii g

Operating segments are identififf ed as components of an enterprr ise abouta which separate discrete fiff nancial inforff mation is
evaluated by the chief operating decision maker, which we refeff r to as the "CODM", or decision-making group in assessing
perforff mance and making decisions regarding resource allocation. The Company has prepared operating segment
inforff mation based on the manner in which management disaggregates the Company's operations forff making internal
operating decisions. For more inforff mation, see Note 18 - Segment Reporting.

NeNN w Accountitt nii g StSS antt dards Adoptett d inii 2022

There were no new accounting standards required to be adopted in 2022 that would have a material impact on our
consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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NeNN w Accountitt nii g StSS antt dards YeYY t tott be Adoptett d

We ddo not bbelliieve thhat a yny recentllyy iissuedd bbut not yyet effff eff ctiive accountii gng sta dndardds, iif addoptedd, w louldd hhave a materiiall
iimpact on our cons loliiddatedd fiiff nanciiall statements.

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisii itii itt on of HeHH altll htt care Resource GrGG oupu

On March 1, 2022, we acquired all of the assets and liabia lities of Healthcare Resource Group, Inc., a Washington
corporrr ation ("HRG"), pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 1, 2022. Based in Spokane, Washington, HRG
is a leading provider of customized RCM solutions and consulting services that enabla e hospitals and clinics to improve
effff iff ciency, profiff tabia lity, and patient satisfaff ction.

Consideration forff the acquisition included cash (net of cash of the acquired entity) of $43.9 million (inclusive of seller's
transaction expenses). During 2022, we incurred appra oximately $1.2 million of pre-tax acquisition costs in connection with
the acquisition of HRG. Acquisition costs are included in general and administrative expenses in our consolidated
statements of operations.

Our acquisition of HRG was treated as a purchase in accordance with ASC 805, Business ComCC binations, which requires
allocation of the purchase price to the estimated faff ir values of assets and liabia lities acquired in the transaction. Our
allocation of the purchase price was based on management's judgment aftff er evaluating several faff ctors, including a
valuation assessment.

The allocation of the purchase price paid forff HRG was as folff lows:

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
Purchase Price
Allocation

Acquired cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,989
Accounts receivabla e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,655
Prepaid expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 398
Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 467
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,200
Operating lease assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,315
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,750
Accounts payabla e and accruer d liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,403)
Defeff rred taxes, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5,565)
Operating lease liabia lity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,315)
Net assets acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 47,564

The intangible assets in the tabla e abovea are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated usefulff lives. The
amortization is included in amortization of acquisition-related intangibles in our consolidated statements of operations.

The faff ir value measurements of tangible and intangible assets and liabia lities were based on signififf cant inputs not
observabla e in the market and thus represent Level 3 measurements within the faff ir value measurement hierarchy (see Note
17 - Fair Value). Level 3 inputs included, among others, discount rates that we estimated would be used by a market
participant in valuing these assets and liabia lities, projections of revenues and cash flff ows, client attrition rates and market
comparabla es.

Our consolidated statement of operations forff the year ended December 31, 2022 includes revenues of appra oximately
$34.1 million attributed to the acquired business since the March 1, 2022 acquisition date. However, due to the rapia d pace
of integration of HRG’s operations into the existing operations of our RCM business unit, the related costs are suffff iff ciently
commingled such that it is impracticabla e to distinguish those costs associated with HRG frff om those associated with the
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remainder of our RCM business unit. As such, the disclosure of earnings associated with this acquisition during the year
ended December 31, 2022 has been omitted.

The folff lowing unaudited pro forff ma revenue, net income and earnings per share amounts forff the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 give effff eff ct to the HRG acquisition as if it had been completed on Januaryrr 1, 2021. The pro forff ma fiff nancial
inforff mation is presented forff illustrative purposrr es only and is not necessarily indicative of what the operating results
actuat lly would have been during the periods presented had the HRG acquisition been completed during the periods
presented. In addition, the unaudited pro forff ma fiff nancial inforff mation does not purporrr t to project futff urt e operating results.
The pro forff ma inforff mation does not fulff ly reflff ect: (1) any anticipated synergies (or costs to achieve synergies) or (2) the
impact of non-recurring items directly related to the HRG acquisition.

Year Ended December 31,
(I(( nII thoustt ands, exee cepte per share data, unaudited) 2022 2021
Pro forff ma revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 332,988 $ 314,474
Pro forff ma net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 16,629 $ 16,572
Pro forff ma diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.13 $ 1.13

Pro forff ma net income was calculated by adjusting the results forff the appla icabla e period to reflff ect (i) the additional
amortization that would have been charged assuming the faff ir value adjustments to intangible assets had been appla ied on
Januaryrr 1, 2021 and (ii) the pro forff ma adjustment to interest expense as a result of utilizing revolver debt to fiff nance the
acquisition.

Acquisii itii itt on of TrTT uCodeCC

On May 12, 2021, we acquired all of the assets and liabia lities of TruCr ode LLC, a Virginia limited liabia lity company
("TruCrr ode"), pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement dated May 12, 2021. Based in Alpharetta, Georgia, TruCrr ode
provides confiff gurabla e, knowledge-based softff ware that gives coders, clinical documentation improvement specialists and
auditors the flff exibility to code according to their knowledge, prefeff rences and experience. The cloud-based medical coding
solution is bundled with the TruBrr ridge solutions and services to enhance revenue cycle perforff mance forff healthcare
organizations of all sizes.

Consideration forff the acquisition included cash (net of cash of the acquired entity) of $59.9 million (inclusive of seller's
transaction expenses), plus a contingent earnout payment of up to $15.0 million tied to TruCr ode's earnings beforff e interest,
tax, depreciation, and amortization ("EBITDA") (subject to certain pro-forff ma adjustments) forff the twelve- month period
concluding on the anniversaryrr date of the acquisition. During 2022, the related contingent earnout payment was fiff nalized
and paid to the forff mer sharholders of TruCrr ode in the amount of $1.9 million. During 2021, we incurred appra oximately
$0.9 million of pre-tax acquisition costs in connection with the acquisition of TruCrr ode. Acquisition costs are included in
general and administrative expenses in our consolidated statements of operations.

Our acquisition of TruCrr ode was treated as a purchase in accordance with ASC 805, Business ComCC binations, which requires
allocation of the purchase price to the estimated faff ir values of assets and liabia lities acquired in the transaction. Our
allocation of the purchase price was based on management's judgment aftff er evaluating several faff ctors, including a
valuation assessment.
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The allocation of the purchase price paid forff TruCrr ode was as folff lows:

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
Purchase Price
Allocation

Acquired cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,249
Accounts receivabla e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 924
Prepaid expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37,300
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,287
Accounts payabla e and accruer d liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,840)
Contingent consideration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,500)
Defeff rred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,300)
Net assets acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 64,122

The intangible assets in the tabla e abovea are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated usefulff lives. The
amortization is included in amortization of acquisition-related intangibles in our consolidated statements of operations.

The faff ir value measurements of tangible and intangible assets and liabia lities were based on signififf cant inputs not
observabla e in the market and thus represent Level 3 measurements within the faff ir value measurement hierarchy (see Note
17 - Fair Value). Level 3 inputs included, among others, discount rates that we estimated would be used by a market
participant in valuing these assets and liabia lities, projections of revenues and cash flff ows, client attrition rates and market
comparabla es.

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment were comprised of the folff lowing at December 31, 2022 and 2021:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
Land . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,848 $ 2,848
Buildings and improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,320 8,269
Computer equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,228 7,868
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 783 783
Offff iff ce furff niturt e and fiff xturt es . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,008 682
Automobiles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

21,205 20,468
Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11,321) (8,878)
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9,884 $ 11,590

5. SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT

Softff ware development costs are accounted forff in accordance with ASC 350-40, IntII ernal-UsUU e Softff wtt are. We capia talize
incurred labora costs forff softff ware development frff om the time the preliminaryrr project phase is completed until the softff ware is
availabla e forff general release. Research and development costs and other computer softff ware maintenance costs related to
softff ware development are expensed as incurred. We estimate the usefulff lifeff of our capia talized softff ware and amortize its
value on a straight-line basis over that estimated lifeff , which is estimated to be fiff ve years. If the actuat l usefulff lifeff of the
asset is determined to be shorter than our estimated usefulff lifeff , we will amortize the remaining book value over the
remaining usefulff lifeff , or the asset may be deemed to be impaired and, accordingly, a write-down of the value of the asset
may be recorded as a charge to earnings. Amortization begins when the related feff aturt es are placed in service.

During the second quarter of 2021, our ongoing monitoring activities associated with the capia talization of softff ware
development costs and the related correlation between capia talization rates and operational metrics designed to reflff ect the
distribution of work revealed that our then-current labora capia talization methodology did not fulff ly reflff ect all of the critical
activities necessaryrr to develop softff ware assets. Consequently, during the second quarter of 2021, we elected to change our
method of estimating the labora costs incurred in developing softff ware assets. Prior to this change, we estimated the
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associated labora costs using an estimated time-equivalent forff workload metrics commonly utilized within agile softff ware
development environments. With this change, we now estimate these labora costs using the distribution of these agile
workload metrics between capia talizabla e and non-capia talizabla e units of work. We believe this change is prefeff rabla e as the
new methodology better estimates capia talizabla e labora costs and is consistent with industryrr best practices. We have
determined that this change in accounting forff softff ware development costs is a change in accounting estimate effff eff cted by a
change in accounting principle and, as such, has been accounted forff on a prospective basis. In connection with this change,
we capia talized softff ware development costs of $8.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2021. We estimate that
the effff eff ct of this change was to increase capia talized amounts by appra oximately $4.6 million forff the year ended December
31, 2021, with a corresponding decrease to product development costs.

Softff ware development, net was comprised of the folff lowing at December 31, 2022 and 2021:

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
Softff ware development costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 31,789 $ 12,693
Less: accumulated amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,532) (1,049)
Softff ware development costs, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 27,257 $ 11,644

6. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Other accruer d liabia lities were comprised of the folff lowing at December 31, 2022 and 2021:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
Salaries and benefiff ts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,430 $ 8,482
Severance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,504 236
Commissions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,158
Self-ff insurance reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,358 1,409
Contingent consideration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2,500
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 840 1,786
Operating lease liabia lities, current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,063 1,592
Other accruerr d liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 16,475 $ 17,163

7. NET INCOME PER SHARE

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS") data forff its common stock. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the net income attributabla e to stockholders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the net income attributabla e to stockholders of
the Company and the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period forff the effff eff cts of
all dilutive potential common shares, including awards under stock-based compensation arrangements.

The Company's unvested restricted stock awards (see Note 9) are considered participating securities under ASC 260,
Earnings Per Share, because they entitle holders to non-forff feff itabla e rights to dividends until the awards vest or are forff feff ited.
When a company has a security that qualififf es as a "participating security," the Codififf cation requires the use of the two-class
method when computing basic EPS. The two-class method is an earnings allocation forff mula that determines EPS forff each
class of common stock and participating security according to dividends declared (or accumulated) and participation rights
in undistributed earnings. In determining the amount of net income to allocate to common stockholders, income is allocated
to both common stock and participating securities based on their respective weighted average shares outstanding forff the
period, with net income attributabla e to common stockholders ultimately equaling net income less net income attributabla e to
participating securities. Diluted EPS forff the Company's common stock is computed using the more dilutive of the two-class
method or the treasuryrr stock method.
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The folff lowing is a calculation of the basic and diluted EPS forff the Company's common stock, including a reconciliation
between net income and net income attributabla e to common stockholders forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021,
and 2020:
(I(( nII thoustt ands, exee cepte forff per share data) 2022 2021 2020
Basic EPEE SPP
Numerator
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 15,867 $ 18,430 $ 14,246
Less: Net income attributabla e to participating securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . (311) (409) (429)
Net income attributabla e to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,556 $ 18,021 $ 13,817
Denominator
Weighted average shares outstanding used in basic per common share
computations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,356 14,290 14,038
Basic EPS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.08 $ 1.26 $ 0.98

Dilii utett d EPEE SPP
Numerator
Net income attributabla e to common stockholders forff diluted EPS . . . . . . $ 15,556 $ 18,021 $ 13,817
Denominator
Weighted average shares outstanding used in basic per common share
computations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,356 14,290 14,038
Weighted average effff eff ct of dilutive securities:
Perforff mance share awards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 28 —
Weighted average shares outstanding used in diluted per common share
computations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,356 14,318 14,038
Diluted EPS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.08 $ 1.26 $ 0.98

8. INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts forff income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, Accounting forff IncII ome TaxTT es. These provisions
require a company to determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination
based on the technical merits of the position. If the more-likely-than-not threshold is met, a company must measure the tax
position to determine the amount to recognize in the fiff nancial statements. The Company did not have any unrecognized tax
positions as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

The feff deral returt ns forff tax years 2019 through 2021 remain open to examination, and the tax years 2018 through 2021
remain open to examination by certain other taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject. Additional years may be
open to the extent attributes are being carried forff ward to an open year.

Defeff rred income taxes arise frff om the temporaryrr diffff eff rences in the recognition of income and expenses forff tax purposrr es. A
valuation allowance is establa ished when the Company believes that it is more likely than not that some portion of its
defeff rred tax assets will not be realized.
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Defeff rred tax assets and liabia lities were comprised of the folff lowing at December 31, 2022 and
2021:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
Defeff rred tax assets:

Accounts receivabla e and fiff nancing receivabla es . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 877 $ 625
Accruer d vacation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 907 678
Stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,909 1,905
Defeff rred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,002 988
Research expenditurt es . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,779 —
Accruer d severance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 490 44
Right of use asset . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,848 1,740
Credits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,472
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 93) 15
Net operating loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,738 3,560

Defeff rred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,457 12,027
Less: Valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 604 622
Total defeff rred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 19,853 $ 11,405
Defeff rred tax liabia lities: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 20,941 $ 18,002
Accruer d liabia lities and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,259 4,668
Fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 527 875
Right of use liabia lity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,884 $ 1,740

Total defeff rred tax liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 32,611 $ 25,285
Total net defeff rred tax liabia lity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (12,758) $ (13,880)

Under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") Section 174 amended the feff deral tax treatment of
research or experimental expenditurt es paid or incurred during the tax year, which allowed forff expensing of such costs in
the year incurred forff feff deral income tax purposrr es. Effff eff ctive forff the 2022 tax year, taxpayers are required to capia talize and
amortize specififf ed research or experimental expenditurt es over a fiff ve-year period. As a result of the change to IRC Section
174, a defeff rred tax asset of $9.8 million was recorded forff the tax year ended December 31, 2022.

Signififf cant components of the income tax provision forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 were as
folff lows:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021 2020
Current provision:

Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,482 $ 731 $ 244
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,420 413 1,539

Defeff rred provision:
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,769) 3,331 2,766
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,919) 171 (11)

Total income tax provision . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,214 $ 4,646 $ 4,538
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The diffff eff rence between income taxes at the U.S. feff deral statutt oryrr income tax rate of 21% forff the years ended December 31,
2022, 2021 and 2020, and those reported in the consolidated statements of operations forff the years ended December 31,
2022, 2021 and 2020 are as folff lows:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021 2020
Income taxes at U.S. feff deral statutt oryrr rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,797 $ 4,846 $ 3,945
Provision-to-returt n adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (539) 117 455
State income tax, net of feff deral tax effff eff ct . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 428 509 908
Tax credits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,254) (1,274) (958)
Contingent consideration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (406) — —
Stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (112) (74) 255
Non-deductible compensation - 162(m) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 306 510 —
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) 12 (67)
Total income tax provision . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,214 $ 4,646 $ 4,538

Our effff eff ctive tax rates forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 were 12%, 20% and 24% respectively. Our
effff eff ctive tax rate forff 2022 was impacted by the non-taxabla e naturt e of our recorded gain on contingent consideration, which
served to reduce the year's effff eff ctive tax rate by 2.2%, while lowered provision-to-returt n adjustments resulted in an
incremental 3.5% decrease in our effff eff ctive tax rate forff 2022 compared to 2021.

We have feff deral net operating loss carryfrr orff wards related to the acquisition of HHI and Get Real Health of $5.9 million,
$7.9 million and $12.2 million forff the years ending December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively, which expire at
various dates frff om 2026 to 2035. We have state net operating loss carryfrr orff wards related to the acquisition of HHI and Get
Real Health of $39.8 million, $29.9 million and $34.4 million forff the years ending December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020,
respectively, which expire at various dates frff om 2023 to 2036.

Realization of defeff rred tax assets associated with the state net operating loss carryfrr orff wards is dependent upon generating
suffff iff cient taxabla e income prior to their expiration. We believe it is more likely than not that the benefiff t frff om certain state
NOL carryfrr orff wards associated with the acquisition of Get Real Health will not be realized. In recognition of this risk, we
have provided a valuation allowance on the defeff rred tax assets related to these state NOL carryfrr orff wards of $0.6 million
aftff er both December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION AND EQUITY

The Company's stock-based compensation awards are in the forff m of restricted stock and perforff mance share awards granted
pursuant to the Company's Amended and Restated 2019 Incentive Plan (the "Plan"). Stock-based compensation cost is
measured at the grant date based on the faff ir value of the award, and is recognized as an expense over the employee’s or
non-employee director’s requisite service period. As of December 31, 2022, there was a total fo 1,168,382 sharres of
common stock reserved under the Plan forff issuance under futff urt e share-based payment arrangements.

The folff lowing tabla e details total stock-based compensation expense forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and
2020, included in the consolidated statements of operations:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021 2020

Costs of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 809 $ 990 $ 1,474
Operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,467 5,531
Pre-tax stock-based compensation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,173 5,457 7,005
Less: income tax effff eff ct . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,086) (1,146) (1,471)
Net (aftff er tax) stock-based compensation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,087 $ 4,311 $ 5,534

As of December 31, 2022, there was $6.0 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested or unearned, as
appla icabla e, stock-based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan, which is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.9 years.

RRestrtt ictett d StSS octt k

The Company grants restricted stock to executive offff iff cers, certain key employees and non-employee directors under the
Plan with the faff ir value of the awards representing the faff ir value of the common stock on the date the restricted stock is
granted. Shares of restricted stock generally vest in equal annual installments over the appla icabla e vesting period, which
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ranges frff om one to three years. The Company records expenses forff these grants on a straight-line basis over the appla icabla e
vesting periods. Shares of restricted stock have also been issued pursuant to the settlement of perforff mance share awards
with one-year perforff mance periods, forff which the Company records expenses in the manner described in the "Perforff mance
Share Awards" section below. Although no such one-year perforff mance share awards were granted during 2022, shares
issued pursuant to past one-year perforff mance share awards are still subject to vesting.

A summaryrr of restricted stock activity (including shares of restricted stock issued pursuant to the settlement of
perforff mance share awards) under the Plan during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 is as folff lows:

Shares

Weighted-
Average
Grant-Date
Fair Value

Unvested stock outstanding at Januaryrr 1, 2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 525,859 $ 30.51
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 136,771 26.16
Perforff mance share awards converted to restricted stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,678 30.15
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (268,067) 30.80
Forfeff ited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,274) 26.16
Unvested stock outstanding at December 31, 2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 412,967 $ 28.87
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 153,700 31.22
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (245,455) 29.16
Forfeff ited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,329) 29.10
Unvested stock outstanding at December 31, 2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 314,883 $ 29.79
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 161,375 34.22
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (181,405) 29.79
Forfeff ited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (13,692) 31.66
Unvested stock outstanding at December 31, 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 281,161 $ 32.24

PePP rfr orff mrr ance ShSS are Awards

The Company grants perforff mance share awards to executive offff iff cers and certain key employees under the Plan, with the
number of shares of common stock earned and issuabla e under each award determined at the end of a three-year
perforff mance period, based on the Company's achievement of perforff mance goals predetermined by the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors at the time of grant. These perforff mance share awards include a modififf er to the total
number of shares earned based on the Company's total shareholder returt n ("TSR") compared to a small-capa stock market
index. If certain levels of the perforff mance objective are met, the award results in the issuance of shares of common stock
corresponding to such level. Perforff mance share awards that result in the issuance of shares of common stock are not
subject to time-based vesting at the conclusion of the three-year perforff mance period.

In the event that the Company's fiff nancial perforff mance meets the predetermined targets forff the perforff mance objectives of
the perforff mance share awards, the Company will issue each award recipient the number of shares of common stock equal
to the target award specififf ed in the individual's underlying perforff mance share award agreement. In the event the fiff nancial
results of the Company exceed the predetermined targets, additional shares up to the maximum award may be issued. In the
event the fiff nancial results of the Company faff ll below the predetermined targets, a reduced number of shares may be issued.
If the fiff nancial results of the Company faff ll below the threshold perforff mance levels, no shares will be issued. The total
number of shares issued forff the perforff mance share award may be increased, decreased, or unchanged based on the TSR
modififf er described abovea .

The recipients of perforff mance share awards do not receive dividends or possess voting rights during the perforff mance
period and, accordingly, the faff ir value of the perforff mance share awards is the quoted market value of CPSI's common stock
on the grant date less the present value of the expected dividends not received during the relevant period. The TSR
modififf er appla icabla e to the perforff mance share awards is considered a market condition and thereforff e is reflff ected in the grant
date faff ir value of the award. A Monte Carlo simulation has been used to account forff this market condition in the grant date
faff ir value of the award.
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Expense related to perforff mance share awards is recognized using ratabla e straight-line amortization over the three-year
perforff mance period. In the event the Company determines it is no longer probabla e that the minimum perforff mance level will
be achieved, all previously recognized compensation expense related to the appla icabla e awards is reversed in the period such
a determination is made.

A summaryrr of perforff mance share award activity under the Plan forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, is
as folff lows, based on the target award amounts set forff th in the perforff mance share award agreements:

Shares

Weighted-
Average
Grant-Date
Fair Value

Perforff mance share awards outstanding at Januaryrr 1, 2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200,709 $ 30.75
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 107,298 26.96
Forfeff ited or unearned . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (35,477) 30.15
Perforff mance share awards converted to restricted stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (19,678) 30.15
Perforff mance share awards outstanding at December 31, 2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 252,852 $ 29.27
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 93,444 31.26
Forfeff ited or unearned . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (20,373) 29.92
Perforff mance share awards converted to restricted stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (75,971) 30.50
Perforff mance share awards outstanding at December 31, 2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 249,952 $ 29.59
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101,799 37.98
Forfeff ited or unearned . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (72,059) 32.74
Vested and issued . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (27,317) 31.75
Perforff mance share awards outstanding at December 31, 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 252,375 $ 31.84

StSS octt k Repuee rchases

On September 4, 2020, our Board of Directors appra oved a stock repurchase program under which we may repurchase up to
$30.0 million of our common stock through September 3, 2022. On July 27, 2022, the Board of Directors extended the
expiration date of the stock repurchase program to September 4, 2024. During 2022, we repurchased 340,732 shares. The
appra oximate value of shares that may yet be repurchased under the stock repurchase program was $17.9 million as of
December 31, 2022. Any futff urt e stock repurchase transactions may be made through open market purchases, privately-
negotiated transactions, or otherwise in compliance with RulRR e 10b-18 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. Any repurchase activity will depend on many faff ctors, such as the availabia lity of shares of our common stock,
general market conditions, the trading price of our common stock, alternative uses forff capia tal, the Company's fiff nancial
perforff mance, compliance with the terms of our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and other faff ctors. Concurrent
with the authorization of this stock repurchase program, the Board of Directors opted to indefiff nitely suspend all quarterly
dividends.

10. CONCENTRARR TION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instrumr ents, which potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk, consist principally of
temporaryrr cash investments and trade receivabla es (including fiff nancing receivabla es). The Company places its temporaryrr
cash investments with credit-worthy, high-quality fiff nancial institutt ions.

The Company’s customer base is concentrated in the healthcare industry.rr Customers are primarily located throughout the
United States. The Company requires no collateral or other security to support customer trade receivabla es. An allowance
forff credit losses forff trade receivabla es and an allowance forff credit losses forff fiff nancing receivabla es have been establa ished forff
potential credit losses based on historical collection experience.

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts, which, at times, may exceed feff derally
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to any
signififf cant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.
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11. FINANCING RECEIVABLES

ShSS ort-tt TeTT rmrr PayPP ment PlPP anll s

The Company provides fiff xed monthly payment arrangements ("short-term payment plans") over terms ranging from three
to twelve months forff certain add-on softff ware installations. As a practical expedient, we do not adjust the amount of
consideration recognized as revenue forff the fiff nancing component as unearned income when we expect payment within one
year or less. These receivabla es, included in the current portion of fiff nancing receivabla es, were comprised of the folff lowing on
December 31, 2022 and 2021:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
Short-term payment plans, gross . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 330 $ 121
Less: allowance forff credit losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (16) (6)
Short-term payment plans, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 314 $ 115

Long-TeTT rmrr FiFF nii ancinii g Arrangementstt

Additionally, the Company provides fiff nancing forff purchases of its inforff mation and patient care systems to certain
healthcare providers under long-term fiff nancing arrangements expiring in various years through 2028. Under long-term
fiff nancing arrangements, the transaction price is adjusted by a discount rate that reflff ects market conditions and that would
be used forff a separate fiff nancing transaction between the Company and licensee at contract inception, and takes into account
the credit characteristics of the licensee and market interest rates as of the date of the agreement. As such, the amount of
fiff xed feff e revenue recognized at the beginning of the license term will be reduced by the calculated fiff nancing component.
As payments are received frff om the licensee, the Company recognizes a portion of the fiff nancing component as interest
income, reported as other income in the consolidated statements of operations. These receivabla es typically have terms frff om
two to seven years.

The decrease in long-term fiff nancing arrangement balances during 2022 is primarily a result of the continued evolution of
customer licensing prefeff rences. Although the overwhelming maja ority of our historical EHR installations prior to 2019 were
made under a perper tuat l license model, the dramatic shiftff in customer prefeff rences to a SaaS license model began during
2019 with 49% of the year's new acute care EHR installations being perforff med in a SaaS model, compared to only 12% in
2018. The shiftff in customer prefeff rence toward a SaaS model has since continued, with SaaS installations representing
appra oximately 68% of new acute care EHR installations in 2020, 63% in 2021 and 100% in 2022. Due to the naturt e of the
revenue recognition requirements forff SaaS arrangements coupled with recurring monthly payments, these arrangements do
not give rise to long-term fiff nancing arrangements.

The components of these receivabla es were as folff lows on December 31, 2022 and 2021:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021
Long-term fiff nancing arrangements, gross . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,683 $ 15,659
Less: allowance forff credit losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (533) (716)
Less: unearned income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (678) (1,339)
Long-term fiff nancing arrangements, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,472 $ 13,604

Futurt e minimum payments to be received subsequent to December 31, 2022 are as folff lows:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
2023 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,533
2024 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,665
2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,309
2026 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 153
2027 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
Thereaftff er . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
Total minimum payments to be received . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,683
Less: allowance forff credit losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (533)
Less: unearned income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (678)
Receivabla es, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,472
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CrCC editii Qualill tii ytt of FiFF nii ancinii g Receivablell s and Allll owll ance forff CrCC editii Losses

The folff lowing tabla e is a roll-forff ward of the allowance forff fiff nancing credit losses forff the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021:

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
Beginning
Balance Provision Charge-offff sff Recoveries

Ending
Balance

December 31, 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 722 $ (211) $ 38 $ — $ 549
December 31, 2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,489 $ 481 $ (1,248) $ — $ 722

The Company’s fiff nancing receivabla es are comprised of a single portfolff io segment, as the balances are all derived frff om
short-term payment plan arrangements and long-term fiff nancing arrangements within our target market of community
hospitals. The Company evaluates the credit quality of its fiff nancing receivabla es based on a combination of faff ctors,
including, but not limited to, customer collection experience, economic conditions, the customer’s fiff nancial condition, and
known risk characteristics impacting the respective customer base of community hospitals, the most notabla e of which relate
to enacted and potential changes in Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement rates as community hospitals typically generate
a signififf cant portion of their revenues and related cash flff ows frff om benefiff ciaries of these programs. In addition to specififf c
account identififf cation, the Company utilizes historical collection experience to establa ish the allowance forff credit losses.
Financing receivabla es are written offff only aftff er the Company has exhausted all collection effff orff ts.

Customer payments are considered past due if a scheduled payment is not received within contractuat lly agreed upon terms.
To faff cilitate customer collection and credit monitoring effff orff ts, fiff nancing receivabla e amounts are invoiced and reclassififf ed
to trade accounts receivabla e when they become due, with all invoiced amounts placed on nonaccruar l statust . As a result, all
past due amounts related to the Company’s fiff nancing receivabla es are included in trade accounts receivabla e in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The folff lowing is an analysis of the age of fiff nancing receivabla es amounts
(excluding short-term payment plans) that have been reclassififf ed to trade accounts receivabla e and were past due as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021:

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
1 to 90 Days
Past Due

91 to 180 Days
Past Due

181 + Days
Past Due

Total
Past Due

December 31, 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,086 $ 278 $ 283 $ 1,647
December 31, 2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 713 $ 78 $ 73 $ 864

From time to time, the Company may agree to alternative payment terms outside of the terms of the original fiff nancing
receivabla e agreement due to customer diffff iff culties in achieving the original terms. In general, such alternative payment
arrangements do not result in a re-aging of the related receivabla es. Rather, payments pursuant to any alternative payment
arrangements are appla ied to the already outstanding invoices beginning with the oldest outstanding invoices as the
payments are received.

Because amounts are reclassififf ed to trade accounts receivabla e when they become due, there are no past due amounts
included within the fiff nancing receivabla es or the fiff nancing receivabla es, current portion, net amounts in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.
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The Company utilizes an aging of trade accounts receivabla e as the primaryrr credit quality indicator forff its fiff nancing
receivabla es, which is faff cilitated by the reclassififf cation of customer payment amounts to trade accounts receivabla e when
they become due. The tabla e below categorizes customer fiff nancing receivabla e balances (excluding short term payment
plans), none of which are considered past due, based on the age of the oldest payment outstanding that has been reclassififf ed
to trade accounts receivabla e:

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Stratififf cation of uninvoiced client fiff nancing receivabla es based on aging of related trade
accounts receivabla e:

Uninvoiced client fiff nancing receivabla es related to trade accounts receivabla e that
are 1 to 90 Days Past Due . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,876 $ 9,100
Uninvoiced client fiff nancing receivabla es related to trade accounts receivabla e that
are 91 to 180 Days Past Due . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,369 329
Uninvoiced client fiff nancing receivabla es related to trade accounts receivabla e that
are 181+Days Past Due . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,894 386

Total uninvoiced client fiff nancing receivabla es balances of clients with a trade accounts
receivabla e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,139 $ 9,815
Total uninvoiced client fiff nancing receivabla es of clients with no related trade accounts
receivabla e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,505
Total fiff nancing receivabla es with contractuat l maturt ities of one year or less . . . . . . . . . . 330 121
Less: allowance forff credit losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (549) (722)
Total fiff nancing receivabla es . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,786 $ 13,719

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Our purchased defiff nite-lived intangible assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are summarized as folff lows:

Total December 31, 2022

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
Customer
Relationships Trademark

Developed
Technology

Non-compete
Agreements Total

Gross carryirr ng amount, beginning
of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 112,570 $ 12,320 $ 37,600 $ — $ 162,490
Intangible assets acquired . . . . . . . . 19,600 — 3,200 1,400 24,200
Accumulated amortization . . . . . . . (52,371) (6,076) (26,010) (233) (84,690)
Net intangible assets as of
December 31, 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . $ 79,799 $ 6,244 $ 14,790 $ 1,167 $ 102,000

Weighted average remaining years
of usefulff lifeff . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 8 4 10

December 31, 2021

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
Customer
Relationships Trademark

Developed
Technology

Non-compete
Agreements Total

Gross carryirr ng amount, beginning
of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 84,370 $ 11,120 $ 29,700 $ — $ 125,190
Intangible assets acquired . . . . . . . . 28,200 1,200 7,900 — 37,300
Accumulated amortization . . . . . . . . (41,738) (5,177) (20,372) — (67,287)
Net intangible assets as of
December 31, 2021 . . . . . . . . . . . $ 70,832 $ 7,143 $ 17,228 $ — $ 95,203
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The folff lowing tabla e represents the remaining amortization of defiff nite-lived intangible assets as of December 31, 2022:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
For the year ended December 31,
2023 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 16,058
2024 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,523
2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,208
2026 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,919
2027 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,047
Due thereaftff er . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35,245
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 102,000

The folff lowing tabla e sets forff th the change in the carryirr ng amount of goodwill by segment forff the years ended December 31,
2022, 2021, and 2020:

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
Revenue
cycle

Electronic
health record

Patient
engagement Total

Balance as of December 31, 2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,784 $ 126,665 $ 9,767 $ 150,216
Balance as of December 31, 2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 126,665 9,767 150,216
Goodwill acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,497 — — 27,497
Balance as of December 31, 2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 126,665 9,767 177,713
Goodwill acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,540 — — 20,540
Balance as of December 31, 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61,821 $ 126,665 $ 9,767 $ 198,253

We determined there was no impairment to goodwill as of December 31, 2022, 2021, or 2020.

13. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt was comprised of the folff lowing at December 31, 2022 and 2021:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Term loan faff cility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 67,375 $ 69,375
Revolving credit faff cility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73,700 31,000
Debt obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 141,075 100,375
Less: debt issuance costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,546) (1,015)
Debt obligation, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 139,529 99,360
Less: current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,141) (4,394)
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 136,388 $ 94,966

As of December 31, 2022, the carryirr ng value of debt appra oximates the faff ir value due to the variabla e interest rate which
reflff ects market rates. The interest rate forff the outstanding debt under our term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility as
of December 31, 2022 was 6.39%.

CrCC editii Agreement

In conjunction with our acquisition of HHI in Januaryrr 2016, we entered into a syndicated credit agreement with Regions
Bank ("Regions") serving as administrative agent, which provided forff a $125 million term loan faff cility and a $50 million
revolving credit faff cility. On June 16, 2020, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that increased the
aggregate principal amount of our credit faff cilities to $185 million, which included a $75 million term loan faff cility and a
$110 million revolving credit faff cility. On May 2, 2022, we entered into a First Amendment (the "First Amendment") to the
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, that increased the aggregate principal amount of our credit faff cilities to $230
million , which included a $70 million term loan faff cility and a $160 million revolving credit faff cility. In addition, the
interest rate provisions of the First Amendment reflff ect the transition frff om the London Interbar nk Offff eff red Rate ("LIBOR")
to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") as the new benchmark interest rate forff each loan.
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Each of our credit faff cilities continues to bear interest at a rate per annum equal to an appla icabla e margin plus, at our option,
either (1) the Adjusted SOFR rate forff the relevant interest period, subject to a flff oor of 0.50%, (2) an alternate base rate
determined by refeff rence to the greater of (a) the prime lending rate of Regions, (b) the feff deral fundsff rate forff the relevant
interest period plus one half of one percent per annum and (c) the one month SOFR rate, subject to the aforff ementioned
flff oor, plus one percent per annum, or (3) a combination of (1) and (2). The appla icabla e margin forff SOFR loans and the
letter of credit feff e ranges frff om 1.8% to 3.0%. The appla icabla e margin forff base rate loans ranges frff om 0.8% to 2.0%, in each
case based on the Company's consolidated net leverage ratio.

Principal payments with respect to the term loan faff cility are due on the last day of each fiff scal quarter beginning June 30,
2022, with quarterly principal payments of appra oximately $0.9 million through March 31, 2027, with maturt ity on May 2,
2027 or such earlier date as the obligations under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement become due and payabla e
pursuant to the terms of such agreement. Any principal outstanding under the revolving credit faff cility is due and payabla e
on the maturt ity date.

Anticipated annual futff urt e maturt ities of the term loan faff cility and revolving credit faff cility are as folff lows as of December 31,
2022:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
2023 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,500
2024 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,500
2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,500
2026 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,500
Thereaftff er . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 127,075

$ 141,075

Our credit faff cilities are secured pursuant to an Amended and Restated Pledge and Security Agreement, dated June 16,
2020, among the parties identififf ed as obligors therein and Regions, as collateral agent, on a fiff rst priority basis by a security
interest in substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets (subject to certain exceptions) of the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company, as guarantors (collectively, the “Subsidiaryrr Guarantors”), including certain registered
intellectuat l property and the capia tal stock of certain of the Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries. Our obligations
under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement are also guaranteed by the Subsidiaryrr Guarantors.

The First Amendment provides incremental faff cility capaa city of $75 million, subject to certain conditions. The Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement, as amended by the First Amendment, includes a number of restrictive covenants that,
among other things and in each case subject to certain exceptions and baskets, impose operating and fiff nancial restrictions
on the Company and the Subsidiaryrr Guarantors, including the abia lity to incur additional debt; incur liens and
encumbrances; make certain restricted payments, including paying dividends on the Company's equity securities or
payments to redeem, repurchase or retire the Company's equity securities (which are subject to our compliance, on a pro
forff ma basis to give effff eff ct to the restricted payment, with the fiff xed charge coverage ratio and consolidated net leverage ratio
described below); enter into certain restrictive agreements; make investments, loans and acquisitions; merge or consolidate
with any other person; dispose of assets; enter into sale and leaseback transactions; engage in transactions with affff iff liates;
and materially alter the business we conduct. The First Amendment requires the Company to maintain a minimum fiff xed
charge coverage ratio of 1.25:1.00 throughout the duration of such agreement. Under the First Amendment, the Company is
required to comply with a maximum consolidated net leverage ratio of 3.75:100 forff each quarter through March 31, 2023,
aftff er which time the maximum consolidated net leverage ratio will be 3.50:1.00. Further, under the First Amendment, in
connection with any acquisition by the Company exceeding $25 million, the Company may elect to increase the maximum
permitted consolidated net leverage ratio forff the fiff scal quarter in which the acquisition occurs and each of the folff lowing
three fiff scal quarters by 0.50:1.00 abovea the otherwise permitted maximum. If the consolidated net leverage ratio is less
than 2.50:1:00, there is no limit on the amount of incremental faff cilities. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, as
amended also contains customaryrr representations and warranties, affff iff rmative covenants and events of defaff ult. We believe
that we were in compliance with the covenants contained in the credit agreement as of December 31, 2022. On March 9,
2023, the calculation of the fiff xed charge coverage ratio was amended to specififf cally exclude frff om the defiff nition of fiff xed
charges the Company's share repurchases conducted during the third and fourff th quarters of 2022. Any faff ilure by us to
comply with this or another covenant in the futff urt e may result in an event of defaff ult. There can be no assurance that we will
be abla e to continue to comply with this covenant or obtain amendments to avoid futff urt e covenant violations, or that such
amendments will be availabla e on commercially acceptabla e terms.
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The First Amendment removed the requirement that the Company mandatorily prepay the credit faff cilities with excess cash
flff ow generated during the previous fiff scal year. The Company is permitted to voluntarily prepay our credit faff cilities at any
time without penalty, subject to customaryrr “breakage” costs with respect to prepayments of SOFR rate loans made on a day
other than the last day of any appla icabla e interest period.

14. BENEFIT PLANS

In Januaryrr 1994, the Company adopted the CPSI 401(k) Retirement Plan that covers all eligible employees of the
Company. The plan allows eligible employees to contribute up to 60% of their pre-tax earnings up to the statutt oryrr limit
prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service. The Company matches a discretionaryrr amount determined by the Board of
Directors. The Company contributed appra oximately $3.5 million, $3.2 million, and $3.2 million to the plan forff the years
ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Company provides certain health and medical benefiff ts to eligible employees, their spouses and dependents pursuant to
a benefiff t plan fundeff d by the Company. Each participating employee contributes to the Company’s costs associated with
such benefiff t plan. The Company’s obligation to fundff this benefiff t plan and pay forff these benefiff ts is limited through the
Company’s purchase of an insurance policy frff om a third-party insurer. The amount establa ished as a reserve is intended to
recognize the Company’s estimated obligations with respect to its payment of claims and claims incurred but not yet
reported under the benefiff t plan. Management believes that the recorded liabia lity forff medical self-ff insurance at December 31,
2022 and 2021 is adequate to cover the losses and claims incurred, but these reserves are based on estimates and the
amount ultimately paid may be more or less than such estimates.

15. OPERARR TING LEASES

The Company leases offff iff ce space in various locations in Alabaa ma, Pennsylvania, Minnesota, Marylrr and, Mississippi and
Washington. These leases have terms expiring frff om 2022 through 2030 but do contain optional extension terms. Leases
with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the balance sheet. We recognize lease expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

On July 28, 2021, the Company terminated its lease agreement forff appra oximately 45,000 square feff et of offff iff ce space in
Fairhope, Alabaa ma. Pursuant to a Termination of Lease Agreement dated July 28, 2021, the Company paid $0.9 million to
the landlord as consideration forff the early termination. In connection with the lease termination, the Company
derecognized the assets and liabia lities associated with the operating lease and recorded a $0.3 million loss on the disposal
of leasehold improvements.

Supplemental balance sheet inforff mation related to operating leases is as folff lows:

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
December 31,

2022

Operating lease assets:
Operating lease assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,567

Operating lease liabia lities:
Other accruerr d liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,063
Operating lease liabia lities, net of current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,651
Total operating lease liabia lities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,714
Weighted average remaining lease term in years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
Weighted average discount rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Because our leases do not provide an implicit rate, we use our incremental borrowing rate based on the inforff mation
availabla e at the lease commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. We used the incremental
borrowing rate on Januaryrr 1, 2019, forff operating leases that commenced prior to that date.
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The futff urt e minimum lease payments payabla e under these operating leases subsequent to December 31, 2022 are as folff lows:
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s
2023 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,063
2024 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,994
2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,258
2026 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,225
2027 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 911
Thereaftff er . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,154
Total lease payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,605
Less imputed interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (891)
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,714

Total rent expense forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 was $2.2 million, $1.8 million, and
$1.7 million, respectively.

Total cash paid forff amounts included in the measurement of lease liabia lities within operating cash flff ows frff om operating
leases forff the year ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 was $2.2 million, $1.8 million, and $1.7 million,
respectively.

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company is involved in routine litigation that arises in the ordinaryrr course of business. Management
does not believe it is reasonabla y possible that such matters will have a material adverse effff eff ct on the Company’s fiff nancial
statements.

17. FAIR VALUE

ASC 820, FaiFF r ValVV ue MeMM asurementstt and Disii closures, establa ishes a frff amework forff measuring faff ir value and expands
fiff nancial statement disclosures abouta faff ir value measurements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfeff r a liabia lity (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market forff the asset or liabia lity in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Codififf cation topic does not require any new
faff ir value measurements, but rather appla ies to all other accounting pronouncements that require or permit faff ir value
measurements. The Codififf cation topic requires that assets and liabia lities carried at faff ir value be classififf ed and disclosed in
one of the folff lowing three categories:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets forff identical assets or liabia lities.

Level 2: Observabla e market-based inputs or unobservabla e inputs that are corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservabla e inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

As of December 31, 2022, we did not have any instrumrr ents that require faff ir value measurement.

As of December 31, 2021, we measured the faff ir value of contingent consideration that represents the potential earnout
incentive forff TruCr ode’s forff mer equity holders. We estimated the faff ir value of the contingent consideration based on the
probabia lity of TruCr ode meeting EBITDA targets (subject to certain pro-forff ma adjustments). We did not have any other
instrumr ents that required faff ir value measurement as of December 31, 2021.

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the carryirr ng amount and faff ir value of the contingent consideration at December 31, 2021:
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Fair Value at December 31, 2021 Using

(I(( nII thoustt ands)s

Carrying
Amount at
12/31/21

Quoted Price in
Active Markets
forff Identical
Assets (Level 1)

Signififf cant Other
Observable

Inputs (Level 2)

Signififf cant
Unobservable
Inputs (Level 3)

Description
Contingent Consideration . $ 2,500 $ — $ — $ 2,500
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,500 $ — $ — $ 2,500

( )( )

18. SEGMENT REPORTING

Our chief operating decision makers ("CODM") previously utilized the folff lowing three operating segments, "Acute Care
EHR", "Post-acute Care EHR" and "TruBr ridge". However, in the fourff th quarter of 2022, the Company made a number of
changes to its organizational strucr turt e and management system to better align the Company's operating model to its
strategic initiatives. As a result of these changes, the Company revised its operating segments. The new operating and
reportabla e segments, based on our three distinct business units with unique market dynamics and opportunit ties, are RCM,
EHR, and "Patient Engagement". These segments represent the components of the Company forff which separate fiff nancial
inforff mation is availabla e that is utilized on a regular basis by the CODM in assessing segment perforff mance and in allocating
the Company's resources. Management evaluates the perforff mance of the segments based on revenues and adjusted
EBITDA. The Company previously evaluated the perforff mance of the segments based on segment gross profiff t.
Management believes adjusted EBITDA is a usefulff measure to assess the perforff mance and liquidity of the Company as it
provides meaningfulff operating results by excluding the effff eff cts of expenses that are not reflff ective of its operating business
perforff mance. Our CODM group is comprised of the Chief Executive Offff iff cer, Chief Operating Offff iff cer, and Chief Financial
Offff iff cer. Accounting policies forff each of the reportabla e segments are the same as those used on a consolidated basis. The
segment disclosures below forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 have been recast to conforff m to the
current year presentation.

Adjusted EBITDA consists of GAAP net income as reported and adjusts forff (i) defeff rred revenue purchase accounting
adjustments arising frff om purchase allocation adjustments related to business acquisitions; (ii) depreciation expense; (iii)
amortization of softff ware development costs; (iv) amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets; (v) stock-based
compensation; (vi) severance and other non-recurring charges; (vii) interest expense and other, net; (viii) gain on
contingent consideration; and (ix) the provision forff income taxes. There are no intersegment revenues to be eliminated in
computing segment revenue.
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The folff lowing tabla e presents a summaryrr of the revenues and adjusted EBITDA of our three operating segments forff the
years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020:

Year Ended December 31,
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021 2020
Revenues:
RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 179,870 $ 131,242 $ 107,431
EHR
Recurring revenue
Acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 109,340 $ 108,440 $ 105,597
Post-acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 15,384 $ 16,472 $ 16,272

Total recurring EHR revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124,724 124,912 121,869
Non-recurring revenue
Acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 13,138 $ 16,939 $ 29,173
Post-acute Care EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,961 $ 1,258 $ 1,912

Total non-recurring EHR revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,099 18,197 31,085
Total EHR revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 139,823 143,109 152,954
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,278 4,103

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 326,648 $ 280,629 $ 264,488

Adjusted EBITDA by Segment:
RCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36,242 30,211 22,780
EHR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,091 23,061 21,488
Patient engagement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (595) (881)

Total adjusted EBITDA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55,899 $ 52,677 $ 43,387

The folff lowing tabla e reconciles net income to adjusted EBITDA:

Year Ended December 31,
(I(( nII thoustt ands)s 2022 2021 2020
Net income, as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,867 $ 18,430 $ 14,246
Defeff rred revenue and other acquisition-related adjustments . . . . . . . . . 109 747 —
Depreciation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,156 1,790
Amortization of softff ware development costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,484 931 118
Amortization of acquisition-related intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,786 11,421
Stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,173 5,457 7,005
Severance and other non-recurring charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,504 4,892 1,999
Interest expense and other, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,267 1,632 2,270
Gain on contingent consideration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (565) — —
Provision forff income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,214 4,646 4,538

Total adjusted EBITDA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55,899 $ 52,677 $ 43,387
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19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 10, 2023, the Company entered into an amendment to the credit agreement with Regions. The calculation of the
fiff xed charge coverage ratio was amended to specififf cally exclude frff om the defiff nition of fiff xed charges the Company's share
repurchases conducted during the third and fourff th quarters of 2022. Any faff ilure by us to comply with this or another
covenant in the futff urt e may result in an event of defaff ult. There can be no assurance that we will be abla e to continue to
comply with this covenant or obtain amendments to avoid futff urt e covenant violations, or that such amendments will be
availabla e on commercially acceptabla e terms.
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SCHEDULE II
COMPUTER PROGRARR MS AND SYSTEMS, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In thousands)

Description

Balance at
beginning of
period

Additions
charged to cost
and expenses (1) Deductions (2)

Balance at end
of period

Allowance forff credit losses deducted
frff om accounts receivabla e in the balance
sheet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2020 $ 2,078 $ 2,825 $ (3,202) $ 1,701

2021 $ 1,701 $ 2,111 $ (1,986) $ 1,826
2022 $ 1,826 $ 1,203 $ (175) $ 2,854

(1) Adjustments to allowance forff change in estimates.
(2) Uncollectible accounts written offff ,ff net of recoveries.

Description

Balance at
beginning of
period

Additions
charged to cost
and expenses (1) Deductions (2)

Balance at end
of period

Allowance forff credit losses deducted
frff om fiff nancing receivabla es in the
balance sheet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2020 $ 2,971 $ 1,632 $ (3,114) $ 1,489

2021 $ 1,489 $ 481 $ (1,248) $ 722
2022 $ 722 $ (211) $ 38 $ 549

(1) Adjustments to allowance forff change in estimates.
(2) Uncollectible accounts written offff ,ff net of recoveries.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluatitt on of Disii closll ure ConCC trtt olsll and PrPP ocedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonabla e assurance that the inforff mation required
to be disclosed by us in reports that we fiff le or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange
Act"), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specififf ed in the rulr es and forff ms promulgated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and that such inforff mation is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our Chief Executive Offff iff cer and Chief Financial Offff iff cer, as appra opriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. Because of the inherent limitations to the effff eff ctiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, no
evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures can provide absa olute assurance that all control issues and instances of frff aud, if
any, within a company have been prevented or detected on a timely basis. Even disclosure controls and procedures determined
to be effff eff ctive can only provide reasonabla e assurance that their objectives are achieved.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation
of our management, including our Chief Executive Offff iff cer and Chief Financial Offff iff cer, of the effff eff ctiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defiff ned in Exchange Act RulRR e 13a-15(e)) pursuant to RulRR e 13a-15 of the
Exchange Act. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Offff iff cer and Chief Financial Offff iff cer concll dudedd thhat our
didiscllosure contr lols a dnd proceddures are effff eff ctiive at thhe reasonablbla e assurance llevell.

ChCC anges inii InII tett rnal ConCC trtt ol over FiFF nii ancial Reporee titt nii g

On March 1, 2022, we acquired Healthcare Resource Group, Inc. (“HRG”), as furff ther described in Note 3 to the consolidated
fiff nancial statements. We continue to integrate policies, processes, people, technology and operations forff our combined
operations, and will continue to evaluate the impact of any related changes to internal controls over fiff nancial reporting during
the fiff scal year.
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There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting (as defiff ned in Exchange Act RulRR e 13a-15(f)ff )
during the quarter ended December 31, 2022 that have materially affff eff cted, or are reasonabla y likely to materially affff eff ct, the
Company’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

This report is included in Item 8 on page 62 and iis iincorporrr atedd hhereiin byby refeff rence.

Report fof Independent Regigistered Publiic Accountiingg Fiirm on Internal CControl Over Fiinanciial Reportiingg

Thihis report iis iincll dudedd iin Item 8 on page 63 andnd is incorporrr ated herein by refeff rence.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

On March 10, 2023, the Company entered into a Second Amendment (the “Second Amendment”) to that certain Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 16, 2020 (as amended, the “Credit Agreement”), by and among the Company;
certain subsidiaries of the Company, as guarantors (collectively, the “Subsidiaryrr Guarantors”); Regions Bank, as administrative
agent and collateral agent; and various other lenders frff om time to time.

The Second Amendment modififf ed the fiff xed charge coverage ratio requirement provided forff in the Credit Agreement by
excluding frff om the defiff nition of Consolidated Fixed Charges any purchases of Equity Interests (as defiff ned in the Credit
Agreement) of the Company made by the Company between July 1, 2022 and September 30, 2022, in an aggregate amount of
up to $4,000,000, and between October 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022, in an aggregate amount of up to $3,676,000.

The Company’s obligations under the Credit Agreement continue to be secured pursuant to the Amended and Restated Pledge
and Security Agreement, dated as of June 16, 2020, by and among the parties identififf ed as Obligors therein and Regions Bank,
as collateral agent, on a fiff rst priority basis by a security interest in substantially all of the tangible and intangible personal assets
(subject to certain exceptions) of the Company and the Subsidiaryrr Guarantors, including certain registered intellectuat l property
and the capia tal stock of certain of the Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries. The Company’s obligations under the Credit
Agreement also continue to be guaranteed by the Subsidiaryrr Guarantors.

The forff egoing description of the Second Amendment does not purporr t to be complete and is qualififf ed in its entirety by
refeff rence to the fulff l text of the Second Amendment, a copy of which is fiff led as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K
and incorporr ated herein by refeff rence.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS.

None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORARR TE GOVERNANCE

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics appla icabla e to all of our directors, offff iff cers (including our Chief
Executive Offff iff cer and senior fiff nancial offff iff cers) and employees. We have also adopted a separate code of ethics with additional
guidelines and responsibilities appla icabla e to our Chief Executive Offff iff cer and senior fiff nancial offff iff cers, known as the Code of
Ethics forff CEO and Senior Financial Offff iff cers. Copies of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the Code of Ethics forff
CEO and Senior Financial Offff iff cers are availabla e on CPSI’s web site at www.cpsi.comp in the "Corporr ate Inforff mation" section
under "Corporr ate Governance."

Other inforff mation required by this Item regarding executive offff iff cers is included in Part I of this Form 10-K under the capta ion
"Executive Offff iff cers" in accordance with Instrucrr tion 3 to Paragrapha (b) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K.

Other inforff mation required by this Item is incorporrr ated by refeff rence pursuant to General Instrucr tion G(3) of Form 10-K frff om
CPSI’s defiff nitive Proxy Statement forff the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2023 Proxy Statement") to be fiff led with
the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The inforff mation required by this Item is incorporr ated by refeff rence pursuant to General Instrucrr tion G(3) of Form 10-K frff om the
2023 Proxy Statement to be fiff led with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A.

99



ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The inforff mation required by this Item is incorporr ated by refeff rence pursuant to General Instrucrr tion G(3) of Form 10-K frff om the
2023 Proxy Statement to be fiff led with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRARR NSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The inforff mation required by this Item is incorporr ated by refeff rence pursuant to General Instrucrr tion G(3) of Form 10-K frff om the
2023 Proxy Statement to be fiff led with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The inforff mation required by this Item is incorporr ated by refeff rence pursuant to General Instrucrr tion G(3) of Form 10-K frff om the
2023 Proxy Statement to be fiff led with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(1) and (2) and (c) – Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules.

Financial Statements: The Financial Statements and related Financial Statements Schedule of CPSI are included herein in Part
II, Item 8.

(a)(3) and (b) – Exhibits.

The exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index beginning on page 103 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are fiff led herewith or are
incorporrr ated herein by refeff rence.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARYR
None.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this the 16th day of March, 2023.

COMPUTER PROGRARR MS AND SYSTEMS, INC.

By: /s/ Christopher L. Fowler
Christopher L. Fowler
President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the folff lowing
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capaa cities and on the dates indicated.
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